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SENATOR GERALD R. STOCKMAN (Chairman): We would like·· to continue 

with what is the third hearing of the Senate Legislative Oversight Committee 

into the circumstances surrounding the Agreement, signed August 10, 1982, between. 

the Public Advocate, the Energy Department, Public Service Electric and Gas, 

and the Atlantic Electric Company. 

The issues~- I will reiterate -- which I see involved in this 

hearing is the question of whether the completion _of Hope Creek I is in the 

public interest; the question of whether the Public Advocate followed reasonable 

and accepted practices, internally, in arriving at his signing this Agreement; 

and, the question of whether in light of that Agreement, the Public Advocate 

can no_w fully protect the public interest in seeing that only those reasonable 

and necessary costs associated with Hope Creek I are borne by the ratepayers 

of the State of New Jersey. Those are the basic issues that I see this Committee 

quite concerned about and looking into. 

Mr. Camacho, I will reiterate this, and I am sure you can appreciate 

this, we _are not here in a debate over Al Nardelli and the circumstances 

surrounding his firing -- at least as I see it. That is something I am not 

saying isn't.an issue and won't have to be dealt with. 

First of all, Mr. Camacho, would you tell us, briefly, your 

educational background, your experience, your position in the Public Advocate 

around the time that we have been taldrig testimony, that is, in early 1982 up to the. 

present time, and, of course, your present position. 

R O B E R T L. CAM AC H 0: First of all, Senators, thank you for this 

opportunity to be heard this morning. 

I graduated from Rutgers Law School in 1968. I h~ld the position 

as a regulatory attorney for the CNJ Railroad during the early '7o•s, doing their 

req work and their work before the Public Utility Commission. From 1971 to 

1974, I was associated with the Kirsten Law Firm in Newark, serving as Rate 

Counsel by appointment of the Attorney General. In 1974, I became one of the 

charter members who formed the Division of Rate Counsel within the Public Advocate 

Department. I have been there since that time with a short hiatus at which 

point I was with the American Electric Power Company. I served as the lead 

attorney in all of the New Jersey Bell rate cases since 1974. I have been the 

attorney with regard to PSE&G clauses since 1979 - that's electric and gas. 

I did the revenue requirements in the 1979 case. I was the lead attorney in 

the 1981 rate case which began in February. To that time, I held the position 

of Deputy. Public Advocate. In February of 19 8 2, _I became Deputy Director of 

the Division; Al 1 Nardelli became the Director at that point in time. I remained 

as Deputy Director until the end of September-'-! believe it was September 30 

at which point in time I was formally named the Director. It was September 

22nd when Commissioner Rodriguez actually informed Mr. Nardelli of the change 

and informed me of the change, and the formal announcement came in September 

30, as I recall, pursuant to a letter. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You have worked, then, I gather, for a long 

time with Mr. Nardelli and with Mr. Makul in that office? 

MR. CAMACHO: That ±s correct. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Prior to the circumstances surrounding this 

Hope Creek issue that brings us here, how would you describe these gentlemen, 
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as far as their loyalty, their,:perforinance, their ~competency, and their 

professionalism within the Office of the Public Advocate? 

MR. CAMAC_HO: I certainly had respec::t for their work, in terms 

bf, they were and are, colleagues, and we have worked on cases together and. 

had been sort of speaking in the trenches together on many of the cases. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Can I take it from that ]:'.emark that you _have· 

no quarrel with their competency, with their loyalty to their public office, 

ind that sort of thing,prior to this incident? 

MR. CAMACHO: I would not say that, Senator Stockman. I had 

no problem in that regard. I respect their professional opinions; ~ may have 

differed at times, but the opinions were respected. 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: But they were professional and they were loyal, 

dedicated public servants? 

MR. CAMACHO: I would consider so. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I understand that you find yourself in perhaps 
an awkward position in view of the Nardelli firing, and those circumstances. 
I don't want to aggravate your Situation. I want to be sensitive to it, but 
I think you can appreciate that the Committee also has to get some facts. So, 

we are trying to avoid that as much as we can. 
The only question I would ask you in that regard is, you heard 

Mr. Nardelli testify, and·I assume you saw a copy of his testimony, and yotj 

have heard Ray Makul testify. Staying away from their opinions, certain opinions 

that they expressed, but honing in on the facts that they testi-fied to, do you 

have any serious quarrel with the facts that they presented. to this Committee? 

MR. CAMACHO: Senator Stockman, there was so much in there, frankly, 

that I hesitate to make a shotgun-type answer like that •. Do you have any more 

!i,pecifics in mind that I could perhaps focus in on? 
SENATOR· S'l'OCKMAN: Well, let me as-k you this, and I am really . 

trying to save some time. I would rather not go into detail.·· I am going to ask · 

you some questions about the August 9th memo and about the stipulation that 

you entered into in December of 1981, and some other general questi_ons. But, 
are there any facts which you view as important, that clearly stand out, in 

which your recollection and you:r: knowledge of the facts clear:J_y differ f:rom those 
o.f either Mr . .Makul or Mr. Nardelli? Again, .I want to emphasize, I know they 
expressed opinions and I am _not going to put you on _the spot iri. terms of whether 

you agree with their cip.inions or 11ot at this point, but facts--
MR. CAMACHO: I'm going to have to go from my recollection, and 

please don't consider any omissions as my consciously agreeing. I'm going to 

try to re.member certain things where I did take certain differences. 

One area was the stipulation of December of 19 81 ~- In my view, 

we had entered that stipulation in good faith. We had to fight hard for the 

abandoning of Hope Creek II. Mr. Makul testified from what he knew, and .I 

respect that, but, I would like to take you back to February of 1981, when the 

case came in. I don't want to give the impression that PS rolled over on Hope 
I 

Creek II -- it was a battle. What happened in May of 1981., was that a reduced 
load forecast was filed in the case. At that point in time, we had a Hope. Creek 

project, two units. About $1.2 billion had been spent at that point in time on 
both units- If one ha.d to break it 4own, about- $800 million on one-uii.it and $200 

million on unit. two. With that emendation in the load forecast, what- had happened 
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was, II became suspect in terms of the_public interest. PS could no .longer 

justify that in terms of meeting demand. 

At that point, it was a pure economic battle. Would the plant turn 

around in terms of cost savings? We were 1a little stronger in that area. We 

retained the Georgetown firm - Mr. Madden filed testimony on it - and we litigated 

that issue out through the summer. Now, although based on the forecast, PS had 

conceded no need, in terms of·the future demand. They fought us on economics. 

I reviewed the testimony of Mr. Malar.d. In the Spring of 1982, PS was still 

taking the position that it was economically viable from a financial point of 

view; namely, that the expenditure would be justified in terms of the cost savings. 

We fought them all summer. We. fought them into the fall. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Of 1981? 

MR. CAMACHO: Of 1981? It was at that point in time that they started 

to recognize the fact, somewhat, and started speaking to us with regard to the 

abandonment of II. And at tha·t point in time, we still had to fight. It was 

not easy. It took us from then until February of 1982 to effectuate the 

abandonment. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: i thought in December of 1981 you signed the stipulation. 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes we did, even with the acknowledgment .by PSE&G of 

the abandonment. It was still quite a feat, and I think this is perhaps a great 

feat that the Division of Rate Counsel was able to accomplish, namely, the 

abandonment of Unit II. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Am I to understand from your testimony that.until 

sometime in 1982, that abandonment wasn't a certainty? 

MR. CAMACHO: I think in the eyes of the Board, perhaps not. I am 

not discrediting the Board. It was a situation where we still had to convince 

the Board that that was in the public interest. 

Now, on that 1981 stipulation, going back in time, we had the Hope 

Creek I issue, which was, I would say, placed on. the back burner. Let me give 

you my reasons for that: 

When we started to:realize, from a pragmatic point of view, 

throughout history in New Jersey, no plant had been abandoned beyond a $400 million 

level. I am speaking of the four Atlantic plants, Hope Creek II, and the Forked 

River plant. At that point, PSE&G was justifying Hope Creek I. I am now back 

in 1981 on both grounds - forecasting and economicneed. 

Frankly, our chances before the BPU -- again, I am not discrediting 

the BPU -- were remote at .that point in time. I· am now speaking of 1981. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Hope Creek I or Hope Creek II? 

MR; CAMACHO: Hope Creek I. Why am I saying that? What is the situation? 

We have had the construction docket from 1976 through 1979. This is where our 

office, and others, had gone into the planning practices and the forecasting of 

all of the electric utilities. That is the docket, as I understand it. I was 

not directly involved in that. Mr. Nardelli was the lead counsel on that. That 

was the docket in which I believe the Dubin materials. and the other materials 

have been cited on forecasting and construction reserve requirements. That 

had ended in February .of 1979 with a consent order, in which our office had 

signed off on the reasonableness of the forecasting methodologies and the planning 

methodologies of the utilities. That is in 1979. Remember, this case is coming 

in in 1981. 
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Having done that at an $800 million level, our chances were rather slim, 

as perceived from a pragmatic point of view. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Do I understand by that, Mr. Camacho, that you 

were convinced from your knowledge and your expertise and the expertise 

available to you that the completion of Hope Creek I_ was not in the public.interest, 

but that you had grave doubts about your ability to jmake that case to the Board 

of Public Utilities? ts that a fair statei;nent of the situation? 

MR. CAMACHO: Well, ! would say at that point, we had no credible 

evidence to indicate the abandonment was in the pul:Hic interest. We simply had 

no testimony by any expert as to·what the situation was. The dilemma presented 

to us was, what was doable? What was doable before the Board from a pragmatic 

point of view? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Let me stop you for just a second, because something_ 

you-just said confuses. me a little bit. Was the same true of Hope Creek II? 

That is, that you had no supportable evidence to establish that it was not in 

the public interest to complete Hope Creek II? 

MR. CAMACHO: The same was true of II, but, look at the situation. 

Hope Creek II is in its infancy - $200 million to $300 million. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Here is my puzzle. I understand what you are 

saying, I think, but here is my puzzle: r.f you didn't h.ave confident, expert 

opinions to lead you to the conclusion that the completion of either of these 

plants was not in the public interest, how if! it, logically, that you would be 

going about vigorously opposing the completion of either or both of those 

plants? There is something fundamental here. 

MR. CAMACHO: .From a pragmatic point of.view, what is doable before 

the Board. Again, here is the s:i,tuation I was going into. Hope creek II wa~ 

in its infancy, $200 million to $300 million. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You are talking about whether it is doable to stop 

or not? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. In other words, remember, never before had a plant 

been cancelle.d over $400 million. So, at that point, is it logicat"--? What 

can: you do before the Boa:i;:-d? What will they logically look at? 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: Let me stop you. Here is my dilemma.' I may be 

. into too many hearings and too many names., facts, and figures. But, it sounds 
to me like a situation where I have a case, and r have_ a judge and a jury to deal 

with, and it sounds like you are saying, "Well, I don't know what kind of verdict· 

I c.an get fronr that judge and jury. I have to decide, well, that judgement is. 

the only verdict I can get for the plaintiff, therefore,· I am going to pursue 

the_claim for the plaintiff. Well, the only problem is, suppose I, am at that 

time representing the defendent, and vice versa?" 

MR. CAMACHO: Oh, no. It is not pursuing for the defendant, it is· 

deciding whether one goes ahead and expends the money on the experts, expends 

the effort, _and tries to do it; or, as I said, place it on the back burner. 

Remember, up·to that time, we had tried to stay on the.number one issue -

reasonableness of cost with Theodore Barry .:. we had tried,. before_ the _Board, .to 

convince them on the reasonableness of plant costs, _and frankly, ~ith ·a vigorous 

effort, we had not been that successful on that particular search. Now, our office 
. •. 

had been successful in being instrumental, and we vigorously pursued the Atlantic· plants. 
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But, at that point, we had to look at this from a very pragmatic point.of view. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: · I can't, Mr. Camacho I don't mean to belabor it 

6r beat a dead horse -- understand how you can get to grappling with the doability 

issue, the issue of how sympathetic the Board is to new construction of major 

plants, or how hostile it is to any of those sort of things. I can't understand 

how you would even be concerned about that until you have basically looked at the 

issue before you, a proposed plant, and intelligently reached some determination 

that the completion of that plant is in the best interest of the public, or·the 

completion of that plant is not in the best interest of the public. And only 

after you make that decision as to which side you are going to be on, to then 

start grappling with the doability issue of the likely response of the Board of 

Public Utilities. That is why I am .in a quandary. I am totally now p.t sea over 

how you can suggest that in 1981 you-did not have sufficient expert and supportive 

opinion that would convince you, to your satisfaction -- not necessarily_the 

Board's, but to yours -- that it was not in the public interest to complete this 

construction of Hope Creek II or Hope Creek r, or any other facility. 

MR. CAMACHO: I don't think youcan-- With all due respect, Senator. 

I don't think you can prejudge the issue. I think you have to, in .facing this 

consideration, look at the facts as we found them in 1981 and determine at that 

point whether, and to what degree, issues would be pursued as back burner issues 

or front burner issues. As I said, at that point in time, on the total project, 

about $1.2 billion was already spent, and through the end of the year, about 

$1.5 billion would have been spent pursuant to the projections of the utility. 

Do you go out in addition to doing the base rate electric case, base rate gas 

case, levelized energy adjustment clause case, which is filed in April and June, 

and the levelized raw materials adjustment clause case in the same pr.oceeding? 

Do you do all of that and fight on all fronts at the .same point in time, or, do 

you pick what is doable and proceed forward? What I am indicating at that point in 

time is, we picked the Hope Creek II as the doable issue and proceeded on that 

basis. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Doable in the sense of defeating its construction, 

correct? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes, at that point in time. Now, realize what PS was 

saying, that it didn't need it for demand, and, its figures, with regard to 

Hope Creek II, were somewhat suspect in our opinion. That became the thrust of 

our testimony. That is what they were projecting for the cost of the plant 

and what the cost savings they had used in terms of turning it around were. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Maybe you are saying this: Are you saying that it is 

in fact the·role of the Public Advocate to Challenge any positive request before 

the Board of Public Utilities by the utility - whether that positive request be 

for a rate increase, or, for an increase of its rate base by virtue of the 

construction of a new facility? Maybe that is it. Is that~-

MR. CAMACHO: We do perceive that. we do challenge those things and 

take a look at them, within the re~lm of doabiiity of the pragmatism. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right. Within the realm of doability. I 

understand that. So, what you are telling me is, if I understand it, and frankly, 

it shed some new light on the role of the Public Advocate in these rate cases, and 

I will admit--
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MR. CAMACHO: Let me cast one other nuance on it, Senator, that we 
' . 

recommend, the Board decides. As recornmenders, we are constantly aware of our 

credibility and how we would be perceived, and what is doable. 

Let me add one further element. I know Senator Connors had,.mentioned 

the name Dale Bridenbaugh. That summer, we h1d retained the MHB firm from 

San Jose, to look at the coal conversion situation Hope Creek I. They had 

rendered an oral report -- this was Gregory Minors of that firm -- in terms 

of the converting at that site. What was orally indicated to us by that 

particular firm was that it simply was not feasible at that site with regard to 

'I or to II, at which point, again, it was a back burner issue with regard to 

I, and II, we felt from, from a pragmatic point·of view, that we could successfully 

litigate on a litigated basis before the BPU. 

So, what I am indicating is, coming into the fall of°-1981, we had 

Hope Creek I on the back burner. We were attacking Hope'creek II very vigorously. 

At that posture of the case, the Board had taken the Hope Creek project issue 

out and placed it in a construction docket. Al Nardelli, prior to. that point, 

talked to me about the case and had concurred, in our view, this pragmatism. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I want to get to that, but I have to stop you 

one more time. Now I think I am getting dangerously close to beating a dead horse. 

But, I want to suggest to you, Mr. Cam~cho, that unless I am losing my grasp of 

the English language, and of its ordinary meaning, that the testimony that you 

have just given to us suggests that the role of the Public Advocate in these 

proceedings is to resist new construction I don't say that critically, because 

after all, the public may not be as fully appreciative of something that I have 

come to learn gradually, and that is that the rate base, and therefore the structure 

whereby rates can be charged to the citizenry, is based on the assets of the 

utility. Therefore, in one sense, it behooves the utility to grow in terms of 

its assets in order to charge. So, I can appreciate -- if what I understand you 

to be saying is what you are saying -- that because of that, the basic responsibility, 

historically of your office has been to challenge these new plants unless you find 

out that you can't win before the Board of Public Utilities. 

MR. CAMACHO: I don't want _to charac,terize it .before the Board in a 

derogatory sense, but it is a pragmatic viewpoint. We don't look at it plant 

by plant, either. I think Mr. Nardelli took you through this in terms of-what 

had been done in the past, in terms of the whole program, in terms of what is 

coming on. 

For example: in an earlier timeframe, we had been instrumental in 

the abandonment of the Atlantic plants. Now, during that time, other plants 

happened to have been built, but, again, we took a pragmatic approach in this,·which 

is, which is the most speculative plant, the farthest out, the one in its 

infancy, the one with the least dollars spent, the one where perhaps we have a 

pragmatic chance. On behalf of the Division of Rate Counsel, we took a lot of 

pride in the fact that we had been instrumental! in bringing about these abandonments. 

So, I am agreeing with the way you are characterizing the role; I'.m just saying 

there is a lot more interpragmatism than just characterizing the Board one way 

or the other. One has to deal with the facts as they indicate before you. If the 

Atlantic plants represent new technology and they are out to be floated in the ocean 

for the first time, if they are in their infancv, then aqain. the praqmatic ooint of view, 

which had_been pursued- Let's test them, let's get the consultants, let's look 
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into this and make the presentation. So, I think you have outlined it correctly.· 

I am just saying that from a pragmatic point of view, look at the facts before 

us, and the facts even before the Board from prior cases,-and a whole historical 

perspective. 

That is.what you are indicating~ that on challenging the new plants, 

challenging the growth in rate base, certainly we take a look; certainly we do 

scrutinze it with regard to minimizing rates iri New Jersey, trying to decide 

what is doable, what can we credibly put before the Board, and.what can we 

succeed at doing. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: .Now, I think the problem I am struggling .with -­

perhaps my colleague, Senator -Laskin, might sympathize with me, but he may not 

but as a lawyer, .we are used to dealing not with the Board of Public Utilities, 

but a court representing one side •in that. I have to constantly try to be 

pragmatic, that is sense what is doable before that court and jury. What are 

the parameters within which I might succeed or I might fail. But, of course, 

what has confused me about this dialogue in one sense is, I have never gone 

about that in the sense of making an ultimate dec:i,.s,ion to back off simply on a 

sense or a belief that it may not be doable, the ultimate, that we get to. a question 

of a certain risk, and maybe another element, the question of making a complete 

wrecker on 

reached a 

obligation 

both sides 

an issue. 

Incidentally, had 

similar agreement, 

to spread on the 

of this issue in 

the Public 

whereby it 

record, for 

full light, 

Advocate, prior to this Agreement, ever 

gave up such a fight, and gave·up the 

the public as well as the BPU, to judge 

in a controverted forum? 

MR. CAMACHO: Senator, I am not saying we gave up the issue. I hope 

I haven't confused you on that. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: On Hope Creek I? By the Agreement? 

i R. CAMACHO: Right. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: By the Agreement? 

MR. CAMACHO: No, not by the Agreement. I am talking about 1981. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN.: That is what I am-- I am jumping a little. 

MR. CAMACHO: I am calling it a back burner issue. It was there, 

we concentrated--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: No, but I am bringing you forward. What I am 

asking you is, has, ever, the Public Advocate .reached an agreement to .discontinue 

its role and responsibility of challenger of.complete recordmaker on an issue of 

this sort, in any prior setting - you may have- 1 I don.'.t .know - in your experience 

with the .Public Advocate? That is one of the things that troubles me about this 

Agreement, incidentally. Aside from if we were God and knew whether the completion 

of Hope Creek I will work out to be the best interest of the public or not --

that is an issue that reasonable men can disagree on. I think you would agree 

with that. We know that. One gnawing question form~ is in the setting we 

find outselves, is it consistent with your role, the Public Advocate's role --

as we have discussed it here this morning -- for him to, in effect,· sign off 

on presenting that other side before the BPU? 

MR. CAMACHO: There are times when I believe that one, again, has 

to make a pragmatic judgement with regard to that. What. can you accomplish for 

the ratepayers? Can you minimize rates·? What can you do for the people of the 
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State of New Jersey? So, there is always a downside risk in one sense, and that 

is a credibility risk, Senator, in terms of one cannot assume that you can 

proceed with that record at all points in time and not harm the ratepayers in 

the end. You have to make a value judgement. 

SENATOR STOCKMA.N: Doesn't the BPU have that role in the play? That 

is the other thinq that confuses me. 

MR. CAMACHO: Oh, the BPU, in my view, also has the role of judging 

these honors. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But, it seems that what the Public Advocate did 

here, to me -- at least I am grappling with this. What it seems to be is to 

basically write off the BPU, because , on that very issue of protecting the public 

in a fair return and a fair imposition of rates on the public, that is the very 

charge of the BPU. It seems to me, in a way, that implicit in the Agreement 

that the Public Advocate struck, is a conclusion that the Board of Public Ut,ilities 

is incompetent to effectively deal with that issue. 

MR. CAMACHO: I wouldn't characterize that in that way, Senator. 

Again, getting back to pragmatism and what was on the record in terms of what 

was before the BPU and what they had done in the past. Where I was going with 

all of this into the December, 1981 stipulation was--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: (interrupting) We'll get back to that~ 

MR. CAMACHO: (continuing) Al Nardelli defined this as a great feat 

for our office, the abandonment of II. I was going to say I agreed with it, 

and it was my view that we had ended that stipulation in good faith, because we 

had worked so hard for that abandonment. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But it really wasn't, as you described it, Mr. 

Camacho, a true intelligent, intentional abandonment of the resp?nsibility of 

the Public Advocate on behalf of the citizens of New Jersey to vigorously 

challenge the need for the completion of Hope Creek I, was it? 

MR. CAMACHO: No, I would never characterize it as such. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: So, it really wasn't a.sion-offin the true sense 

of the word? 

MR. CAMACHO: Well, it was done not in terms of a relinquishment of 

a re,sponsibility. Al Nardelli was negotiating for us at that point. This was 

an issue that I have defined as there and on the back burner. 

If it took that to abandon II, that is what it took. And the abandonment 

of II was a very great accomplishment. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, in your opinion, did it take the surrender 

of the Public Advocate's responsibility to vigorously resist and challenge 

the facts and figures on the completion of Hope. Creek I, in order to effect the 

abandonment of Hope Creek II? For instance, were there carefully tho~ght out and 

fully discussed sessions with the Public Advocate -- at that time, VanNess -- and 

with Rate Counsel, and with perhaps anybody else within the House who brought 

some expertise to it? Was there an intelligent determination made that, "Look, 

we must abandon any hope of stopping Hope Creek I in order to assure stopping 

Hope Creek II?" I don't think that happened; I may be wrong. We have a tremendous 

amount of documentati'on so far that does not seem.to bear that out. It is 

true there is this stipulation, but one can interpret the stipulation as a kind of 

tongue in cheek statement that later leaves a lot of room for the Public Advocate 

to sort of say, "Hey, we sort of said that, but everything changes, and at any rate, 
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the whole circumstance is changed, and we have to press this question of whether 

or not we need Hope Creek I." I have to think that that was even in your mind 

at the time. It may not have been. That is what I am getting at. 

MR. CAMACHO: I don't perceive it that way, the way you have outlined 

it, Senator. I had perceived that the December stipulation was in earnest, 

as negotiated by Al, in terms of--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, you must have become very uncomfortable in 

early 1982, as the Public Advocate vigorously and publicly asserted that it was 

against the public interest to comp;J..ete Hope Creek II. 

MR. CAMACHO: That was, at a point in time, when we had a change in 

the administration. It was a point in time when, as a Division, Al had made the 

motion to go back after that point, and at that point in time, that was the 

viewpoint of the Department. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Did you feel that was a repudiation of this 

stipulation, and that it was an affront to your integrity as Counsel involved 

in that, to do that? And, did you assert any objection within the Public Advocate's 

Department that this violated an agreement on good faith, fairly reached, and made 

a matter of record in that case? 

MR. CAMACHO: I had been close to the original stipulation, and as 

I recall, when Al indicated he was making the motion, he just indicated that 

at that posture, we had to rescind that particular agreement. I felt uneasy 

about it, personally, but at that point, I viewed it as the position of our 

Division and our Department. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Did you express that uneasiness to him? 

MR. CAMACHO: I had mentioned that, at least at one point, to Al, 

as I recall. But, at that point, again, the decision was to go ahead with 

that particular motion. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Did you think at that time, Mr. Camacho -- that is 

in December of 1981 that it was, with all of the information that you had 

available to you -- in the public interest to complete-- Now we are in December 

of 1981. We have a lot less hardware in the ground. Did you think in December 

of 1981 that it was in the public. interest to complete Hope Creek I? 

MR. CAMACHO: Again, there was just a good deal of uncertainty at .that 

point in time.. At that point in time, we would have had probably a billion dollars 

in the plant. So, again, my perception Wc'ls, our chances, again, before the BPU 

with regard to that plant, were very, very remote. ' I am not saying that irt 

denigration of the Board; I am saying that because of the history -- so, from 

a personal point of view as opposed to the Division or Department point of view. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Now, you say on one occasion, you beiieve you 

expressed to Mr. Nardelli some uncomfortableness about the vigorous opposition 

to the completion of Hope Creek I that we know became the public posture of 

the Public Advocate in early 1982, is that correct? How about with Mr. Makul? 

Did you ever discuss, or share with him that position? 

MR. CAMACHO: No, at that point in time, as I recail, Mr. Nardelli 

filed the actual motion on behalf of our Division. Again, that was an internal 

discussion at that point in time, or iust prior to filing it. 
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SENATOR STOCKMAN: Now, in_ 1982, you were aware that the Public 

Advocate was regularly expressing opposition to the completion of Hope Creek I, 

is that correct? 

MR. CAMACHO: That is absolutely correct .• 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Mr. Makul, for instance, yesterday bef-ore us, 

indicated that the general feeling within Rate Counsel's office, in around that 

gel:'iod, March, April of 1982, was that Hope Creek I was a financial disaster. 

Is that a fair statement as to the general feeling and mood of the people in 

Rate Counsel's office on that subject? 

MR. CAMACHO: I would say that that certainly was Mr .. Makul' s view 

and I would certainly say that our Division was pressing against it at that 

point in time. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Then some things happened. That is what we are 

also really trying to get down to the bottom of. When did you first become. aware 

that, let's say, there were serious discussions about a so-called Cost Containment 

Agreement? 

MR. CAMACHO: Again, let me not use the word, "serious discussions." 

Let's say discussions. In July. I would say in early July of 19-- By serious, 

I mean that requires me to characterize--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right, any discussions. Early July? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. I had been at two sessions of conferences with 

Al Nardelli and Bill Potter, at which an early form of this stipulation was 

reviewed and commented on by both Al and I to Bill. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Early July? 

MR. CAMACHO: Right. By the way, my comment on the seriousness went 

to the fact that I didn't know what stage it actuall:y was being negotiated or-­

That :i,s why I corrected that before. 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: ·But in early July, you had Some sort of .actual 

document. Do you recall what it was? 

MR. CAMACHO: As··I recall, it was an early form of the stipulation 

which was being discussed and reviewed. I recall two occasions, one.of which 
was at a luncheon-type meeting that we had. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: The luncheon meeting was on other business, but 

this came up? Was it sort of--? 

MR. CAMACHO: (interrupting) No., no. I .was summoned to that 

specifically for this purpose. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And there was a meeting at which you were summoned, 

· in which Mr. Nardelli participated and Mr.- Potter and yourself. 

MR. CAMACHO:. The three of us, yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And you were shown some sort of a document and 

asked to comment on it? 

on that? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. There was one other occasion in Al's office. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Did you prepare a memo on that, or do any research 

MR. CAMACHO: No, Senator. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Did you check with any authorities, any expertise~ 

or, was it a matter of just looking at it and.giving your reaction? 

MR. CAMACHO: I looked at it,and both Al and I commented on what we 

thought vis-a-vis the Agreement. 
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SENATOR STOCKMAN: What was the gist of your comments at that time? 

MR. CAMACHO: At that time, you will find, with regard to my view, the 

memorandum of August 9. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, we haven't gotten to that. We are in July now. 

MR. CAMACHO:. Okay. That was a memorialization of some of the items 

that we had discussed at that early review session. For example: the issue of-­

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Could that meeting have been in early August? 

MR. CAMACHO: No. It was earlier than that, Senator, because there 

was a gap of time during which I simply hadn't heard anything. 
1'1'_-,j 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Was it late July? 

MR. CAMACHO: I would say the middle of July. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You don't have anything in writing anywhere in the 

records of the Public Advocate's Office? 

MR. CAMACHO: I do not. It was somewhat of an ad hoc-type meeting 

: a.nd I did not have it in a diary. For example, one of the· areas that I know I 

specifically discussed was risks. Would the Utility be able to obtain a witness, 

pull out the Agreement, and demand a high return in equity, and thereby post some 

problems with this Agreement? That was one area that I .mentioned. Another area 

:that I mentioned at the meeting was, did we need some type of mechanism so we could 

pull down the target, the 38, in the event there was a change in the CWIP policy 

and the AFDC policy .. The Board is argued by PSE&G in the next case. What I was 

trying to do was anticipate what PSE&G would be asking for in the next case and 

try to work it back in, to try to put some red flags on some areas. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Now, at this time, the public position of the 

Advocate was strong and clear in opposition to. the completion, wasn't it? 

MR. CAMACHO: At that point in time, clearly, as I recall, S-975 was 

under consideration and we were supporting that and we were supporting a review 

for the Hope Creek I unit. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Did you express any concern about the question of 

the credibility of the Public Advocate in that luncheon session, that sort of 

ad hoc session, about the Public Advoca.te doing a turnaround on his position with 

regard to Hope Creek I? 

MR. CAMACHO: There was a discussion on that first point, and perceptions 

at, I believe, that first meeting at the luncheon meeting. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Do I understand that the next time you knew anything 

about a possible cost containment agreement or an agreement to forego-­

Incidentally, was it clearly indicated in that session that you were contemplating 

foregoing any right to question the need for Hope Creek I? 

MR. CAMACHO: That was not clearly indicated then. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Now, after that meeting in July, mid to late July, 

when was the next time you had any awareness of what was going on? 

MR. CAMACHO: The next item was .the memorandum of August 9. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You had no participation, no awareness of anything 

further in tl}is matter until August 9th? 

MR. CAMACHO: That is.correct. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Tell us what happened on August 9th. 

MR. CAMACHO: On August 9, as I recall, Al Nardelli had circulated 

the August 9 memorandum, with regard to the draft stipulation on Hope Creek I 
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Cost Containment. I reviewed that memorandum, signed off on that memorandum, 

and to my knowledge, it was a memorialization of the items which we had discussed 

previously, from my point of view, when I reviewed it. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Incidentally, up through this period, probably the 

most, let's say, articulate, vigorous, and strong opponent to the completion of 

Hope Creek I in the Public Advocate's Office was who? 

MR. CAMACHO: I just can't characterize at that point, Senator. I 

can give you the facts you want. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: In other words, if I were to say to you, "Who, in 

the whole office, was probably the most knowledgeable, articulate, strong opponent 

to the completion of Hope Creek I in late July, early August of 1982," you 

couldn't identify that individual? You think there might be a dispute as to 

who it was? 

MR. CAMACHO: Phrased as such~ I knew that our Trenton office had been 

working on the S-975 and had been articulating that viewpoint. So, overtly, 

outside, yes, probably our Trenton office at that point in time. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: When you say our Trenton office, give the number 

of experts and the people in the Trenton office who have sophisticated insight 

and knowledge of this whole area. 

time. 

MR. CAMACHO: Well, that would have been Mr. Potter at that point in 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Mr. Potter was your Trentori office? 

MR. CAMACHO: That is who I referred to. I characterize it as such. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And Mr. Potter was the most articulate, aggressive 

proponent of the proposition that Hope Creek I, at that point, should not be 

completed, wasn't he? 

MR. CAMACHO: Let me say, internally, our people at Rate Counsel were 

also pressing this concept. We were supporting the s~975 at that point in time. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Now, the famous memorandum of August 9, 1982, you 

certainly, at the time you reviewed that and concurred in its conclusions, had 

no idea that the Public Advocate had reached an agreement with Public Service 

and Atlantic Electric Company to forego any, opposition thereafter to the completion 

of Hope Creek I. Is that a fair statement? 

MR. CAMACHO: Again, your characterization, whether an agreement had 

been reached at that point in time~- Let's say, if an agreement had been reached 

at that point in time, I was not aware of it. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Unfortunately, you are an attorney. I know you are 

not used to having to answer questions. I sympathize with you; I am not either. 

But, that is not the question I am asking, Mr. Camacho, and I would like to ask 

it again. The question I am asking you is, when you reviewed this memo and 

concurred in what it contained, which was a strong request that the Advocate not 

sign off -- we will get into its details in a minute, and it is a matter of public 

record -- you had absolutely no idea that in fact at that point, already, the 

Public Advocate, on behalf of the citizens of New Jersey, had reached an agreement 

to forego ever challenging the need to complete Hope Creek I. Isn't that a fair 

statement? 
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MR. CAMACHO: . Again, I had no idea whether they had or they hadn't,, 

My factual perception, at that point .in time-- I hadn't any interaction since 

the two prior meetings. So, factually, what I perceived next was, the August 9 

memorandum. What had happened elsewhere, I did not know. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: So, you are telling me that at the time you did 

not know? It could have been that he had or had not. Would it be fair to say 

that you would have been shocked, as a long-term member of the Public Advocate's 

Office, and one of the lead Rate Counsel experts and members of this fine 

organization, to be told that in fact such an agreement had been reached without 

any forewarning, or an awareness by you or other people around you? 

MR. CAMACHO: Again, I would hesitate to use the word "shocked.n 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Why? 

MR. CAMACHO: I would leave the strategy of the negotiations to 

Gommissioner Rodriguez and to William Potter, as far as how they perceived it 

should go. I would perceive that as extraordinary. That is what I wou.ld say. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right, I'll settle for extraordinary. (laughter) 

We are making progress. 

Let's go through this very briefly. You said, along with Mr. Nardelli 

and Mr. Makul - and I understand you didn't necessarily prepare this, but 

certainly, you read it and you were comfortable with it, and you were comfortable 

with the following. This is August 9, 1982. This is by the Director of the 

Division of Rate Counsel, Mr. Nardelli, long-time expert in his field, lead counsel 

in major rate cases, experienced attorney, eight years practice with the 

Public Advocate, etc. Yourself, you have described your credentials and we have 

heard Mr. Makul's credentials. You three say the following on August 9, 1982 

to Mr. Rodriguez, a relatively new Public Advocate., five to six months in the 

job: 

"We do not believe that you should sign any stipulation on Hope Creek 

I Cost Containment." That was a firm bei1e·f you had at that time, wasn't it? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes, Senator. We had placed -- at least I had placed 

a lot of reliance on the S-975. Our hope, or my hope, let me indicate that-­

S-975 afforded an opportunity at an independent commission to review the issue 

and to clear the issue once and for all. The hope was that S-975 would provide 

a forum to decide that issue, and frankly, remove a lot of the acrimony and 

everything that had surrounded it. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, it was more than S-975. Let me get to that. 

You say, "Your signature will be interpreted as acquiescence in, if not support of, 

the idea that a review of the need for Hope Creek I is unnecessary if the costs 

of the plant are contained. Signing this stipulation after our vigorous efforts to 

have Hope Creek I cancelled, and, in support of S-975, will reduce our Department's 

credibility as an agency willing to take on anybody when we are right." So, 

it was both because of the vigorous effort that was a matter of public record, as 

well as your support for S-975, that you saying, "don't do this," wasn't it? 

MR. CAMACHO: Primarily, the 975, in trying to keep that moving on a 

forward basis, trying to keep our support for 975 clear and focused--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Let me interrupt you and ask you this, Mr. Camacho: 

Frankly, in view. of the history .of .the posture of the Public Advocate, at that point 

where he was, and in view of the position that is expressed in this memo, can 
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you reconcile the secrecy surrounding the signing on August 10, 1982 by the 

Public_ Advocate with the reasonable and proper procedure for the Public Advocate 

to pursue in arriving at a position· involving a near $4 billion contract? 

MR. CAMACHO: Here again, I think you should, _with all due respect 

direct the question to Commissioner Rodriguez or to William Potter on that 

point. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN-: All right, I understand. All right, it was a 

tough question. I understand that. 

MR. CAMACHO: Well, .it is a situation where it is couched in terms 

of the secrecy and certain ot&er characterizations. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Incidentally, it was secret to you and to Rate 

Counsel, wasn't it? 

MR. CAMACHO: Well, we had a meeting of August 10th. 

SENA'rOR STOCKMAN: Oh, all right. It wasn't secret on August 10 ·. 

Is that what you are telling me? 

MR .. CAMACHO: Again, you, characterize it as_ a secret. We had been 

called to a meciting on August 10, with regard to this memorandum. 

SENI\TOR STOCKMAN: But you were. in_ the dark, prior to August _10, 

weren't you? 

· MR. CAMACHO: Prior to August 9 ,_ I knew that some type of negotiations 

were going on, how close, or whatever, I was unaware of. .This memori'alized what 

we had conveyed at the prior two sessions. 

SENATOR _STOCKMAN:. You essentially were in the dark prior .to the 9th, 

weren't you? 

MR .. CAMACHO: Again, that is a characterization, with all due respect, 

Senator. 
SENI\TOR S'ro:::KMAN: "'rhe irony is ,-- I am quoting na.,. -- that not only is signing. the 

stipulation wronq, it will also be unpopular;. particularly with our Rate Cbunsel Advisory 

Committee." Is there any doubt in your mind that it would be and in fact is un­

,popular with your Rate Counsel Advisory Committee? 

MR. CAMACHO: No. The thought was, at the time we memorialized this, 

S-975 could provide an outlet where.the i~sU:e could be aired. In general, the 

Advisory Committee and others could be satisfied with regard to the. disposition. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Incidentally, the Governor, himself -- forgetting. 

about S-975 -- could have called for the creation of a blue-ribbon committee 

or a special committee to-vigorously review and recommend whether or not that 

plant.should be completed· or not, .. couldn't he? 

MR. CAMACHO: Again, I couldn't characterize what he could or would· 

·do in terms of-~ 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, I mean as a citizen, as an attorney who is 

somewhat exper:.ienced in this area-- That. arguably was an ·approach that could have 

been taken, wa~ri't it? 

MR. -CAMACHO: As a. possibility, perhaps, but, again, remember the 

pragmatic viewpoint,we had S-'975 right there. We.were looking toward it. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Now, your memo goes on to say, "The fact is, that 

the prnposed :;tipulation -- this .is the point -- the target completion cost, 
. _ _) . . 

$3.8 billion, is more than what the plant is worth to consumers." Is that a fact 

as of August 'I, in your opinion? 



MR. CAMACHO: That is the statement, and it is what the perception of 

certainly Mr. Makul was, and the perception of our Division, as far as a possibility. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And you were comfortable ·and had confidence in and 

respect for that opinion; because you initialed this memo yourself, correct? 

MR. CAMACHO: I initialed. the memo. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: There wasn't coercion on this, was there? 

MR. CAMACHO: No. This, in essence, was an argument for relying on 

S-975, to try to get 975 as our focal point as opposed to taking this-­

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You know, I hate to say it, Mr. Camacho, but it 

really doesn't express itself that way, does it? It doesn't say, assuming 

S-975 will pass or is likely to pass, or relying on that, you allude to S-975. 

MR.CAMACHO: On the 3rd page, clearly. In terms of my interpretation 

and frankly my reliance at that point in time, I had placed a great deal of reliance 

on S-975. I saw that as being an area where this issue could be determined once and 

for all. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But,· nevertheless, you go on to say, "Based on 

previous rough calculations, which had been confirmed by the Department of Energy's 

similar analysis, and general judgement, we doubt that this plant could pay for 

itself even if it could be completed for $3 billion. Why should we agree to a full 

return on $3.8 billion?" That.was· your opinion on 'August 9th, right? 

MR. CAMACHO: That was the statement, and it was one set of analyses 

with regard to that particular element. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I'm not going to go through the rest of the memo; 

it is filed, or will be filed, as part of the record in this case. I think we 

probably dwelled on it enough to this point. But, I would like to ask you _a couple 

of other questions. 

Whab if any awareness-- When did you first become aware that the 

Public Advocate had agreed to discontinuing any opposition to the completion of 

Hope Creek I? The 9th or the 10th? 

MR. CAMACHO: I would say late in the day, on the 10th. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Late in the day on the 10th. Actually after he signed 

it? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: What was your reaction? I guess you have given it 

to me - extraordinary? 

discussion. 

memorandum. 

MR. CAMACHO: Realize that we had a discussion that morning. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: That's right, with the Public Advocate? 

MR. CAMACHO: With the Public Advocate. 

SENATOR-STOCKMAN: Let me ask you about that. You were there for that 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. We were summoned to Trenton to discuss the 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Was it a give/take session? Did you have the clear 

impression that the Advocate was even then trying to reach a final decision? 

MR. CAMACHO: It was a give/take session with regard to our concerns, 

as expressed in our--

15 



SENATOR STOCKMAN: In.other words, Mr. Rodriguez didn't say to you, 

"wait a minute, fellows, I respect you, I admire you, etc., but, I have made up 

my mind. I agreed to sign this Agreement, and with all due respect, don't waste 

your time and my time on details. You can file a memo, but I have made up my 

mind." 

He listened. In other words, he wanted to hear from you, and from 

Mr. Makul, and he wanted to weigh what his decision, on behalf of the million 

or more ratepayers of the great State of New Jersey, should be as to whether 

to abandon Hope Creek I or not. Is that it? 

MR. CAMACHO: It was Al Nardelli and myself. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Right. I said Mr. Makul? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Nardelli, okay. But, other than that, he gave 

you the impression, you had the understanding, and it is your opinion, that on 

the morning of August 10th, even then, 1982, Joe Rodriguez, on behalf of the 

citizens of New Jersey, was struggling with the question of whether or not to 

sigh an agreement which would forever bar him, on behalf of those ratepayers, 

from challenging the need to complete Hope Creek I. 

MR. CAMACHO: I got the impression that he was going to delve into 

our particular concerns and hear us out. I got the impression at that meeting 

that he was not-- With regard to the clarification items and the technical 

items, specifically on page 2, and many of these items, he did not interpret 

them as being inconsistent with the Agreement. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You are now getting into his interpretation. What 

I was concerned .about -- and I think you have answered it -- was, it was a session 

which you certainly understood and believed, and you believed he did, was still 

part of that mix of decision-making by the Public Advocate himself. Let me ask 

you, were you here for Mr. Coleman's testimony yesterday? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Was there anything that Mr. Coleman testified to 

that surprised you in that regard? 

MR. CAMACHO: I have to admit, I was in and out, and I can't 
characterize in general. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Let me bring you to a statement that Mr. Coleman 

made to this Committee yesterday, Mr. Camacho. It reads as follows: 

"On August 4, 1982, .in a meeting with the Governor, the Public Advocate 

and members of the Governor's staff, the Public Advocate recommended tha_t the 

Cost Containment Agreement be filed with the Board of Public Utilities." 

Did you hear the Commissioner·of Energy so testify? 

MR. CAMACHO: I don't remember that spec if ic s ta temen t, Sena tor . 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I represent to you--

MR. CAMACHO: I will accept your representation. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: He not only gave us a written document that contains 

that suggestion, but he so testified. Now, let me ask you, ·as a knowledgeable 

attorney, working for many years now within the Office of the Public Advocate, 

can you reconcile -- let me put it in another way. Was the exchange that you 

had with Mr. Rodriguez consi,stent with his having recommended to Tom Kean on 

August 4th, that a Cost Containment Agreement be filed with the Board of Public 

Utilities? 
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MR. CAMACHO: I think at that point in time, he certainly discussed 

the particular matter with us, and we did debate back and forth with regard to 

our particular points. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: How could he have recommended to Tom Kean on August 

4th that a Cost Containment Agreement be filed with the Board of Public Utilities 

if six days later, he is in this debate with you over signing the Agreement? 

MR. CAMACHO: Particular:J.y, we were speaking about certain, I 

call them interpretations, I call them certain inherent items within an agree­

ment-- The concept of the Cost Containment.Agreement, I think, can perhaps be 

distinguished from the particulars with regard to how that would be worked out. 
i -1 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I have no further questions, thank you. First 

.I ,,will turn to other Senators, and then I will ask you if there is anything. you 

would like to add, Mr. Camacho, to the record. I would be happy to have you do 
! 
that. Senator Connors, do you have any question you would like to explore with 

Mr, Camacho? 

SENATOR CONNORS: Mr. Camacho, did you participate at all in this--

It is my understanding that you had no knowledge of this Cost Containment Agreement? 

MR. CAMACHO: Remember, I came in, I had the two meetings in July, 

I 11.ad the memorandum of August 9, and then I went to the meeting on August· 10, 

and that agreement was signed late in the afternoon of August 10. 

SENATOR CONNORS: So, you had no input into it at all? 

MR. CAMACHO: Well, .my discussions on August 10, and some of my concerns 

at the prior meeting actually, I believe, were taken into consideration in that. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Do you see any wisdom in this agreement now? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. One of the items that we had discussed at the meeting 

of August 10-- Remember, we had been placing reliance on S-975. We needed a 

forum, and our practical consideration was, could we actually win this before any 

forum? Having come to three realizations, if we could not succesi;;_fully win an 

abandonment of the plant on a litigated basis before the BPU, and based on information 

that had been provided on the August 10 meeting with regard to 975, which indicated 

that at earliest, it might be June l'or eight months thereafter before a 

resolution could be made. That was $320 million away. At that point, the Cost 

Containment Agreement, as clarified -- remember, after the 10th, there was quite 

a bit of activity with regard to clarifying. Prior to that time, I had not met 

with all of the principals that had negotiated. After that time, I had the 

opportunity to codify, or memorialize, some of the inherent items in the contract. 

I worked very hard on that~ I have an entire chronology on that which runs through 

September 28th. So, these concerns listed ori the second page were substantially 

alleviated in the subsequent joint position of parties, letters from Mr. Codey, 

negotiations with the parties. So, at that point in time, these concerns had been 

substantially alleviated. 

By that, I mean it was a situation of approaching the participants in 

saying, "Hen' is t.he· ooncern. How do we interpret that basic agree_ment? Are you at 

odds with it? If not, can we memorialize or get down what your understanding is?" 

So, after all of that work and tha_t clarification, I think we do have a positive 

item relative to what we would otherwise have llad at that ooint in time, facing it 

from a pragmatic point of view. 

What we otherwise would have had was simply a plant upon which a million 
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dollars a day was being spent. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Are you in favor of 975? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. I have a recommendation on this. As I said, on 

August 10th, we had gone through a timeframe on 975. Remember, prior to that 

time, we put a lot of credence in it. I am saying that in terms of just airing 

the issuant. A lot of emphasis has been placed on the action before the BPU. 

Assume that -- and again, .I speak as an i_ndividual at this point and not in 

the Department. It struck me that if the individuals who executed the Cost 

·containment Agreement did not sit on the blue-ribbon commission, why not have 

our cake and eat it too? Get the cap and proceed with a needs assessment. I 

think we could have both, and perhaps 975 could be moved as quickly as possible. 

SENATOR CONNORS: You had mentioned earlier--

MR. CAMACHO: (interrupts) Again, I have to add, I do not speak for 

either one of the individuals or that situation. I am saying that the situation 

right now is, we might be able to have both,- the Cost Containment Agreement 

and the n:eeds assessment. 

SENATOR CONNORS: You had mentioned earlier, at Hope Creek I now, 

they were spending money at the rate of a million dollars a day. 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. 

SENATOR CONNORS: And that after reviewing some of the documents 

that were given to me yesterday, which were quite revealing, it would certainly 

would appear that somebody lost their marbles with regard to going in one direction 

and then completely reversing field, unless there was just cause for it. We are 

spending money at a million dollars a day. Was it your recollection, when 975 was 

introduced, that this was a good bill and should be signed into law as quickly 

as possible? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. That was the basis for the August 9 memorandum. 

We. had put a lot of credence in that. Again, to clear the air--

SENATOR CONNORS: I looked at my Legislative Index here, and 975 was 

introduced on February 8th, and it still hasn't gone through, to be ready for 

signature into law. And a million dollars a day-- Could that be one of the 

reasons why this change in procedure-- I'm not trying to put words in your mouth, 

but, if this was such a good bill--

MR. CAMACHO: (interrupting) Let me answer that most directly by saying 

that at the August 10 meeting, if we were looking out toward June of 1983, if 

people are telling us that is the shortest period of time within which a disposition 

could be made, ata million dollars a day -- or $30 million a month, 36 plus 10 

for crude interest -- we are talking another $350 million. Remember, the 

abandonment cost had been projected in the $2 billion to $2.5.billion range at that 

point in time. Looking at it on that date, we are now staring down the barrels 

of perhaps something that is up in the $2.8 billion, or perhaps the slippage of 

$3 billion dollar range, So, there is a point in time where one has to say, if 

you have a positive-- If you ha,ve the Cost Containment Agreement-- We were·saying 

_to Commissioner Rodgriguez, "hold upon the signing, rely on this." At that point 

in time, in good faith, how could one say, "hold up any longer," at the same point 

on that? It just reaches a point where one has to move with what one has. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Mr. Camacho, .you are pretty close, I guess to Mr. 

Nardelli? 
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MR. CAMACHO: Yes. Al and I. were among the ori_ginal four who created 

the Division of Rate Counsel - the charter members - in 1974. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Were you shqcked to hear.that Mr. Nardelli was fired? 

MR. CAMACHO: · I was at that point in time~ 

SENATOR CONNORS: Why was Mr. Nardelli fired? 

MR. CAMACHO: That was never explained to me in detail. It was listed 

as administrative reasons. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Have you discussed this with Mr. Nardelli at the 
time, before the time, or after the time? 

MR. CAMACHO: I did speak to Al about it, about what our relationship_ 

would be after that point in time :and realized at that point, understandably, 

that Mr. Nardelli was very upset. so, I did speak to him on a limited basis. 

My.answer is yes. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Why did he think he was fired? 

MR. CAMACHO: At various po_ints in time, he had indicated to me a 
ful·l aamut of reasons, going from political to other reasons. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Political? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. 

SENATOR CONNORS: When you say political, what would that connote 

MR. CAMACHO: He had spoken to me on occasion and indicated that he 
felt that he had been perhaps on the wrong side ~f the prior.election. That was his 

view expressed to me. 

SENATOR CQNNORS: He was on the wrong-- That was-~ 

MR. CAMACHO: In other words, he_ was on the-- He had~-

SENATOR CONNORS:. That was one of t.he reasons he felt he was fired? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes , he expressed that to me. He expressed t,o me the 

independent situation. He wanted to be more independent-than the situation would 

permit at that point in time. Now, these are words that Al said .to me, after that 

point in time. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Had you known that Mr. Nardelli was not of the 

persuasion of the Public Advocate? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. 
SENATOR CONNORS: You did? But that hadn't·influenced his decision or 

your decisiors up until that point in time? 

-MR. CAMACHO: I can't speak for Commissioner Rodriguez, but certainly 
I ha.d no decision-making process ·with regard tQ that. • · . . 

-. SENATOR CONNORS: Did Mr. Nardelli ever talk to you concerning his 

firing by niaking any statements that he··would. now, concerning this, that he was. 

going to embarrass the Governor, or embarrass the Public Advocate~ he was going 

to blow the lid off? 
MR. CAMACHO: ( short pause) I'm trying to recall. . I think it was 

well into these proceedings that he did make· a c·omment to that degree. But again, 

I had perceived that his perspective was rather upset at that point in time. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Pardon? 

MR. CAMACHO: He was rather upset at that time. 

SENATOR CONNORS: I don It know if I got an answer•. 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes, at that point in time. 
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SENATOR CONNORS: He said he was going to blow the lid off of this 

thing? 

MR. CAMACHO: I don't know if it was "blow the lid off this," but 

he was going to bring this to the attention of the public, was something that he 

would _say. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Bring what to the attention of the public? 

MR. CAMACHO: Just referring to the entire situation. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Has anyone thr.e"ltened you with your job? 

MR. CAMACHO: No. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Ha-s anyone coerced you into making any statements 

and.talked to you about this, from the people who are higher up there in 

government? 

MR. CAMACHO: No. 

SENATOR CON,NORS: In your opinion, if Mr. Nardelli was still iri the 

employ of the Public Advocate, would he have been with the Publ.ic Advocate or 
against the. Public Advocate? 

MR. CAMACHO: I really can't answer that. I would have to defer to 

Al. on that. That is a subjective--

SENATOR CONNORS: Well, I realize that might be an improper question 

and speculation on your part, but I felt compelled to ask it, from the standpoint 

that apparently there has been some testimony here that has indicated _that he 

was.mad at this, and he was going to do something that was going to embarrass the 

Administration. 

Mr. Camacho, not having had the full opportunity to digest all of these 

documents, your Department works from time to time with the Department of Energy? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes, that is. correct - in the rate case. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Did you ever see this? (passes report to Mr. 

Camacho) Did you ever see this report? 

MR. CAMACHO: I personally don't recall having seen that. 

SENATOR CO~NORS: Well, I was just wondering if you did, because on 

May 6 this was handed to me yesterday, and I had the opportunity to review it 
Commissioner Coleman had apparently developed this Hope Creek I:- The Need For 

Review. Going through it, on page two and three, he talks about strategic 
options: one, abandonment; two, cancellation with a hypothetical 400 megawatts 

coal as partial replace; three, continued construction for the sale of capacity 

of ownership; and, five, cost containment. That is why I wondered if you have 

seen this document. 

MR. Cl\MACHO: No, I hav.e not. I don't recall ever .seeing that. 

SENATOR CONNORS: That's all the questions I have for the moment. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Senator Laskin? 

SENATOR CONNORS: Oh, I have one more, excuse me. I have one more. 

In your opinion, could and should this agreement have been negotiated without 

the Public Adve>cate's participation? 

MR. CAMACHO: By the Public Advocate, you mean Joseph Rodriguez himself? 

SENATOR CONNORS: Yes. 

MR. CAMACHO: No~ In my view, it was the type of an agreement where 

I believe his participation should have been included .. 
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SENATOR CONNORS: Pardon? 

MR. CAMACHO: It is the type of an agreement where his participation 

should be included. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Should be included? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Could it have been reached without his participation, 
in your opinion? 

MR. CAMACHO: I don't believe that the utilities would have participated, 
absent our Department being involved in this. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Thank you. That is all I have. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Senator Laskin? 

SENATOR LASKIN: Mr. Camacho, I have some very simple questions, 

because Mr. Stockman and Mr. Co~nors understand what you are talking about, with 

all of this scientific stuff - I don't. 

I want to know, did the Public Advocate, prior to January 1, 1982, 

ever come out in opposition to Hope Creek I? 

MR. CAMACHO: By coming out in opposition, we had not filed any direct 
testimony. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Was there any public statement by the Public Advocate, 

whether his names is Jones, VanNess, Rodriguez? I don't care who occupies the 

seat. Was there any public statement by the Public Advocate opposing Hope .Creek I? 

MR. CAMACHO: I would say there were statements saying it was 

under scrutiny, but, I am just uncertain as to whether or not there was formal 

opposition. 

SENATOR LASKIN: So it was being studied? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. 

SENATOR LASKIN: When did the construction of Hope Creek I begin? 

MR. CAMACHO: I guess the project goes- all. the back to 1969, with the 

New Bolt Island project. So, it would have been the early 70's. 

SENATOR LASKIN: So, since the early 70's, up until right this very 

moment, or up until a couple months ago, the Hope Creek I project has been 

studied and scrutinized by the Public Advocate? 

MR. CAMACHO: Again, for a good portion of that time, I did not 

specifically work on the issue. You will recai1, in 70'--

SENATOR LASKIN: (interrupting) Whether you did or-- I'm not-- I 
don't--

MR. CAMACHO: I don't have-- I would assume there was a construction 

docket, and it was included in there and it was scrutinized in there. Yes. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Let me make a point clear. I don't mention the name 

of the person occupying the seat, whether it be you or any number of people, 

I am talking about the position. Since 1969 or the early 70's, this construction 

has been underway, and the Public Advocate has been studying or scrutinizing 

Hope Creek I? 

MR. CAMACHO: Again, before my time, I assumed so. I assumed, at 

least in 1976, that it was part of the construction docket. 

SENATOR LASKIN: You started when? 

MR. CAMACHO: Actually, I became involved with the case on the revenue 

requirements side in 1979, and I was involved with the rate case itself in 1981. 

SENATOR LASKIN: All right. I'm just trying to understand- some very basic 
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points. Since 1969, this construction started, ,and we are now in 1982, and this 

controversy has now erupted over who did or didn't oppose it. I am having a 

difficult time understanding that - whether it be Jones, VanNess, Rodriguez, 

or anybody else, it is a lot of years. That is why I am asking these questions. 

Did Mr. Nardelli, for example -- apparently he is the fellow who 

started most of this -- come out prior to January of 1982 with any kind of a 

pul;ilic document, or even a intra-Public Advocate document, opposing Hope Creek I? 

MR. CAMACHO: I don't recall that he did during that 19.81 timeframe. 

But, that is my recollection. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Anytime before January 1, 1982. ·Going back to 19~­

MR_. CAMACHO: What went on in the construction docket, again, Mr. 

Nardelli would have to speak to that timeframe. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Okay. You are not aware of any? 

MR. CAMACHO: Right. 

SENATOR LASKIN: As of January 1, 1982, or thereabout, when the 

Administration changed, how much money had already been spent on the Hope Creek 

I project? 

MR. CAMACHO: January 19, 1982 is your timeframe? 

SENATOR LASKIN: Yes. This year. 

MR. CAMACHO: A little over a billion dollars, I think. 

SENATOR LASKIN: There was a memorandum handed to me in this pile 

of memos that we were given by our Committee, where there is a statement about 

"vigorous efforts to have Hope Creek I cancelled" - some statement that was 

made, I presume, by somebody in the Public Advocate this year. I am trying 

to understand where these vigorous efforts were before the last few months. 

I don't understand that. 
. . 

MR. CAMACHO: Again, I speak from the 1981 timeframe. Certainly_, after 

1982 those vigorous efforts were there, but in the prior time period--

SENATOR LASKIN: (interrupting) Do you understand? In 1982. 

MR. CAMACHO: No. I have defined it as kind of a back burner type 

thing in the base rate case, for very pragmatic and very real reasons. 
SENATOR LASKIN: I understand all of that. But, the vigorous opposition 

that I am now hearing so much about really didn't start until this year. 

MR. CAMACHO: It certainly started in 1982. The vigorous opposition 

started then, yes; 

SENATOR LASKIN: By the Public Advocate? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. Prior back in time, again, I am speaking from 

1981 on. Earlier in time, I would .have some difficulty with regard to that, 
. . 

in terms of actually knowing what public documents had been issued. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Th_ere was a stipulation filed -- which was also given 

to me today -- on December 1.4, 1981. What stipulation.is that? 
MR. CAMACHO: That is the stipulation, which eventually was termed a 

joint position, whereby.PS agreed to abandon the HOJ?e Creek II unit. Part of that 

agreement was that the Public Advocate gave up the argument of contesting need 

through that point in time. 

SENATOR LASKIN; That was December of 1981? 

MR. CAMACBO: Yes. 
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SENATOR LASKIN: ·okay. So, _that would have been under the prior 
Administration? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Who was the Public Advocate in .December of 1981? 

I am going to over-simplify it. 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes, yes. I was trying to .think in terms of what had 
happened. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Who was the Public Advocate then? 

MR. CAMACHO: That would have been Stanley VanNess. 

SENATOR LASKIN: And Mr. Nardelli worked there at that time? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Okay. So, at least as of December of 1981, a month 

prior to the new Administration, that memo came down and presumably, it was seen 

and checked by those in control of the Public Advocate. 

MR. CAMACHO: I can make that assumption, yes. 

SENATOR LASKIN: I am only assuming that; I don't know how it works 

in that office. Now, in .that stipulation of December 14, 1981 -- by the way, 

do you have it? I don't want to mislead you. 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. 

SENATOR LASKIN: All right. There is a reference-- I just had a few 

seconds to jot some notes down, and I am going to try to quote: "No controversy 

exists regarding Hope Creek I's two-unit design, and the need to construct the 

facility." Does that appear somewhere like that in the memo? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Senator Laskin, we have been through that. I 

don't say this to criticize you; you have a right to go through this further. 

The witness was questioned at length about the implications and the history of 

that document at the beginning of his testimony. 

SENATOR LASKIN: I'm not going t_o go into it. I'm not going in to 

implications or interpretations; I just want to know whether it is there or not. 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes, Senator. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Now, after that memo, there were memos in this year, 

1982, I assume, that said just the opposite, that there is a need to stop the 

construction. of Hope Creek I, or abandon t~e project. I presume you--? 

MR. CAMACHO: We filed a motion before the Board in February, indicating, 

calling for a moratorium, and asking that the need be assessed by the Board. 

SENATOR LASKIN: You did that this year, in 1982? 
MR. CAMACHO: Yes. In February of 1982, that was filed by Mr. 

Nardelli. 
SENATOR LASKIN: All right. I'm not going to ask any more questions. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: If I could just ask a couple of questions, trying 

to get back - on this question of history of opposition, I have in front of me 

a memo from M_r. Potter to Mr. Rodriguez,. dated September 23, 1982, which purports 

to spell out some of the history. As a matter of fact, it is Re: History of 

Publ,ic Advocate Efforts to Question in Need for Hope Creek and Other Nuclear 

Facilities. That may help refresh your memory, or these may have been things that 

you simply were not involved in, Mr. Camacho. But, Mr. Potter points out that 

in 1975, the Public Advocate appealed the coastal permit granted Hope Creek I and 

II by the Department of Environmental Protection, on the grounds that conservation 
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alternatives had not been considered. The court rejected the approach .and really 

said the matter was in the jurisdiqtion of PUC. 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes, Senator. Again that was in that timeframe. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Right. Again, he continues. "In 1976, the Public 

Advocate filed comprehensive testimony with the PUC in this docket, which challenged 

the need for.Hope Creek as well as the four other nuclear plants- which Public 

Service planned to build. These also included four floating nuclear plants. 

While this matter was still pending, fublic Service cancelled orders for four 

nuclear units, after steadfastly arguing that they were needed and economical 

before both Federal and State a·genciesi thus by ·1~80, only Hope Creek I and II 

remained under active utility sponsorship." 

I am continuing this, in Mr. Potter's memo: "In 1981, the Public 

Advocate filed testimony with the.Board to show that energy conservation could 

substitute for new power projects, including the two Hope Creek units. This 

was part of our response to Public Service's petition for $536 million, the 

largest rate petition in New Jersey's history." So, there was history of 

opposition to Hope Creek I by the Public Advocate, prior to Mr. Rodriguez.' s 

coming in. But, as a matter of fact, Mr. Rodriguez authorized and.pursued a 

vigorous public policy of opposition from rebruary on, to the completion of Hope 

Creek I, didn't he? 

MR. CAMACHO: I would say the Public Advocate, as a department_in 

1982, had done that. Again, your reference to the prior indications and the 

memorandum was in. a timeframe 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But I don't say that critically. You weren't in 

on some of this, I understand. But, as far as the record goes, there was 

opposition? 

MR. CAMACHO: Oh, yes. In February, there was a firm motion to that. 

SENATOR LASKIN: February of this year. 

MR. CAMACHO: February of 1982? Yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I'm sorry, Senator Connors.? 

SENATOR CONNORS: You work with the Rate Counsel? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes, that is correct, 

SENATOR CONNORS: Closely? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. I am currently the Director of the Division of 

Rate Counsel. 

SENATOR CONNORS: How long have you been working in that capacity? 

MR. CAMACHO: As Director, since September 30th. 

SENATOR CONNORS: As the Assistant Director? 

MR. CAMACHO: Assistant Director went back to February of 1982. 

SENATOR CONNORS: And before that? 

MR. CAMACHO: Before that, with about a six-month hiatus, I had been 

there since the inception in 1974. 

SENATOR CONNORS: In 1974, all right. Then you are pretty familiar 

with Mr. Makul, Socially? 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. Ray, of course, works at the Division of Rate 

Counsel, and we have been involved in cases together. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Yesterday, in talking with Mr. Makul on this, he stated 

. that it was a policy .that they were going. to back into, the State was going to 
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back into -- I'm using his words -- "We were backing into the abandonmerit of 

Hope Creek I by increasing the cost per kilowatt by cancelling Hope Creek II." 

Are you aware of that policy? Were you ever aware of that policy? Was that 

developed during the time you were with the State? 

MR. CAMACHO: No, that.was not developed with me. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Did you ever hear of that policy? 

MR. CAMACHO: You have mentioned it subsequent to that time. I have 

heard that rationale, .but at the time we entered the 1981 stipulation, I had 

believed we had entered it to obta.in the abandonment of Hope Creek II in good 

faith And sincere effort. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Do you understand my question? 

MR. CAMACHO; Yes. Going into that stipulation, that had not been 

discussed with me. That was going to be entered, and then there was going to be 

a backing into Hope Creek I. But I had no knowledge of that. 

SENATOR CONNORS: In other words, all of you fellows sit around the 

desk and figure, "well, if we cancel Hope Creek II, this will raise the cost 

per kilowatt and give us a good arguing case for cancelling Hope Creek I down 

the road." 

heard that . 

MR. CAMACHO: That had not been expressed to me. 

SENATOR CONNORS: You have hear.d that policy? 

MR. CAMACHO: Especially prior to December of 1981. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Pardon? 

MR. CAMACHO: Prior to the signing of that stipulation, I had not 

. SENATOR CONNORS: When did you hear it in 1982? 

heard it? 

MR. CAMACHO: Certainly Mr. Makul testified to that yesterday. 

SENATOR CONNORS: In other words, yesterday was the first time you 

MR. CAMACHO: It was testified to yesterday and I had heard it mentioned 

at the office prior to that time, within a month, something of that nature. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Is there any way that kind of a policy could be 

held from you? 

MR. CAMACHO: I .would hope not. I don't think it should have. I am 

just uncertain as to whether it was actually the policy of the Divisi.on of Rate 

Counsel or not. 

SENATOR CONNORS: And so yesterday was the first time you ever heard it. 

MR. CAMACHO: I had heard it in the context of a discussion about a 

month ago, but at the time we decided the December-~ 

general. 

SENATOR CONNORS: (interrupting) 'what context of discussion and by whom? 

MR. CAMACHO: Speaking to Mr. Makul, in terms of just the plants in 

.SENATOR CONNORS: So it wasn't any kind of a policy, to your knowledge? 
' MR. CAMACHO: To my knowledge, no. I had participated, coming in :the 

fall of 1981, into the stipulation. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Okay. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Would you like to-­

SENATOR LASKIN: I have a follow~up question. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Oh, I'm sorry. 
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SENATOR LASKIN: I don't want to. insinuate or infer that there may 

be some political tones in some of the questioning, but I find that there are. 

L.et me just go over, again, basic issues. - prior opposition and. present opposition. 

Now, it has been explained by Mr. Nardelli and referred to in the record, that 

there was opposition prior to this year. A couple of things were pinpointed as 

the strong opposition by the Public Advocate, which I don't deem to be strong 

opposition - I will tell you that in advance, because if. yo·u really wanted to oppose 

something, you could do as good a job as you are doing on Hope Creek II. But, 

you didn't do that with Hope Creek L - you meaning the Public Advocate, not you 

personally. 

There was a mention about an appeal of a costal permit granted to 

Public Service Electric and Gas for Hope Creek I and II as a means of opposition 

by the Public Advocate. But, wasn't that appeal by the New Jersey Public Interest 

Group and not by the Public Advocate? Didn't PIRG reallymake that appeal to.the 

courts? 

MR. CAMACHO: I believe that to be the case, Senator. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Yes, they did. It is the case. 

MR. CAMACHO: Again, that is during the time period prior to my direct 

involv.ement. 

SENATOR LASKIN: Okay. But it is the case, because that appeal was by 

PIRG, not by the Public Advocate. Now, are you also familiar with a tran1:1ition 

report from the Division of Rate Counsel-- I want to give you the exact date so 

there'is no question about it. Instead of playing with this, why don't I show 

it to you. (shows transition report to Mr. Camacho) Have you ever seen this 

before? 

MR. CAMACHO: Senator, I don.'t r·ecall ever seeing it before. 

SENATOR LASKIN: I don't want to mislead anybody. Let me just quote 

you from this report, which I think is a transition report, that if ypu look in 

the records, you will find it. I don't want to indicate that you ·have seen it. 

In this report, I just want to read one statement which sort of pops 

out in my face: "There is no .objection to the need for the Hope Creek I plant, 
which is due to become operational in late 1986." I assume this is a transition 
report from one Rate· C.ounsel to another. '.!?hat is what bothers me. I find every­

thing in the record indicating not approval of Hope Creek I -- I don't want to 

infer that -- but no real long, standing, vocal opposition by the Public Advocate 

to Hope Creek I. I am not saying that they shouldn't have opposed it; maybe they 

should have. Maybe there was no need for any of these nuclear plants. But, what 

bothers me is, now, a billion dollars later,.a billion dollars of money spent 

in this year, 1982, when the .Administration has changed from one party to the 

other -- and I really think that has a lot to do with it there is now this big 

testimony that there was always opposition to Hope Creek :r, and only because there 

is a new Administration in power, we shelve the opposition. That bothers me. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Excuse me, is that a question, Senator? I am 

getting confused now. 

SENATOR LASKIN: 

but I didn't say anything. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: 

SENATOR LASKIN: 

That's okay. I was confused by some of yours too, 

(laughter) 

Was t:qat a question? 

It was sort of a question. 
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MR. CAMACHO: Senator, .in terms of your characterization about what · 

should or should not have been done, I did go through the history from February 

1981, and you recall, ·I termed it a back burner-type issue and gave an analysis 

bf why we did what we did, from a pragmatic point of view when .dollars were spent. 

Let me say this, we have taken a pragmatic approach right along, that is the 

Division of Rate Counsel. Whichever plant is farthest out in time, and most 

speculative, we try to test. So, .I do wish to indicate to you that we vigorously 

, pursued what we perceived. We had an opportunity to litigate and prevail on. 

I don't want to leave the impression that we·ignored that in any one. I have 

listed that as a back burner issue, and I have gone through the various elements 

of how we came to that conclusion and why II became so paramount, an.d why I 

believed we had gone into that stipulation of 1981, believing thati again, 

abandoning II was a major accomplishment for the Division of Rate Counsel. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Whatever the history Of the Public Advocate, up to 

February of 1982, pro, con, lukewarl)l, lukewarm against, lukewarm for, what have 

you, there is no question, Mr. Camacho, is there, that in February, March, April, 

May, June, and July of 1982, the position of the Public Advocate was clear, and 

it was public, and it was well-known, and it was that Hope Creek I should not be 

bui.lt. Isn't that a fair statement? 

MR. CAMACHO: You have an awful lot in there, Senator Stockman. 

February, we filed our motion, clearly indicating that'. we should assess the need. 

We pressed forward on that motion before the BPU. I think the order came out in 

March. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You testified on S-975 aroUhd that time. 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. And this was the factual basis that we were pressing-­

I guess I would phrase it in terms of looking at the need for the plant in that 

timeframe. 

SENATOR CONNORS: When was that? 

MR. CAMACHO: That was the .spring of 1982. The motion was filed in 

February of 1982, asking the Board to impose a moratorium and question of need .• 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Let me share with you some public statements of 

the Public Advocate that may or may not refresh your recollection. This is a 

statement by the Public Advocate on April 12, 1982, comments on the "BPU's 

Proposed Rules Covering Certification of Need," published March 1, 1982. 

"One, the final rules of the Board should apply to the Hope Creek 

nuclear generating station - Unit I .,. with full force and effect,. so that this 
costly project can be terminated and alternatives begun." 

He goes on to say, "The single, most important economic question 

facing the Board of Public Utilities, and possibly the State, is whether to 

permit Public Service to continue with the financing and construction of Hope 

Creek Power Plant - Unit I. Nothing else, including the bankruptcy of Jersey 

Central Power and Light, approaches the consequences to the average consumer of 
letting Public Service finish this multi-,-billion dollar project. If it is ever 

completed, it is now scheduled for December, 1986, .some 12 years behind the 

original schedule, and 2,000 percent over budget. Hope Creek will more than 

double the total rate base of New Jersey's largest utility, merely to increase 

its capacity to generate power by six to ten percent. Residential rates would 

cata.pult from $.08 or $.09 per kilowatt hour, already among the highest in the 
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United States, to $.26 or $.27, yet, the company _claims_--". etc. I. won't read·it 

all to you, but I suggest to you-, if you recall that statement, or something-of 
I . 

that sort, being prepared and made public by the Public Advocate in April of 1982--? 

MR. CAMACHO:. I recall that being prepared. Could you indicat_e· the date 

on that, Senator? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: That was supplied to us by Mr. Potter. 

MR. CAMACHO: To my knowledge, this had_been released. This was released. 
SENATOR CONNORS: Released, did you say? 

MR. CAMACHO: To the public, filed with the BPU. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: For instance, .I show you a Department of the 

Public Advocate Rate Counsel Advisory Committee ~genda, publicly published on 
Friday, May 28, 198-2. Item two, The Future of Hope Creek. I: Holding New Jersey 

Hostage. A, ll. Brief History of Hope Creek Nuclear Power Plant;. B, Why .Public 

Service says that Hope Cre_ek is Needed; and C, Why Hope .Creek is Not Needed. 

Did you ever see that.flier? (Chairman shows Mr. Camacho fl,ier) 

it before? 

MR. CAMACHO: Senator, I believe I have. .As part of a packet, yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Are you familiar with that? Have you ever seen 

MR. CAMACHO: Yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: So, in July, the Public Advocate is appearing before 

his Advisory group of volunteer citizens who are supposed to_help him in shaping 

public policy in this area, expressing clearly and unequivocably that this plant 
should not be built, isn't that. so? 

MR. CAMACHO: Again, I prefer you to ask that question of Mr. Potter, 

in terms of the actual discussions and presentations. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You weren't at that gathering, I gather. 

MR. CAMACHO:. I was at the gat~ering, but word-fqr-word, I-don't 
recall what the situation was. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I have two other questions for you, Mr. Camacho. 

You repeatedly have said we needed a forum on this question of opposing the 

completion of Hope Creek I - "We needed a forum." 

MR. CAMACHO: We had to consider -- that was phrased poorly~- what 
forum, if any, was available at that point in time. That is a _better way to put 

. that. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: •Well, I suppose I am.troubled by the inference, 

the impression, inescapable, .it seems to me, that you .are saying that you had 

written the Board of Public Utilities. off.as a body,quasi-judicial, objective, 

independent, open-minded, prepareid to listen and reac;:h a determin~ti_on in the 
public interest. 

MR. CAMACHO: Not for thos.e reasons, Senator. Remember, by the time 

we had been considering that, the BPU, on three separate occasions, had _issued 

orders, finding the need for Hope Creek I. That was March 4th. The.reasons for 

that-- I just don't want to characterize how they got there. They had their 

reasons for doing that, which t ~ust respect, 

·sENATOR STOCKMAN: But there had never been, particularly by the 

Public Advocate, a presentation- to the other side. That is. what troubles me. Isn't 
that a· fact? I know you are referring to--
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MR. CAMACHO: In the 1981 ,rate case, there was no direct testimony 

indicating the abandonment was in the public interest. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: So, the public had --

MR. CAMACHO: Let me get back to the original question, .as to why, 

at that point -- I'm talking about the August 10 tirneframe now. The BPU, 

three times on formal occasions, found that they were convinced that Hope Creek 

I should be completed for demand reasons as well as economic reasons. Again, 

the reasons on that-- They have their own reasons on that, in terms of state­

wide needs and others - some of which I disagree with, but I have to respect. 

So, I had to realize the practicalities, but I just didn't want to .characterize 

it in terms of having foregone some type of duty or something of that nature. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But, doesn't hope spring eternal? Isn't it so 

that a body of that sort is such that you have to work on the assumption that 

they are always ready, even to see their past mistakes; even to recognize that 

perhaps there wasn't an inadequate look at this question, because as a matter of fact, 

history, I think, will pretty clearly indichte that there never was. In fact, 

some memos within the Public Advocate's Office seem to clearly suggest that 

~here was never presented, that vigorous, full, open presentation on behalf of 

the citizens of New Jersey on the merits of Hope Creek I; and in fact, if things 

stay the way they are, that will never happen. Isn't that a fair statement? 

MR. CAMACHO: But before the BPU, I don't believe there is the 

remotest possibility of prevailing on that issue. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But isn't what I just suggested a fair statement? 

MR. CAMACHO: That one should always try is what you are saying. Is 

that the import of your question? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You have to assume, unless we are going to get 

totally out of context-- Let's be frank about it. Maybe the Board of Public 

Utilities ought to be looked at more closely out of this. We know that the 

Public Advocate, in a certain sense, is on the spot here today, and I am sure 

he will take good care of himself .. I see him in the back of the room. I we.lcome 

him, and I am sure we will hear from him. But, maybe, if one looks real carefully 

at what happened here, we ought to be turning our spotlight on the .Board of Public 

Utilities, because tucked in all of this seems to be a suggestion by the Public 

Advocate that, "Hey, let's not beat our head against thewallwith a BPU on this 

issue. Let's find something else. Let's get the Legislature to set up a blue 

ribbon commission, or I don't know what." That troubles me. 
MR. CAMACHO: I don't want to characterize the Board as just 

in derogation at that point in time. Remember, there was a whole history. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I didn't say it, I am asking it. 

MR. CAMACHO: I am perceiving-- When we are looking out into the 

future, is it viable? Do we have the remotest chance of prevailing on that issue 

before the BPU? The answer .is no. I cite the three orders. I cite our having 

rescinded that joint position in 1981. There is ?(n entire history. The BPU 

has its reasons, and I guess everyone has to read those reasons and come to 

their own decision. Maybe that is the way it should be left. 
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SENATOR STOCKMAN: I guess the greatest surprise in the whole history 

of this business might come if the Board of Public Utilities just decides, one 

of these days, that Hope Creek should not he built. 

SENATOR CONNORS: What was that statement? (laughter) 

MR. CAMACHO: At this posture, I have estimated-- It is awfully 

hypothetical. I would estimate that at this point, they have the authority-­

Well, they have the authority to do that as contested by some of the utilities. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, are there some of the utilities contesting? 

I was lost on that. I lost. Senator Connors. Let me repeat it. I am suggesting 

that even today, with this proposed cost containment Agreement, that the Board 

of Public Utilities might decide that it isn't in the public interest, even now, 

to complete Hope Creek I, mightn'tthey? 

MR. CAMACHO: Remotest possibility? Perhaps. But, in my view, to 

litigate that before that forum at this point would not be very effective or 

viable at this point - given .the history. 

SENATOR LASKIN: I think he means legally do they have that right, 

not whether or not they will make that, 

MR. CAMACHO: They certainly legally have that possibility, but when 

you go back to the history, you go back through the recent past, and go through 

three orders where they specifically found the need for specific reasons is how 

you weicth your chances . - very remote. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But Roger, I think I asked you this before and I 

think you agreed with me. Let me press it just once more and I will move on. 

In all three of those settings, for·a variety of reasons"-- and I am not trying 

to impose fault or non-fault. As a matter of fact, Joe Rodriguez was not the 

Public Advocate then, so we certainly can't beat up on him for that.-- if one 

looks at the record, it is patently evident and clear that the citizens of this 

State did not have a Public Advocate in there vigorously pressing the opposite 

proposition, that is, that it shouldn't be complet~d. Because, in the last 

and most significant setting, it was an effort by the Public Advocate, 

for tactical reasons, or otherwise, to try to knock out Hope Creek II. I don't 
say that--

MR. CAMACHO: Let me get back into that. When that case started, 
Hope Creek I was $800 million spent. In the history of New Jersey, no plant 

has been abandoned above $400 million. So, your timeframe must go back well 

befbre that time. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Mr. Camacho, we aren't bound by what has happened 

to date. If anything has been learned out of the history of nuclear plants, 
; 

isn't it that we can keep on learning? We can point to abandoned nuclear plant 

after abandoned nuclear plant for sums in excess of a billion dollars, I believe, 

which were precedent-setting. There are people who sincerely. in their hearts 

hold up this proposed agreement as precedent-setting history; but, there are other 

people equally ready to hold up the precedent-setting in other places, in the 

not too distant past. There has been enough wisdom to say, despite a tremendous 

investment, "Stop this nuclear plant .. We have lea.rned enough about the problems 
associated with disposal of fuel, skyrocketing costs, cut needs, a new vision 

of what can be done with conservation, s.olar energy, etc." So, I mean we don't 

have to be locked in by the proposition that never has New Jersey done this 
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before, and it can't do it-- Isn't that the meaning--

MR, CAMAGHtl1 No, I think you hiwe t5 evaluate~~ 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: (continuing) -- of the members of the Public 

Utility Commission? 

MR. CAMACHO: The particulars for out-of-state jurisdictions are the 

particulars there. I think one has to evaluate one's chances of litigating 

and winning before the agency that controls this particular issue. Again, I am 

not saying that in derogation. They have their reasons. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Maybe we should have elected members of the Board 

of Public Utilities, What do you think? 

MR. CAMAC:Hbi Well, ! th.:i.hk-- Again, that is beyond .the scope of this 

hearing, but--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Hey, you're there. You are in the high of it. 

MR. CAMACHO: One, my own view, my own personal view, that has to 

be considered not as positive as most people think, but--

flF.Nl\'l'OH 6'l'OCKMAN1 Okay. I Wii§ looking for ii quiok fi~ing; I gUe§§, 

All right. One more question. You emphasized that you did, after the 10th, 

get into this business of this Agreement, and as a result of getting into it 

and a lot of hard work and I don't doubt that after August 10th you put in 

a tremendous amount of time and a lot of energy, and I am sure talent -- you 

did quite a bit of clarification. You substantially alleviated in it some doubts 

and so on. well, Mr. Camacho -- correct me if I am wrong -- the deal was struck. 

The Agreement was made on August 10th, that bound the Public Advocate, and as a 

matter of fact, that Agreement did not even specifically refer to the intent of 

the parties to clarify it by a later stipulation in the document itself, did it? 

MR. CAMACHO: As I recall, when I first saw that on the 10th, there 

was testimony by Everett Morris next to it. PSE&G at that point was clarifying, 

or going to clarify, with the testimony of Everett Morris. What I did was 

parallel that action. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I'm glad you brought that Up. As a matter of· fact, 

there.was something in that record that greatly concerned me. In the course of 

trying to clarify that Agreement, there was a gentleman, Ed Lloyd, head of Public 

Interest Research Group, here in the audience, a long-time advocate for citize.n's 

interests and I think a respected participant in this whole issue. Mr. Lloyd, 

now independently, after the Public Advocate had signed this Agreement, had some 
questions as by law he had a right to do. I want to refer you to what happened 

as he proceeded in .that hearing, because that was the one last question I. wanted 

to ask you. 

Mr. Lloyd, of Public Interest Research Group; was questioning this 

Mr. Morris --who you referred to, was, of course, Public Service Electric and Gas 

on the definition of "extraordinary events." ,Mr. Lloyd was obviously nervous and 

was uncomfortable. . As you know, I,·· among others, later ,testified to the BPU 
that I was greatly troubled.:._ and with all due respect to Commissioner Coleman, 

who is concerned about the motives of people who question that "extraordinary 

events" clause, and I will let history judge my motives in it, and with all due 

respect to the Public Advocate, who seems to be at odds with my view of it. He 

and I will have an opportunity to discuss that later, as to whether or not it 

was really foolish for. anybody to try to hone in .on a better definition or 
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restriction of that. We have the effort by Mr. Lloyd -- who, of course, was not 

a signator to that Agreement -- pressing for a definition of "extraordinary events." 

The attorney for Public Service objected, saying, "The parties did agree that 

neither Public Service nor the Public Advocate, nor the Department of Energy 

would define 'extraordinary events,' because it was incapable of definition." 

That is on page 142 of that hearing. And then you, on behalf of the citizens 

of New Jersey, said to the Board, "Yes, I would concur in that objection, President 

Cirrran." And by that position, you, on behalf of the c,itizens of New Jersey, 

blocked Mr. Lloyd in his interest as a citizen -- and I suspect on behalf of many 

people who have expressed concern to him about this agreement. You joined 

Public Service in blocking him from exploring the meaning of those "extraordinary 

events." I find that extremely troubling, and I find that as probably the clearest 

evidence of why I am uncomfortable about the ability of the Public Advocate, from 

the signing point on, to effectively, fully protect all of the interests of the 

citizens of the State of New Jersey in this $4 billion plus type venture. 

Can you explain that? 

MR. CAMACHO: Senator, at that point in time, it was the duty of the 

Board to rule on the disposition of Mr. Lloyd's motion,- at that point in time. 

This is the Public Advocate acting in accordance with its prior agreement. 

In other words, you phrase it in terms of the Public Advocate precluding Mr. Lloyd. 

These are the motions made out. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Urginq the Boarp, to block him. All right, I. see your 

subtle distinction, Mr. Camacho. I see your--

MR. CAMACHO: At that posture, we had gone through a clarification 

procedure with regard to the "extraordinary events," the claime·r waive· provision, 

which you read in the joint stipulation, the agreement that we would be able to 

investigate facts as reported-- We had gone through an entire procedure with 

PSE&G at that posture, which underlied the stipulation which we were presenting 

to that Board. We hold that out in the public interest. At that posture, that 

is a legitimate argument before the Board. The Board decides--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I understand, Mr. Camacho--

MR. CAMACHO: (continues) -- is the procedure set forth in the 
stipulation with six and six rule, the early fact-finding, ahd the ability to get 

to those facts earlier than what otherwise would have been the situation? Is that 

the situation that should prevail, or should Mr. Lloyd be able to ask the questions? 

That is the Board's determination. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Mr. Camacho, I fully understand. I don't mean to cut 

you off. I fully understand that the final decision on whether he would be allowed 

to do that or not rested with somebody else. What troubles me, deeply, is that the 

Public Advocate, through you, would find himself in a position of attempting to 

preclude a citizen of this State -- and not just any citizen. I don't want to 

blow smoke on Ed Lloyd, but I think most everybody in this room who is aware of 

his involvement in this area has to respect and appreciate the contributions he has 

made in this area. I say that the Public Advocate would find himself sitting on him 

and attempting to block Mr. Lloyd in his effort on behalf of the people that he 

felt needed representing at that point to get som~ clarification. 

I must tell you again, with all due respect, I am distressed by it and 

I wonder-- I thou<;Jht perhaps you would say to me today, "Senator Stockman, I was 
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mistaken in that position, and I should not have taken that position." But, I 

gather, a.nd I respect your right that your· feeling was that bec:ause of this 

agreement that the Public Advocate had signed, that is the route you have to go. 

MR. CAMACHO: Once the Public Advocate determines the stipulation, is 

the best we can negotiate, is in t:lle public interest:, and which is what WiHI bei.ng 

pressed and agreed to that. It is a situation where we cannot then undermine 

in terms of the '81 situation all over. How can one take that position? One 
has to support, or one has to not support. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Okay.. I understand. I fully understand. I have 

no. further questions. 

SENATOR CONNORS: I just have a couple. When were you first made 

aware of S-975? 

MR. CAMACHO: Spring of 1982 is about the.best timeframe that I could 

put in, personally. I had attenc.'led the confer13ni;::e 1:1t wh:ioh it wcis voted oµt of 
I 

Committee. So, that was around the timeframe. 

SENATOR CONNORS: It was introduced on February 8th, and it wcis recorded 

with Committee amendments in June. Would that be the timeframe? 

MR. CAMACHO: About that timeframe - the late spring. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Did you testify favorably or unfavorably with regard 
to this bill? 

MR. CAMACHO: I qid not' participate directly in that process. 

SEN1\'I'QR C.ONNORffls WR~ th@r@· ,any ctietlggu@ b€rtw@@n· you And, '•ffl@nat.gr Dalton -~-
or your Office and Senator Dalton? 

MR. CAMACHO: None with me. I can'tspeak for the Office at this point, 

in terms of the specifics of what was said or what happened. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Would S-975 have eliminated all of this. controversy 

had· it been in place back in February? 

MR. CAMACHO: I certainly believe that it could have cleared the air 

on this entire issue, at that point in time. It could have disposed of the issue 

one way or another at that point, and remov13 any aprtmony involved, 

SENATOR CONNORS: So, .from the i:pring of 1982 -- roughly April -- when 

the statements were being given that Hope Creek. should be abandoned, etc., and 

they were flying by Mr. Potter and the Public Advocate, and your Office that we 

have spent, to the signing of that agreement, roughly $5.5 billion--? 

MR. CAMACHO: I'm. sorry. •Could you clarify that question a little bit? 
SENATOR CONNORS: Well, the. date of the signing was what, August 9? 
MR. CAMACHO: August 10. 

Sl~ATOR CONNORS1 From the time that 1111 of a sudden in 1981 wu w@re· 
progressing 1owards Hope Creek I, and in 1982, we are now moving against and saying, 

"Hey, we better study this," etc.--

MR. CAMACHO.: It was during that meeting that I had .learned it was 

progressing at a million dollars a day, is what the rate was. 

SENATOR CONNORS: I carried it back further. All right. We have 

spent something like $8 million in this. Whether or not we are going to stop it, 

or until that agreement was solved just: in months, from January until August-­

MR. CAMACHO: Eight hundred million, you are saying? 

SENATOR CONNORS: Yes. 
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MR. CAMACHO: Roughly,- say _$700' million, something of that nature.· 

SENATOR CONNORS: Seven hundred million. 

MR. CAMACHO: And that was part of the dilemma as reported on August 10. 

If the first effective date could be June of 1983, tack on another $300 million, $350. 

SENATOR CONNORS: That is all I have. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Is there anything you would like to add? I don't 

want to preclude you from making any further statement, clarification, or amplifi­

cation, or anything of that sort, Mr. Camacho. I want to thank you. I think you 

have been straightforward and honest, obviously in your testimony. But, if there 

is anything you want to add to this record, you are welcome to do so. 

MR. CAMACHO: Fine. I appreciate the opportunity. I think I have 

clarified what I wanted to say with regard to specifically my efforts after the 

10th, in terms of alleviating those awkward August. 9 concerns. I thank you very much. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Thank you. Bill Potter, I see. Bill, you are here. 

Let me make this suggestion. We have a number of documents that I would like to 

make sure are made part of the record. The time is 12:30. I thi~k, Bill, you 

are going to be more than a few minutes, and my own instinct, subject to my 

Committee colleagues, are probably subject to putting records in and making them 

part of the record. I think we ought to come back at 1:30 and begin with you, 

and hopefully before the day ends, complete the hearing,.with the Public Advocate 

himsel-f. Does that cause any problems with you? 

MR. POTTER: No, 1:30 is fine. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right. I am going to make the record a little 

more complete. Anybody is welcome to stay .for that or leave. But, our plan is 

to commence at 1:30 with Mr. Potter, and as~soifa as he is finished, to ask Mr. 

Rodriguez to testify. 

(Recess for Lunch) 
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AFTER RECESS 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Our next witness is Bill Potter, Assistant Public 

Advocate. Bill has asked permition to give a statement and a supplemental 

statement as an introductory approach to the hearing. I have indicated no 

objection to that. I have not studied, frankly, Bill, your initial testimony 

and certainly not your supplemental. I would just remind you that I think the 

Committee is of the consensus that this hearing is not really directed to the 

question of the Al Nardelli fiting, but rather to the circumstances surrounding 

the entry into the agreement of August 10, 1982. Now, I realize that you may 

want to :Jet into it a: bit , but I would urge you to try to remember that. Go ahead. 

R. WILL I AM POTTER: Thank you, Senator. I wish to offer a few 

brief observations that may help set the record straight here. 

First, after two. full days of hearing -- in which the critics of the 

Cost Containment Agreement have been accorded the lion's share of the time -- it is 

now abundantly clear that the critical questions are not being·asked. In my judgment, 

these are as follows: 

Irrespective of the benefits'or costs of completing Hope Creek I, 

does anyone believe that the Public Advocate had a reasonable, arguable chance of 

stopping Hope Creek I in the only forum available bylaw? That forum is, of course, 

the Board of Public Utilities. If you do not ask that question -- and I have 

not heard it asked yet -- then you ignore tl'te only valid route of inquiry into 

whether it was proper for the Public Advocate to negotiate and sign the cost 

Containment Agreement -- namely, what other options were available? 

I would submit, Senators, that any kind of dispassionate review of 

the record will disclose that there were no other options. Nor is there any 

other realistically available option under law today or six months ago for 

bringing a timely end to Hope Creek I. Senator Stockman, you said so yourself 

in testimony that I believe you gave before the BPU on September 29. "Personally, 

I am satisifed that the construction of Hope Creek I is going to go on. Not 

reasonably bec.ause I want it to and not necessarily. because I don't want it to, 

but I think it is a fact that it's going to go .ori for a lot of reasons. Accepting 

that fact, I think there is a tremendous burden on you three commissioners --

over the manner in which the construction will go forward." 

So, even the Chairman of this Committee has recognized -- on at least 

one occasion -- the apparent inevitability of Hope Creek I being completed. 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: If I may stop you·one minute, Bill, I just want 

and I am sure you would agree with me. The'context of that statement was made 

pre- Al Nardelli comment and pre-convening of this committee, and pre- the testimony 

that is a matter of public record in this case to date. You are absolutely right 

as of the morning of September 28th, based on the knowledge and information I 

had, I was inclined, pretty much, to be satisfied that it was a fact that we were 

going to see the completion of Hope Creek I. I want to tell you right now that 

as a result of Mr. Nardelli' s comments·, as a result, more particularly, of the 

circumstances of this hearing, I am not so satisfied: 

MR. POTTER: All right. I am quoting you as of September 29 only. 
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(Mr. Potter continues his statement) Which options do critics say 

that we ignored or that are available today if the cost containment is rejected? 

Mr. Nardelli says that we abruptly turned our backs on S-975with its 

"blue-ribbon" advisory commission to look into Hope Creek I. But not even the 

sponsor of the bill -- S-975 -- believes that S-975 could become law and operate 

in time to make a difference. I refer you to Senator Dalton's press statement 

of August 12, 1982: 

"Although S-975 was overwhe°imingly approved by the Senate, the Govenor 

would not receive any study results for Hope Creek I uritil the Spring of 1983, 

due to the amount of time involved with the legislative process. As a result, 

even though the need for this project has never been established, it would be 

too late to investigate the need for the Hope Creek I project. 

"While I support, in principle, the Cost Containment concept, I see 

it as a supplemental, not a substitute for a need assessment of Hope Creek. We 

should, ideally, both establish the capacity needs of our consumers and meet that 

demand as economically as we can. 

"r am, however, a realist -- this is Senator Da.lton speaking -- My 

bill mandating the study and recommendations canriot reasonably move through the 

Assembly, be signed by the Governor, and be implemented until next spring at the 

earliest, by which time the investment in the Hope Creek project, now approximately 

a million dollars per day, would be so great, that the question would be moot. 

"rn the meantime, I shall continue my efforts· to move the major 

provisions of Senate Bill 975 -- providing for a thorough and continuing need 

assessment of all future projects -- through the legislative process so that never 

again are we in the position of having.to decide if and when we are throwing good 
money after bad . ." ~ 

Accordingly, even the sponsor of S-975 was willing by late summer.to 

concede that the time had passed for a "meaningful review" of Hope Creek I. 

Moreover, the last paragraph, above, even suggests that Senator Dalton will not 

insist upon inclusion of a study commission in the amended bill, at least as of 

August 12th. 
Let us now turn to another critical question that has not been asked: 

Why is it that we find ourselves in late October, 1982 without any 

reasonable alternatives to a cost containment? Or, in the alternative, why were 

there no reasonable. alternatives three, six, or nine months ago? 

The basic reason is that the Legislature has been unwilling to enact 

the necessary legislation.· This was as true during Governor Byrne's eight years 

and under Governor Kean's ten months. Senator Stockman, you also alluded to this 

collective failure -- I mean no disrespect by that -- on the part of the Legislature 
in your September 29 testimony: 

"I think it is very difficult for the Legislature, and I speak as an 

individual legislator when I say this, to fully understand the magnitude of what 

is going on here today -- referring to the cost containment. I don't say that 

critically of my colleagues, but with rare exceptions I simply think that the 

members of the Legislature are occupied with other concerns, then, this peculiar 

area that has been so costly to the citizens of New Jersey and that there probably 

has been inadequate legislative attention." 
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I agree with Senator Stockman that there has been "inadequate legislative 

attention" in this "peculiar area that has been so costly to ... New Jersey," namely, 

utility contruction decisions. The question, therefore, Senator, is what if anything 

can be done about it? One, in time to have an impact on Hope Creek I; and, two, 

to prevent the recurrence of such tragedies in the future. The answer to the 

second is easy: -- easily said, at least -- approve s-975. The Public Advocate 

remains as committed to that bill today as we were in February. The answer to 

thP. first question is much harder: Enact a moratorium on further construction 

of Hope Creek I until its future is determined. 

The moratorium option, however, has no more chance of adoption now 

than it did in February, 1982, when Senator Dalton chose not to include such a 

provision in his bill, s~975. The American public and their elected representatives 

do not seem to like the idea of enacting "moratoriums." For example, all efforts 

at achieving a congressional moratorium on nuclear licensing after the Three Mile 

Island accident were equally unavailing. There is no reason now or several months 

ago to believe that the New Jersey Legislature will act any differently. 

What, then, was the Public Advocate to do? Joseph Rodriguez and I 

came to the Public Advocate Department in February of 1982. By then, it was evident 

that Hope Creek costs were hano=haainq wildly out of control, and had been for 

some time. We immediately ordered an all-out effort to bring the situation under 

control. The first step was a motion for a BPu·moratorium and a needs assessment 

orally presented on February 19, by Mr. Nardelli. That effort failed miserably. 

Three times after that -- March 4, April 20, and July 20 -- the BPU issued orders 

and decisions which basically reaffirmed its judgment that Hope Creek I is needed 

and should be built. The Board even directed PSE&G to "expeditiously complete" 

the unit. In short, it soon became obvious that further efforts to litigate an 

end to Hope Creek before the BPU would be a waste of time and money. 

I repeat. What then was the Public Advocate to do? S-975 had offered 

a slim hope; the sands of time were eliminating even that remote possibility, 

as Senator Dalton so eloquently put it on August 12. Essentially, three. options 

remained: 

1. Await the next PSE&G rate case and challenge Hope Creek then. 

But the BPU had ordered the company not even to petition for a rate increase before 

July 1, 1983. Another $360 to $400 million would be spent on Hope Creek by then, 

and it would surely be 80% or more complete by that time -- and these are estimates. 
And we were not about to suggest that PSE&G file any earlier for a rate increase, 

or that we not support the BPU's "stay out" order. 

2. Petition the BPU to impose a cost containment. This option also 

would take a long time, if the Board would hear it. I would note that on February 

19, 1982, we had moved the BPU to consider a cost containment in the alternative 

at the same time that Mr. Nardelli moved for a moratorium. And at the end of 

the process, were we likely to get any stronger, legally enforceable arrangement 

than we could get through negotiation? Probably not. The experience in New York 

showed otherwise. 

3. This left the effort to negotiate a cost containment while there 

was still time to bargain. We first raised the idea on February 19 before the 

BPU. We began pursuing this in earnest, in June, even as we pressed for early 

passage of S-975, which was not to be. 
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That the negotiating process was done ."by Trenton" with minimal contact 

with Mr. Nardelli reflects -- I'm sorry to say -- more on our confidence and trust 

ih him than in any conscious intention to deny Rate Counsel a proper role. Managerally 

it is simply difficult to call on the subordinates of a director who is himself 

not in favor, and th~refore not consulted. 

In any event, once PSE&G and Atlantic Electric agreed that the cost 

containment could not be used in any way to justify a boost in their rate of return 

unless the finished unit comes in at under the target figure; a slim possibility 

indeed-,-- then inmy view we had achieved the quid pro quo necessary for us to 

drop .the bare threat of litigating again whether Hope Creek should be cancelled. 

This argument we knew from bitter experience -- four rejections in five months -­

could not work before the BPU. Mes.srs. Makul and Nardelli agreed repeatedly that 

it could not. Thus, I recommended to Commissioner Rodriguez that we sign the 

Cost Containment, subject to working out a myriad of details later. Mr. Camacho 

spent the rest of August and September doing precisely that, right up to the very 

moment we walked into the BPU hearing room on September 29. 

In summary, I am confident, Senators, that if you had been in our shoes 

you would have done the same thing. I am also confident that, but for Mr •. Nardelli's 

outburst of September 29 -- followed by his blackmailing of Commissioner Rodriguez 

and then his necessary dismissal -- this cost containment would now be approved 

and in effect. I remain hopeful that it will soon be in place. 

One last point: Senator Stockman, you have said, I believe, "'the 

glaring unanswered question' -- this is taken from this morning's Newark Star I.edger -- is 

why Rodriguez and Potter chose to sign the cost containment without consulting 

'the people with real expertise' in the Division of Rate Counsel." Allow me, 

if I could, to answer that question. But first I must correct what I perceive 

to be two "glaring" misconceptions that thatquestion contains. 

Misconception number 1: There is no "real expertise" in the Commissioner's 

office. I think I can safely say that I have at least some expertise that was 

rational and ,sufficient for Mr. Rodriguez to designate me as the "point man" on 

all Hope Creek matters. 

Misconception number 2: We did not consult with Rate Counsel. We 

did. On specific issues and even on specific drafts of the Cost Containment, 

I met with, spoke with, and reviewed cost containment materials with Messrs. Camacho 

and Nardelli. On at least two occasions the three of us sat.down to review the 

words of, and ideas behind, the Cost Containment drafts. 

Why didn't we simply leave the entire matter to Mr. Nardelli as acting 

director of Rate Counsel? Because, simply put, his credibility with the BPU, 
. . 

with PSE&G, and again, I'm sorry to say, with us, had fallen almost to zero. For 

example, among other things, on February 19, 1982, when trying to explain his 

unilateral renunciation of a stipulation he had signed 60 days earlier, he replied, 

"We were trying to suck the company into abandoning Hope Creek II, and yve succeeded 

in doing so." This is also the same .man.who told a cheering crowd of ratepayers: 

'.'If you can organize enough people not to pay their bills, you can shut this company 

down." I am referring toJCP&L; 

In addition, we recognize that this "peculiar area," as you called 

it, required the close coordination and policy judgement that could only come 

out of Trenton -- q.nd not be another part of "rate counsel's game," as Mr. Makul 

put it. 
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In retrospect, I wish that I had been able to keep the individual members 

of Rate Counsel better~apprised of progress on all Hope Creek matters. But every 

time I considered it, I was struck again by the difficulty of going through or 

·. around Mr. Nardelli -- and what passed across his desk had an unpleasant habit 

of going public too soon or in the wrong way. Mr. Nardelli, in my view, is not a 

representative of Rate Counsel or the rest of the Public Advocate. His actions. 

speak for themselves and he must live with the consequences. In my view, overall, 

the rest of our staff is as professional and competent as any to be found in State 

government. I look forward to working with them in the months and years ahead. 

I would now like to· turn to some testimony that I provided to the Committee 

yesterday, which contains a list of attachments to it which are the full memoranda 

and documents referred to. 

I apologize if I am belaboring this too much, but I believe that was 

the underlying intention of your letter of October 4th. 

Mr. Nardelli has stated that the Public Advocate agreed to the Hope 

Creek Cost Containment Stipulation because of pressure from the Governor. Central 

to this.charge is his claim that he has been a staunch, consistent and long-time 

_opponent of the Hope Creek I nuclear project. He also has argued that his resolute 

opposition was consistent with the longstanding policy of Stanley VanNess, predecessor 

to Joseph Rodriguez as the Public Advocate. He also has told you tha.t he repudiated 

the Cost Containment Agreement because it departed radically from this prior policy 

of opposition to Hope Creek I. 

The record, however, reveals otherwis.e. The first time that Mr. 

Nardelli questioned Hope Creek I -- and, indeed, at the same time called for a 

cost containment as the alternative -- was in a motion and testimony which he 

delivered before the Board of Public Utilities on Februi3,ry 19, 1982.. As a reading 

of the transcript of that proceeding demonstrates, the BPU Commissioners were 

surprised -- I think that is an.understatement -- by the Nardelli presentation, 

apparently because it departed so dramatically from the policy enunciated by him 

on earlier occasions. BPU Commissioner Hynes responded as follows: 

"Mr. Nardelli, you astound me. For such a major issue, you would not 

have brought that up anywhere in the PSE&G base rate case and now make a statement 

here before this Board that this Board has been negligent in making ... that 

there is no need for Hope .Creek I when in effect at no part during the entire 

base rate case was Hope Creek I ever conteste.d by the Advocate?II 
Mr. Nardelli responds: "I admit Hope Creek I wasn't brought up." 

The colloquy continued: 

Commissioner Hynes: ''I understand that nowhere in any of these sheets 

did I ever see a statement by the Advocate about the need or no need for Hope 

Creek I, and yet, one week after that base rate decision, you present the statement. 

Mr. Nardelli interrupts : "Let me add that I have told you that the tactical 

reason for not raising it is that we were having. a hard enough time getting rid 

of Hope Creek II and thouqht if we went for both of them, we might really be dismissed 

out of hand. " 

Mr. Nardelli continues: "Let me admit to another reason. We are subject 

to some of the same problems that the utility has had--" he then cited the difficulties 

in projecting load forecasts and energy prices. "we looked at these numbers corning 

in, yes, and at some point, maybe .later than it should have occurred even to us, 

39 

" 



we said, 'gee, if Hope Creek II is such a bad deal, why are we assuming Hope Creek 

I should be built?' and we started to look at it. " 

·At this point, BPU Commissioner Barbour added: 

"If there was to be a consideration of the abandonment of Hope Creek 

II in the main rate case, then Hope Creek I should have been raised earlier. The 

issue should have been raised before the initial decision came over here from 

the Administrative Law Judge. II 

Mr. Nardelli went further and explained why he and the Public Advocate 

had not opposed Hope Creek I: 

"We feel we have to draw you, the Board of Public Utilities, to the 

decision to approve the abandonment of Hope Creek II, and we didn't think you 

could face up to the questions of Hope Creek I while you were being so reluctant 

to face .up to Hope Creek II." That is contained in Attachment I. 

Commissioner Barbour then asked a critical question, namely whether 

in the PSE&G base rate case -- which extended over 9 months of 1981, included 

51 hearing dates and cost over $400,000 in Rate Counsel legal fees and expert 

witnesses -- Rate Counsel had recommended a level of rate relief which "had to 

do with Hope Creek I being completed." Mr. Nardelli agreed that "yes, because 

that's the situation as it existed before the Board." 

Four days later, Mr, Nardelli was again called to task for what the 

BPU perceived to be a change in Public Advocate policy -- from acceptance of Hope 

Creek I to strong opposition. In response to testimony by the PSE&G witness, 

Mr. Nardelli made it clear that the reason for his newly· found concern for Hope 

Creek I was the change in administration in Trenton. That is, the newly appointed 

Public Advocate had ordered a new emphasis on the Hope Creek question, reversing 

a policy of acquiescence and substituting one of intensive queationing. 

For example, on February 23, Mr. Nardelli cross-examined Everett Morris 

of PSE&G in an attempt to show that it was proper to deviate from a stipulation 

he had signed with the utility two months earlier. That agreement appeared to 

yield any potential challenge to the "timely completion of the Hope Creek I unit." 

That is attachment two. 

Mr. Nardelli: Mr. Morris, who signed that Joint Position of December 

14, 1981? 

A Mr. Codey signed it and Mr, Nardelli signed it, and 

Mr. Nard.elli assured me that he had the concurrence 

of the Public Advocate. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

And who was the Public Advocate at the time? 

Mr. VanNess, but I would assume that--

You have answered my question, Mr. Morris. 

Who is the Public Advocate now? 

Mr. Rodriguez. 

Let me ask you something else--

Then, Commissioner Curran broke in: 

A 

COMMISSIONER CURRAN: "Mr. Nardelli, are you 

indicating by that question that at Mr. Rodriguez' 

direction, that there is a change in the Public Avocate's 

position? " 

Yes I am, Commissioner Curran. 

40 



That same day,. Mr. Nardelli introduced the testimony of the Public Advocate' s 

financial consultant who confirmed what Mr. Nardelli had said to Commissioner Ba:t:bour 

four days before, namely the Public Advocate indeed had taken "ho position" whether 

Hope Creek I should be completed at any point in the prior Public Service rate 

case - Transcript 473. In short, when he had the opportunity, feasibly, to raise 

the Hope Creek I question -- during the preceding rate c~se -- Mr. Nardeili and 

the Advocate elected to bypass the matter in favor of concentrating on Hope Creek 

.II. The reason for this "tactical" decision, described above, was that the Advocilte's 
' attorneys feared that such an argument woulp be dismissed out of hand. Why, now 

that Hope Creek I is over fifty percent complete, does Mr. Nardelli believe that 

the unit can and should be stopped when it was his professional judgment several 

months earlier th.at it was pointless to question it -- and at that time the unit 

was less than 40 percent complete? 

Turning now to many statements and memoranda written by Mr. Nardelli 

over the past year and a half, we see that he has consistently argued for a hands­

off approach to Hope Creek I. The evidence, therefore, contradicts his self­

characterizati·on as a dedicated crusader against Hope Creek I who was willing 

to lose his job to continue to fight. 

For example, on May 8, 1981 prior to the Gubernatorial Primary Election, 

wheh I was preparing draft position papers for candidate Kean -- Mr. Nardelli 
sent ine his comments on: a draft position paper that I was preparing for him on 

energy and environment. He stated: 

"Turning now to the paragraph concerning nuclear power on page 6 of 

my draft, I think we should be cautious about suggesting that Hope Creek could 

perhaps be abandohed. In 1980, .PSE&G spent $211 million on the construction of 

Hope Creek. This year they, will spend about $272 million. In 1982, PSE&G foreca.sts 

that it will spend $329 million. By the time a new State administration could 

stop Hope Creek, PSE&G will probably have invested a billion dollars. To date, 

the-largest abandonment in the history of.the utility industry has been the.JCP&L 

abandonment of Forked River -- about $412 million." This is still the Nardelli 

quote -- 'Another point is that it is one thing to say that PSE&G does not need 

the capacity at Hope Creek. · It is another thing to say that the State does not 

need it--" 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Could I stop you right there for a second? Bill, 

if this will throw you off-- I think you are very knowledgeable in this, .,and 
you .have struck a cord that I .really meant to explore with previous people, and 
if I could just ask you. There has .been some rumor, some suggestion, that the 

JCP&L Company really is .very much in the mix of Hope Creek I, and that the real 

reason the BPU is very supportive of the·completion of Hope Creek I is not necessarily 

that they believe that Public Service needs that power -- that is the applicant --

but rather that·JcP&L needs it. 

MR. POTTER: I have read several statements to that effect, Senator. 

Yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Have you ever been part of the mix of any suggestion 

of that sort? 

MR. POTTER: Well, I have never made that suggestion .. No. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Has ,it been suggested to you by others? 
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MR. POTTER: It was; I believe, the credo.of the New Jersey Department 
. ',, . '· ' 

of Energy,. under Commission Jacobson. I .recall that in.the Energy Master Plan. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: How about into the new administration? Have you 

beeh party to any dialogue where .that has been asse-rted. as a reason to ·go forwar.d 

with Hope Creek I? 

MR. POTTER: I have n·ot heard it in the last eight months. I certainly· 

· have-.- It is a little confusing now because I have some other quotes· where that 

was said prior to '82. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I specifically wondered whether, · to your knowledge, 

the new Administration, the Kean Administration, had ever asserted that as a reason 

for wanting to go forward with Hope Creek I? 

MR. POTTER: I have never heard that .. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I am sorry for interrupting iou; · 

MR, POTTER: That's all rig}J.t. (continues statement) 

I am continuing with the Na:r;delli quote. 

"JCP&L probably does need additional base load capacity this decade. 

Hope Creek I is due in ser_vice in December of 1986, ahd Hope Creek II in 1989. 

JCP&L cannot finance the capital needed to construct base .load plants. Hope Creek 

may be the answer." That is attachment four, for the complete memorandum. 
Some months later~ Mr. Nardelli prepared a speech for Congressman Florio 

oh utility construction plans. On October 2, 1981, he sent a memorandum to Stanley 

vanNess which included a copy of the proposed speech. A cover memorandum states, 

"On October 15, 1981, the Board of Public Utilities is holding a hearing 

on the future of the Hope .Creek nuclear project. As of now, Congressman Florio 

is planning to make a statement in person. He has asked me to do a .first draft 

which I mailed to him today -- copy enclosed. With the possible exception of 

the discusion at the end of the statement a.bout public power, my q.raft is in full 

accord with the Department's position. Since I.may be given the opportunity to 

do a subsequent draft, I welcome any.comments or.suggestions." 

The draft which he prepared arid which he describes as being "in full 

accord" with the Public Advocate' s .policy, 'focuses entirely on Hope Creek II. 
Implicit in the statement, moreover, runs a consistent thread of approval and 
acceptance of the need to complete· Hope Creek I. -- in here,. we are getting to 

your point, Senator Stockman_. Specifically, 

"If the BPU does direct PSE&Gto complete Hope creek II· so that it 

can sell electricity to _JCP&L, there is.no reason why Hope Creek I has to be the 

Public Service Unit, and,.Hope Creek I:i: the-Jersey Central unit. It.would be better 

for the customers of both utilities if the agreement for the Sale of electricity 

bet'\iTeen Public Service and Jersey Central entitled both companies to a percentage 

of theou.tput of either unit. 
The advantages of my proposal are clear. First, the ri·sk of nuclear 

acciderits_or outages would be diversified. If one new unit performed significantly 

worse than the other, the economic conseque_nces of poor nuclear per_formarice would . 

·not fal~ entirely on the cutomers of one utility. Second, since Hope Creek I .. 

:is scheduled for completion in 1986 and Hope Creek II in 1989, JCP&L customers 

would get the benefit of some base loadcap~city earlier." .That is attachment 

five. 

T.he same draft, Florio' s speech, goes on to state t.hat his Hope Creek sharing 

·proposal should. not be interpreted a:s "prejudging the issue of whether Hope C:i::eek 
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II should be continued to be built as a nuclear plant." 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Bill; let me stop you and ask you this: Suppose 

;t·obnced~d to you for this hearing -- your document is going to be filed as part 

of this record.:.._ that there is evidence to suggest that Mr. Nardelli was not 

as fully committed to opposition to Hope Creek I as perhaps some acc:ounts of this 

hearing, or even his own opinions in testimony would so suggest. Don't you think 

that the issues we are focusing on really make that question moot? That is the 

question of whether or not the Public Advocate acted reasonably and in a proper 

manner in August of 1982, in reaching the agreement. And, the further question 

of. whether there should be independent counsel appointed, arguably, to pursue 

the other side of that issue. 

In other words, we know that Mr. Nardelli wrote a memo on August 9th, 

prior to the formalization of this agreement, strongly opposing it. Now, even 

assuming he had flip-flopped in 1981 and part of the cause for. the new 

Public Advocate, Joe Rodriguez, being in a mo:te difficult position·to oppose 

that, isn't that sort of moot with those events in early 1982? I'm just trying 

to save a little time, but if you want to go through this-- I don't want to stop 

you because I don't want the inference that we are kangaroo court on this. 

MR. POTTER: Senator, I have two comments on that. One, as I went 

back and read Mr. Nardelli's prepared testimony of October 12, he lays tremendous 

importance on what he declares to be this sudden switch--,- I think his words are 

"flip-,-fl6p" -- on. policy and character,izes, I think, perhaps more implicitly 

than explicitly, that he has been a die'-ha:td advocate of opposing Hope Creek I. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Let me say that I am not impressed with that contention 

by Mr. Nardelli, with all due respect to Mr. Nardelli. My point is -- I don't 

think that is critical. As a matter of fact, I may be part of the problem, because 

early on in the hearing, I did talk in terms of a persistent, unwaivering, strong 

public position. I have read the materials you have made available to·us, and 

I am impressed with some of it, to the extent of suggesting that the record wasn't 

that clear when Joe Rodriguez came in, that the Advocate was opposed to Hope Creek. 

But frankly, rriy point is, it seems that the record became crystal-clear in February, 

March, April, May, and June of 1982 - crystal-clear - that the Advocate was opposed 

to the completion. It is from that point that one can at least argue, "wasn't 

there a flip-flbp?" 

Now, flip-flop is arguably unfair.· There may have been a real reason, 

deliberate, orderly transition change, but the question of change grows out of 

Joe Rodriguez's position in those months. I must .tell you, .frankly, Bill, that 

I suspect that it 1 was your strong feelings -- I want to get into that. I think 

you probably had a lot to do with the fact that somewhere during that timespan, 
the position of that office indeed, clearly r1as; "Hope Creek isn't needed, Hope · 

Creek shouldn't be built." Frankly, maybe to make it even more blunt, I would 

like to ask you now, in your own opinion; putting aside .the practical problem 

about whether or not it can be stopped, BPU, etc.-- Isn't it your opinion, that 

even as late as recently that Hope Creek I should not be built? 

MR. POTTER: Well--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I have been told that of all the people in the State, 

probably, you have been the most articulate and have a strong feeling in that. 

I respect the depth of your knowledge and experience. That is why I asked you 

that question, certainly back in August of 1982. Wasn't that your view? 
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MR. POTTER: Well, I don't want .to say this month it was this position 

and .that month it was something else. 

bad bargain 

Hope Creek, 

part of the 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I'll give you the latitude - July, August; or thereabout. 

MR. POTTER: I have 

for New Jersey. I 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: 

right? (laughter) 

record. 

always argued that Hope Creek I looks like a very 

have argued that with anybody who cared to listen. 

You have it in an article - we have it here, Up 

It was a great article. We want to make that 

MR. POTTER: I don't take credit for the title, but I do for the article. 

I have always argued that I thought_Hope Creek I and Hope Creek II were inadequately 

reviewed. I was extremely distraught over the decision to grant the permit 

for it in 1976, or whatever -- by the way, we were there by way of an amicus curae. 

I think ~hat was 191 NJ 152, or something like that, is that right? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: It is a fine distinction. You didn't initiate it, 

Lloyd did. But you came--

MR. POTTER: Well, I got the tear-stained pages back in my office. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right. 

MR. POTTER: We argued as hard as we could, that somebody ought to 

look at alternatives to Hope Creek. We tried to do it through the State Coastal 

Statute. We tried to do it by way of testimony before the Board of Public Utilities. 

Unfortunately, in February of 1979, we entered into a stipulation that was codified 

as an order by the Board, in which we simply said -- and it is in this testimony 

there was no controversy on the utilities' load forecasting plans. Of course, 

those plans explicitly included Hope Creek I and II, as well as four floating 

nuclear plants and Forked River, and I don't know what else. 

I think you are right, Senator. I have been a strong opponent of Hope 

Creek I, and if there was a forum today, or if there had been a forum six months 

·ago or three months ago, and if I thought there was a reasonable chance of using 

that forum to stop Hope Creek I, I would be rec;:ommending that we be there. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: When did you give up that hope? 

MR, POTTER: Let me explain that just a bit. What we were doing-­

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Can you tell me when, first, and then explain it 

as long as you want? 

MR. POTTER: I guess I gave up that hope, officially, in my mind, the 

day that I saw we had a decent cost containment agreement, and, that it did not 

appear that we would get S-975. Now let me explain that. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: When was that? 

MR. POTTER: Probb.bly August 10th. Let me explain that. We were moving 

on two tracks at the same tilne. On the one hand, we were pushing for Hope Creek 

I to be reviewed by somebody!- the Board of Public Utilities, the special "blue 

ribbon" commission. At1 the 7ame time, we were negotiating to see if we could 

reach a reasonable cost cont4inment agreement on Hope Creek I. . 

To my thinking, ttle cost containment does not guarantee that Hope Creek 
I . . 

I will be built; what it does, is, it guarantees that the company, the shareholders, 

and management now have an ex\tra incentive to behave like entrepreneurs in the 
I . 

free market, with respect to fhis investmen~ .. Let me give you an example:--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Let me stop you. The agreement specifically gave 

up the Public Advocate's right to deal with that issue. 
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MR. POTTER: That's correct. But what it did do is impose a marketplace 

incentive that · was not there before. Every cancellation in New Jersey -- and 

as far as I can tell in my review of the SO.states--,- has occurred because the 

utility gave up on it; not because three public utility commissioners ordered 

it to be cancelled, it was because the utility realized that it would not be financially 

successful or that.there was no need for it. 

In my.judgement, and this,• to me, is part of the beauty of the cost 

containment, it imposes shareholder responsibility which was not there before. 

It therefore becomes rational for utility management to be much more scrupulous 

in deciding whether to put in that next hundred million dollars in Hope Creek, 

whether to blast ahead full speed. Mind you, here is a utility which has a stay­

but order. It may not come in for rate increase until July, 1983. As utilities 

go for rate increases, that is a long time. That, by the way, is an unprecedented 

consumer protection device - a stay'-out order. 

The utilities facing t.he Cost Containment, assuming it gets approved, 

will have to make very tough judgements about whether to proceed with Hope Creek 

I, defer it, cancel it, sell capacity to someone else, or whatever: 

So, I don't think Hope Creek I is out of the woods by any means, Senator. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But Bill, as late as, for instance, April 30, 1982, 

you're writing to Gary Stein, Governor's Office, on policy, talking about'imposing 

•the hardest possible scrutiny on this project. 

MR. POTTER: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Complaining bitterly about the. history of Public 

Service's miscalculation of cost. Incidentally, let me interrupt you and ask you·· 

this: all of the cost figures that we are tossing around, which are really the 

fundamental basis of this agreement, are cost es,timates, as I understand it, that 

you tak.e from Public Service, not that you develop through a rigorous, independent 

expert paid for by the Public Advocate. How can you, as late as April 30th, be taik.ing 

about Public Service's history of miscalculation of cost,·and the demands should 

lead any disinterested observer to doubt the company's latest claims of need:..-· 

How can you, today, say you have an agreement with a $3.7 billion venture, 50% 

complete--? That information, essentially, comes from Public Service, doesn't 

it? 

MR. POTTER: As it always .has done. In my view, Senator, whether they 
have spent $1. 3 billion, $1. 8 billion, .whether the cancellation cost will come 
to $2.5 billion, $3 biliion, or $2 billion, it is really riot relevant, and I will 

tell you why it is nOt relevant. We are faced with a plant which cl.early has gone 

beyond the point of no return with respect to the only forum available under law 

for challenging it. In May of 1981, Mr. Nardelli said a billion dollars 

will be spent, and therefore, it will.be well past the point of no return for 

challenge. I didn't think we had to have detailed cost estimates.before we made 

this judgement, Senator. 

Secondly, to get back to the April.30th letter -- April 7th, or whatever 

it was -- as early as February 19th, we were talking about our·two-track approach 

to getting that scrutiny of Hope Creek I. The motion that Mr. Nardelli read on 

that date, he and r worked out on the phone. That says, first, give us a moratorium 

of, I·think, four to six months~- or four months, I think -- on Hope Creek I, 

and, impose a Chst Chntainment. lµld then Mr. Nardelli cited the experience in 
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New ,SQ,. as ei;t:rlY a.s Fel;lrµary 19th, we were tall<Jng · about tI:ie two-track approach •. 

it wa.s aboµt 40% in February, maybe Now, ·.ci.fi. tJ1:~••pJant 

a' lit~lti(1is§; l 
?0% ~ •r n(Qre,~ 

adViHlCed in copstrw::tj,op 

was g~ing on the nu111gers by th,e ut;i.l.i ty, ye.s. Then it was reaching 

$!)eipoint was not so much "wh1;1.t could we find down there by ,an exhausting, 

intensivr H90,ooo study," it is, "wl1at i~ the public perception of how far along 

tl1<it: pl.int fJ'l," Tl1at perception, as putt,ressed by tl}e coinpany' s figures that we 
-, __ . ·r ';" ··.\ ., .. ,_.'. ,. . 

h€1:d b~~n ,il:i,i;dn~ in the previous case, was that they were well down the road over 

a\,i+ilon 401.lars. Whether it was $1;~00,000 or $1,700,000, I didn't think it 

was that ;important. I l),:ope that wasnit too long an answer. 
,,r· ._.,_, ·., ,- ,., 

$;$A'I'OR STQCKMAN: No, not at i:l.11. But Bill, you were not satisfied 

that t,he ', )?ql;,ihq Advocate should give up his right to challenge the need for 

co11!p1etin~Jjppe Creek I 1Jntil August 10, 1982. Is that cqrrect? 

MR, POTTER: Yes. 

SENATOR STOyKMAN: You certain~y,. therefore-­

MR. POTTER: Maybe Augµst 9tb. 

SENA'I'OR STOCKf,'IAN: August 9th or 10th. You certainly, up to that time, 

were µ9t 1;1:r;<;fiilg the Pllplic Advocate to sign any agreement, whether you call it 

a cost c;onta;!.•nment agre\;l111ept or what, but ijJl a<;rreemept that !:ipecifically indicated 

that t.he PubJ.ic Advocat~ wol;lld not therec;ifter cl1~Ue11.ge the need for the completion 
-: .. ,: , ' 

of, IIppip ' CreeJc I . Is tba t a fair statement? · 

· MR. POTT:t;:R: Yes, tlJ,at is a fa:i,.r statement. 

S;ENATOR S'I'OC!q'14N: Now, we know frol\l other witnesses -- although, I invite 

YQU t.o elaborate on th.i;, -,,- that essehtiall,y, R,ate Couns.el' s office was kept out 

9f t!ii.~ gije,stiPr, r;i.gl}t }~n;til 'th~ hii:.~il.f~ ,,;,,,f Pf ~ij~~ :of ~~1~~J; 91r~, from not only 

Mf·. '.N~f}l~.+fi, :~vt froIU ~f ;c~ru.0:c;ho. atid M;r,1_,.•,~•~·~ul/ P\~iq:tni~f. . . .. 
' . . MfS· POT':r:ER: :;· ~gre,e, th.at it was:;'t ,biz~~fe ,·yi~ippJ~µg\l}tl. 

'p,'.!l)NATOR STOC~: t-0:?ntm,~~) ~'")i\..e.p.d~~g wiJ,~ \h~ P~fIAc Advocate not 

t:q sj_~n· a ~iij;pulat;ion,'. As .•fl !!latter Qf, f~c;t 1 you we:i;-~1•~ ,',f;iJ;t 'It\~ il') on that. When 

did y9411fo on vq.cat;ion, froµn.q;that time? Be9aus1:1 I get ail of these rumors. What 

dat~s'w~re yo.u on vac<;).tioIJ.? 
~ . ._ . -

J'.12'. POTTER: I tpink your spy plan.t we,nt over on ,July 29th • 

. S~NATOR STOC~N: July 29}h to when? And you are t:he "point man"·, 

ipci9/a!l:1taiiy, at leas.t cp, Cmpmissioi;ie,r Cqleµian tells us. July 29th to when?. 

.. •. M.i,: ,, P,QT'J:'E;R: I t:ll;in~ a W.?l.S <t::11~. first Sunc:lciy .il). ~ugust. 

' i'~1::1AT0f ?T()C~J-1; qoos ~~y ~t:' tQ SC:t;cl!llQ}e, ,c;llld, gE;?j;: a c;c;ilepdar? (lauqhter) 

·• :~~;.,~OTTER: ;t: Was:P't 'tll~ •:2nf tl:ien, tpe B~h' s~H11c:ls about ;r-ioht. 

/~.i~l\TOR srdc~: o~ay, the 9.1;h w:.~s a Mond!'iy - t:6 the 8th • 

. 't,-, 'b.11(., 1POTTER: :{"kns,w t:lJ.J;s, th~t mo~e,nts aft.er, I wa.lked in' the door, I was 

·· ,j,t\st· taking,".of•f m; shiri hecAuse of the r;ic;le down the Jersey Turnpike -- showing off 

my st)ntiiri to my wife -- the phone rang anq there was another conference call· from the· 

P.~,Piir'.i,!Je,nt ;·/;inergy. "We have talke.d about it. Let's ti:l.l~ about the la test develop..: 

m,eit>;~,$1~ f,!,P9 'll sat dowp tl,lere, fo.+ the ne,x:J; t\qur ana a half looking at more changes and 

goihef.ij);J,c:kCand forth. We were on this continuously, from the time I went on vacation 

qr,tH in.e ti~e :r got .pack:. 
1 ' ',• ' -: , . • . ·~ ' • 

'c, .SENATOR STOCKMAN: Without luck; . :·_. •"· ~. ; ' .. -·, 

1MR.· .POTTJi;R: · Without; luck, }res. 



SENATOR STOCKMAN: Okay. So. we kriow, at least, that there was no communica~ 

tion, no input by you, from July 29th to August 8th. 

MR. POTTER: Yes. But, let me address the question that I think you 
were getting at. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, you .are going to get in trouble if you start 

anticipating what I am getting at, but go ahead. Give it a try. 

MR. POTTER: No, I will take your advice. What is your question? 
(laughter) 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Okay. Now, you have given us an index of the doCumeritation 

that the Public Advocate's Office has on the sequence of events leading up to this 

"monumental agreement," this "landmark agreement," this "near ·$4 billion agreement," 

on behalf of the citizens and ratepayers of the State of New Jersey, right? 

MR. POTTER: Well, it's not near $4 billion; it is $3.55 billion to 
$3. 796 billion. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: As a matter of fact, it is a lot more than $4 billion, 

isn't it - in this sense? Isn't it true that a lot more than $4 billion will, 

over the course of time, be paid by the ratepayers of the State of New Jersey if 

Hope Creek I is built? 

MR. POTTER: I don't know if that is true, Senator. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, if it is built--

MR. POTTER: (interrupting) I mean you have to pay for the fuel. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: If it is built, the public is going to first have 

imposed on it,. the ratepayers, the obligation of that writeoff, the cost, $3. 7, 

even by the agreement, right? Isn't that true? 

MR:. POTTER: Sure. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Once that is in place, once that is on line in January, 

it is my understanding of basics of this whole area that that becomes part of the 

rate base. As a matter of fact, it essentially will double the rate base of Public 

Service, right? 

MR POTTER: That is correct. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I think we can concur that the likely cost in your 

electric bill, my electric bill, and everybody sitting in this room that uses it, 

at that point is going to have to go up appreciably and stay up appreciably. So, 

we are really talking more than $4 billion, aren't we, in this deal? 

MR. POTTER: Well, if you are talking about looking down the long-,term, 
will there be cost of repairs, will the plant be down, do you have to buy backup 

power? 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: In round figures, it is at least a $4 billion deal 

we are kicking around. 
MR. POTTER: We did not negotiate a $4 billion deal; we negotiated that 

deal. You are saying, if the plant is completable, there would be other expenses. 

I am sure there will be. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But you have given us the documentation from you~ 

office that fills in the gaps of who did what to lead to that, right? 

MR. POTTER: I certainly tried to. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Are there memos and documents in there concerning 

meetings that you had with anybody, or that Mr. Rodriguez had with anybody, concerning 
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this Cost Contg,.j.nment Agre.ernent - .this agreement that wou],.d give away t\}e right 

of the Public Advocate to challenge Hope Cr~ek I. Because,. let me tell you, Bill, 
as.you kno'l(l, there is a letter dated July 28,• 1982 to a colleague of mine in the 

Le~islatur~ w;bich clearly suggests that the Advocate is still committed to not 

seeing to the completion of Hope Creek I. That is July 28th: you went away on 

the 29th. 

MR, POTTER: Can I address that question about the, I think you pronounced 

it Pankok, the Pankok letter? I think it is in part two of the testimony. I think 

it is safe to say this was Mr. Nardelli's s;rnoking gun. That starts on page nine 

of part two. I won't read it, but this sort of freshens my memory of it. 

A copy of what we had is on the letter to Assemblyman Pankok as a test. 

It is really, a rnischaracterization of that letter. In the f:i,rst place, we state 

our support of S-975. I will restate that today, or on August 10th, or any other 

day, until s;ornething is done with it. It was his letter and his notion that that 

was a smoking gun, was premised on a f&l.se premise, namely, that support of the Cost 

Contp,inrnent i,n 975 were in inreconciable conflict. I think I dealt with that. 
There is another interesting point to this: That letter was drafted 

by Al Nardelli. He drafted that letter on July 13th. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: That is because the Public Advocate had great trust 

and respect in tne expertise of Al Nardelli on Hope Creek I, right? Back in July. 
So much so that he would rely on Mr. Nardelli to respond to a colleague of mine 
in the Le.gislature on that subject. 

MR. POTTER: Well, ne knew he was an excellent letter-writer. Yes, 

that is true. 

SENAT_QR STOC~: Only letter-:- .How ~bout con~eµt, Bill? 
l'J;R. POTTER: Well, the content--

SI!!NATOR STOC™N: I assume tbl;! Public Advocate didn'.t Wi;\nt letters 
going out tha,:t were in excell.ent appearance, but deceptiv~ in coritent - especially 
to the ],.egislato;rs. 

MJ:l.. PO'I.'TER: Tne con_tent came right out of all of our memos, Senator. 

We could nave--
SENATOR STOCKMl\N: Carne in with consistency. 
MR. POTTER: We could have g:otten an 18 year old kid out of school 

to \'{r:i,.te tne letter. 
SE~ATOR STOCKMJ\N: Let's forget tn.a t smoking gi.m: let' s take another 

srno,lcing gqn. 
MR.. POTTER: But :t want to respond to that • There is more to it, you 

see; If yo~ :o/ant to know what we were saying and thinking at that time, as .I 

appended here, ori July 21, I sent a letter to President Robert Patrick of the 
Greater Salem ,Chamber of Commerce. This le,tter reflects our evolving response 

to Hope Cree;k. It is attachment to part two. I would like to quote two paragraphs 

front th&:t letter. 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: Right. Go ahead. 

MJ'l, l?OTT.ER: "in tne end, aftez, reciting all of the problems with Hope 

Creek, in lieu of detail. In the end, tne problem of Hope Creek .I has been cClll\l?iicated 

by the companies -- this is an understatement -- huge investment to date, over 

$1 billion, which makes cancellation ff!Ven more difficult. Perhaps the only solution 

at this stage is to impose a stringent Cost Containment System - one that correctly 

i111poses the burden of c;:ost overruns on shareholders - and then let management 



decide whether and if so. how to press ahead with construction. 

As for .the future, we must learn never again to be so naive as to trust 

in energy sources, toe cheap to meter. Laws must be enacted and enforced to subject 

electric companies to the ricrors of the marketplace. All in all, whether Hope 

Creek I is completed or someday abandoned -- like its twin unit II -- may be of 

less importance in whether the citizens of New Jersey will learn from these mis­

adventures and take charge of their future. I hope they do, and I am sure that 

you agree with me." 

So, we are going to talk about letters--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: So, on the 21st, you were like this, right? On 

the 21st, perhaps the answer is cost containment, but perhaps it will be abandoned. 

So, you are timing it by the 21st, you were in the middle. 

MR. POTT,ER: Well, that is not a perfect characterization. At that 

point, I guess I was starting to surface it here I did it in a letter to Mr. 

Patrick, whom I never met, and he didn't write back. It was starting to surface 

a little more. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Okay. 

MR. POTTER: But, in my view, you d.on't negotiate a stipulation out 

in public, especially where in the.case of Public Service and the Public Advocate 

we have been like a certain tiger and a certain bear for some time. We are the 

tigers, they are the bears. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Incidentally, July 11th, around this time, an article 

in the Star Ledger appeared. You were quoted as follows -- of course, I have 

been in the business long enough to know that newspapers can be inaccurate and 

can misquote. But, at least let me throw it out and see what--

"Potter thinks that Hope Creek I is a 'financial disaster' that should 

be junked before more money is 'wasted' on its completion." 

MR. POTTER: Who was the writer of that article? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Gordon Bishop, I believe. It doesn't say it right 

here, but I think it was Gordon Bishop. 

MR. POTTER: Gordon is a very dear friend of mine and an excellent 

environmental writer. That is close to my thinking. It doesn't sound like my 

choice of words. 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: Financial disaster? It didn.'t say any other people 

have used it with regard to .Hope Creek. 
MR. POTTER: But certainly, absent some method of containing cost, 

it will be a financial disaster. It was a hemorrh,aging patient. 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: Now,.given what you are saying, it seems, going 

into July, and early July, it was a disaster. You were still not satisified that 

the battle was over. S-975 was a possibility-- Incidentally, let me ask you 

this: what a.bout the question of the Governor having established a blue-ribbon 

commission? was that ever talked about prior .to the first of August? Prior to 

:your going away on vacation? 
MR. POTTER: I think I wrote a letter to Gary Stein where I brought 

that up. 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: But i recommending it? 

MR. POTTER: I think I wrote that to Gary Stein; it might have been 

to Cary Edwards, but--
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proqess. 

jJ:iNATOR STOC~: But. that, was. c;me viable possi:t,j:J:.;i.:ty::,back then • 

. ~. POTTER: l\,n4 that is part ~f the record that yqu hiave. 

SENATOR STOOKMMl: Right. 

l~R. POTTER: I thougnt it was an inte.resting possibility, yes. 

SENATOR STOC~: And it WQUld be.more expeditiou,s than the legislative. 

MR. POTTER:· :,;:t could be. The thing about the legislative process -­

these gentleJ11e11 here know that I was sayil;lg this. -- with tnis .·s-975 blue ribbon 

colllltlission, you had dea,dli.nes, you had to a.Ad, yqu }lad to appoint someone by this 

d~te, s.omeone by that d~te, you meet f6:t t~:i.s lo~g, ~nd then by George, you get· 

somethin~. ~ut, Senatqr, if I may pQint yoq back to 1;1qmething, Governor Byrne 

frequently ,1:tppointed 1:1pec::ial co~issiqne to review one t_hing or another. They 

would meet twice, they would meet once, or they.might not.meet at all. I was 

still hopefu,l that the legislation would c:iome in debate. 

SENATOR STOC~: Now, a9cl:in, l al,-lu,de to the question of. these memos. 

Are there memos in whic.h there are descriptions, pros ap.d, cons, dialogue between 

· you and oth'~rs over thf;l :gierits of enterip.g into an agz,:-eement of the s_ort that 

was signed 1\,ugust 10, l~~;p 
MR. POTTER: .If you let me loo~ at the index, maybe I can find something. 

SENATOR STOC~: B.ecause that silence; or that absence, troubles 

me as much as anytbing else. It seems to sqppor; the contention of not only Mr. 

Nardelli, but Mr. Makul, and I think esi;;entially, Mr. Call\ilChO, that for all practical 

purposes, Rate Counse.l ',s office had rio part of the mix of this agreement. 

MR, POTTER:_ , W:~ll, ;r: won't. accept youf chara.1?teriic1-tio.ni. ei t!her that 

tne <ib$enc~ cSf somethin_g i~ this indei ~l:lP~, that, or; '~~~t i1;1 fact'.we 4id not 
de.al with Bate Co9nse1•·~, offic~- I tgid ygµ tllat:-on .tl-te,~:;,'t\'l9, qcpa$iqns', I met 
with~. Na;rdelli. . · ; . .· r-, · ·ii· ,. · ··' · -

,~ENAT_OR S'l'OC~: Wn,;\t were the j~:tes of t~9S;~ ;lneet,i,.ngs?> , . . . .·, .: . ~ . . ... ., . . •. . 't_ 

:t1~. POTTEJ,l: l don' t know, .but t:ti,ey w:er~ probabty in June. 

~EijATOR STOC~: Aren't they m~orialized ~nywhere in the materials 

that you s~~plied to us1, 

MR. POTTER: No. Not at all, When we sat d,9wn to talk ,about something, 

I would :J.qok at the drafts. I have dr.afts !;?~ck in my office. They are cove.red 

with no,te111 ~U over t!lero, 'l'hos.19. pra;ts we:re in lieu of a memo,rand,um saying, "this 

p.:r;aft s~yf_ tl1is, or t,h;i.~ . d:r:-9-ft says that~" ::i; useµ the drafts tttem~eiv~s. 
•· · · · •.· ·-j~A'l'OR STOC~.: Yo~ went. aw~y on July 29, 1982, correct? 

' t ' ,, ' 
, Mi. POTTER: I think that is the date. · 

• • • . • : ' - "I ' ,. ' . • • • ~ " . 

!. ' : •. ,SE~~TOR STOC!~: 11.hd ;you wer.e oui:; bf communle~tion, essentially, 
and ju"stiti~bly so uritil A)igust 8, 1982, correct? . . . . 

~R. POTTER: I was fishing and canoeing, yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: At tha.t ti~~, when you left -..: I .know the years 

you haye p\lt into _this issue, this part.ic~_lar issue -,,- is it fair for me to assume 

th~t you we;nt away not expecting tha,t·there was go.j.ng to be any major development 

· wftl:l r~gJi~9 t.o Hope cree)c I. :i:s that a ;a.tr ass'Ulllption? 

~R. POTTER: Well, not reall¥'.· In my view, ·it is not & good id.ea to 

air he;re, or anyplace,.th;is offer of thi-f or that counteroffer. But, I am going 

tq ~.ir so:it1eth;i.rig here. 

' $0 

I' I. 
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Just before I left on vacation, we dealt with what I thought was the 

essential quid pro quo in the whole. business. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: When you say we, you mean Mr. Rodriguez and yourself? 

MR. POTTER: I guess Commissioner Rodriguez was also part of it. I 

mean mostly with me and Commissioner Col1;man, as far as putting something else on the 

table with Public Service Electric and Gas. 

That was this: That if the company would agree that under no circumstances 

was the cost containment agreement to be used as a mechanism for boosting the 

rate of return on the theory that the utility has now become a riskier utility. 

Once they agreed to that--and they had not done so when I left on vacation. I 

didn't think they would agree to it, because as you can see from, I think, a memo 

of June 11th, Robert Smith was saying, "If this is signed, it is going to raise 

our risk, and we will need a higher rate of return." But, once they agreed to 

that, I felt I had to yield our last rusted, battered saber, and that was that 

we would fight more on need for the facility. At that point, I felt that we had 

gotten as much as we reasonably .could get. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Was there any document~- Is there any document 

in existence anywhere, that captures that situation as I understand you to be 

articulating; namely, that as you went away on July 29th, you had a proposed ag.reement 

that you felt was in the public interest if you could get this response, and that 

if that happened, it should be execut.ed on and moved forward with? 

MR. POTTER: I don't think so. There might be, with respect. If I' 

look at the drafts that I have, there might be something where that is written 

in the margin. I didn't supply those to you. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Incidentally, you were,· indeed, the "point man" 

on this agreement, weren't you? 

MR. POTTER: Well, I have been called that. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I would suspect that everything points to that. 

I. mean you had years of involvement in this and a great interest, you have written 

and so on. You were the fellow who really possessed the greatest expertise on 

this subject. And, as a matter of fact, you were the spokesman for the Public 

· Advocate in meetings with Ceimmissioner Colerran,. Gary Stein .and others, all right? 

There was no agreement between you and the Public Advocate before you left on 

July 29th., to bring this to a dramatic conclusion. That is, to have a document 

signed, which incidentally, not me, but others, including Mr. Rodriguez and Mr. 

Coleman, talk of in terms of landmark decision, a major development, ahistoric 

coming together -- $4 billion deal, or whatever else it was. There was no under­

standing between you and the Public Advocate that that would happen when you went 

away, was there? 

MR. POTTER: You mean, did I know, when I left, that we had an agreement, 

signed and sealed? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I'm looking for a little more than that. 

MR. POTTER: I.s that your question? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I'm looking for a little more than that. I know 

you didn't know. I think the record is clear. 

MR. POTTER: Well, the answer to that question is, I did not know i'f 

we would have it. 
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SENATOR STOCKMAN: I'm looking for more than that, Bill. I'm looking 

for --

MR. POTTER: Did I think it was going to be a landmark thing? Yes, 

I did. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Did you think it was going to happen while you were 

away on vacation? 

MR. POTTER: That it would be sd_gned while I was away? No, I .did 

not. I was certain that Commissioner Rodriguez would want to talk to me after 

I got back. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Did you think that he would reach the agreement 

and become bound by it? You don't think he did? 

MR. POTTER: No, not at all. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Were you at Commissioner Coleman's testimony yesterday? 

MR •. POTTER: Part of it. I left at some point. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Let me get to that, He not only testified, but 

he was nice enough to give us a statement. I want to ask you a couple of questions 
I 

about it. This is from Commissioner Coleman, cabinet member. 

The Commissioner says, "(In August 4, 1982 [ you were off on vacationJ i.n 

a meeting with the Governor, the Public Advocate and members of the Governor's 

staff, the Public Advocate recommended that the Cost Containment Agreement be 

filed - not prepared - that the Cost Containment Agreement be filed with the Board 

of Utilities. The Governor concurred.. As can be seen from the chronology of 

events I have just outlined, the agreement was not presented to the Governor until 

after all parties had accepted iL" 

Now, I ask you, in the face of that testimony to this Committee by 

Commissioner Coleman, it is a fact, isn't it, that the Public Advocate not only 

thought about it-- He didn't wait for ·you·.to come back. He made the dete·rmination 

and bound the ratepayers of this State to that agreement. 

MR. POTTER: Not at all, Senator. I am sure that Commissioner 

when he spoke with the Governor on whatever that date was, that they were 

about a cost containment that would hold shareholders' feet to the fire. 

is the expression he used. 

Rodriguez, 

talking 

That 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You see, I. wasn't there, and Commissioner Coleman 

refused to share with us what the Governor said. Now, I am going to ask your 

Commissioner that as well, the Public Advocate. He may fe.el that he. has to keep 

the Governor from that-'.;. That might lead us to think, maybe the next thing to 

do is ask Governor Kean to come in to this Committee and tell us. But let's see. 

I am crossing a bridge that we may not have to. 

But, you are telling me that your opinion 6f -- you weren't at that 

meeting -- that August 4th meeting with the Governor, the Public Advocate, and 

the Commissioner of Energy, was that it was more of kicking around, or--

MR. POTTER: My understanding was that it was still fluid with respect 

to whether we would sign a particular cost containment agreement, but that 

. Commissioner Rodriguez was buoyed by the .discussions which led him to believe that 

a cost containment that would effectively.hold shareholders' feet to.the fire 
was a good thing. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: What about the propriety of the Public Advocate 

asking the Governor to approve a filing of an agreement of that sort with the 

Board of Public Utilities? 



MR. POTTER: Well,whether I think that is proper or not? I think 

that is very proper. I will tell you why. Sometimes the Public Advocate is other 

than just a publiLc interest law firm that litigates like crazy with everyone .. 

Sometimes we try to achieve our ends through negotiation and compromise and so .. 

forth. We do this-- We have five divisions of the Public Advocate, and we do 

it all the time. Our Division of Mental Health has recently-.;.. Well, actually 

J;'m not supposed to talk about that. It's not final yet. But, they work to negotiate 

settlements involving other Departments in government. Sometimes the Governor's 

support is.necessary because it might entail an expenditure of funds in the next· 

fiscal year. Under Governor Byrne, Stanley 'llanNess and I met with Governor's 

Counsel and members of the Cabinet to try to work out an agreement on S-1179. 

That was the ill-,-fated predecessor to S-975. So, it is not si.niSter or unusual 

at all. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Now, .we know that Mr. Stein, by a memo. earlier on, 

had indicated that it ~ertainly would be advantageous if the Public Advocate and 

the Commissioner of Energy concurred in this and acted together, We know that 

this meeting was held, and according to Commissioner Coleman, this approval was 

sought - recommended the Cost Containment be filed with the Board. You are telling 

me that you think that is not. inconsistent with the distance that is supposed 

to exist between the Public Advocate as the representative of the public on issues 

like this, as opposed to the Commissioner of Energy. 

For instance, you will re·call, I suspect, that at some point Mr. Nardelli 

claimed that in an exchange.with either you -- I am fuzzy on this -- or Mr. Rodriguez, 

that he got the reply, "Look, you are interfering with the Administration's energy 

policy." Do you recall any such statement being made? 

MR. POTTER: I think it is pure nonsense. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right. lncidently, though, if I understand 

the thrust of your testimony here this afternoon, it wouldn't necessarily be nonsense. 

That is, if the Advocate is seeking the approval of theGovernor to file an 

agreement of this sort, that, it seems to me, is seeking approval to be consistent 

with .the Administration. What would be wrong with the Public Advocat~ in that 

setting, saying to somebody below him On his staff, "Look, don't·press this 

opposition, because you are being inconsistent.with the Administration's policy," 

MR. POTTER: Senator, what I think is important to recognize is that 

this is a stipulation involving at least two departments of State government and· 
possibly the. Board Of Public Utilities, if they approve it. The Department of 
Energy, until very recently, had, I think it. is safe to say, a tenuous hold on 

life. 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: Commissioner Coleman suggests -- I don't want to 

get into this too far -- this is his landmark agreement. 

MR. PO'I'TER: AbsOlu.telY. I'm delighted that he is taking as much credit 

for it as he is, and I hope to take credit for my role in it as well. 
But, before the Department of Energy, I think, could feasibly, really, 

put its future on the line, I thin)c it is entirely proper for the DOE to talk 

with the man who is in charge of that department. We, on the other hand, and 

we under.stood this until the very end, either could sign it or didn It have to 

sign the Cost Qmtainment. Frapkly, I don't think that there would be a bonafied 

cost containment without us there to sign it. 



SENATOR STOCKMAN: What about the question of .the Public Advocate 

commissioning outside, independent counsel.to serve an independent public interest· 
15h this issue. 

MR. POTTER: Well, okay. That question has risen--a·few times. Let 

me address that. You niean to hire:outside counsel at this point to oppose the· 
Cost C:mtainment? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, let's take it in two steps. Let's take back 

the11, as a virable option that· which would have protected the Public Advocate, perhaps, 
from some of the distress and some of the nagging questions that continue, at 

least in the minds of many people, over this whole situation~ First take then,. 
and I will ask you about now. 

MR. POTTER:. Senator, I don't think there would be any naive questions, 

but for what Mr. Nardelli did on Sep_tember 29. so, frankly tnat we did not. anticipate 

it, I think we might be forgiven a little bit. But to appoint outside counsel 

at this point, I think would be another kind of bad faith negotiating by the Public 

Advocate. I think what happened in 'December with that stipulation could arguably 

be considered bad faith. For us to sign the stipulation and then hire outside 

counsel, I think that is rather bad faith. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: What if the Legislature directed you to do that?.· 

MR. POTTER: Well, let me; just finish. The most important thing -­

pe~haps this answers that question -- is, I believe, that this Cost containment 

. i.s in th~ public intere.st. I believe that Commissioner Rodriguez believes it 

is in the public interest. 

Now, Senator Dalton sent us a letter o~ -- I don't remember when, asking 
us to appoint outside .counsel - essentially what Nardelli asked on September 29th ... 

We l.ooked at the issues he w~s raising. It suggested to ine that he did not 'fully ' 

comprehend what we were trying to do w,ith the Cost Containment. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: aill, by then, you really were in a bind. I can 

appreciate Mr. Rodriguez' rea,ction to doing that after he had signed the August 

.10th agreement. I absolutely agree with him., But, the question is whether that 
· 1:1hould have beeri. done before, and if it wasn •_ t, whether it wouldn't justify the 
Legislature in concurrence, hopefully, with·· the Governor in directing that, pursuant 
to.the powers he has. He certainly could turn to·Public service and say, "Hey, 
look, this isn't my idea, but I'm fo~iowin9 orders." 

MR. POTTER: That would certainly be a changed circumstance that might 

entitle them to say .that they want to be relieved of the stipulation. So, I thin!( 
it would endanger whether they would stay into the stipulation or not. 

I should also add that if there is outside counsel appointed by the 

Legislature, anyone, I think it is likely to prolong any consideration of this 

agreement for a very long time. Mind you, with each day that we .negotiated this~ 
we were aware that more money was going.into Hope CrE)ek. With ·every moment of 

delay in approving the. stipuiation, we are getting, into the same bind as we were 

with S-975. 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: Bill, let me ask you this; When you got back a:nd 

heard that this agreement had been struck--. As a matter of fact, there was a 

press release. Are you aware of that, this business of the Advocate blocking, 

or at least holding up, the Governor Is press release for a period of time while 

he went up to talk.-to· Public Service's main man? 
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M~. POTTER: When I got back, I. heard that they agreed to my latest 

counter, counter counter offer, not that an agreement had been .struck. 

At some point on August 10th, when Mr •. Nardelli, Mr. Camacho, Commissioner Rodriguez 

·and I were examining that memorandum of the preceding day. I was on the phone 

with Commissioner Coleman, and we were going back and forth trying to see just 

whether those August 9th concerns really were legitimate criticisms of the Cost 
Containment. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Hadn't he already put himself beyond the point of 
being able to back you up? 

MR. POTTER: I certainly don't think so. If he thought that, he didn't 

reveal it to anybo¢1y. But, I don't think he did because we were still talking 

there.that morning, and then we went up to Newark and. met with Public Service 

to see if they and we really had a meeting of the minds. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: So, you are telling me that this agreement may have 

fallen through. It was still a real touch-and-go, August lo;· 1982. 

MR. POTTER: It was-- I believe .$0. Yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And yet, the Governor's Office had already prepared 

a press release speaking in terms of this Agreement being landmarked and lauding 

the Public Advocate and the Energy Commission? 

MR. POTTER: Well--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Department of Energy? 

MR. POTTER: I can see why they would be eager to jump the·gun. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Do you think, incidentally, that eagerness might 

have been part of the '•.:iicks of the agreement, or are you guys oblivious to what 

the Governor wanted and his press release? 

MR. POTTER: I don't think so; It was not uppermost in my mind as a 

concern. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, was it sort of knit in your mind? 

MR. POTTER: I don't know. I have thought about it since then. At 

the time we wanted to find out if in fact what the. people had written in that 

memo really would hold up .. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Is this really the way to do business over a nearly 

$4 billion landmark, novel, precedent-setting venture? These are tough questions, 

and Joe will have a chance to hear them too. 

MR. POTTER: I think the best way to do business is in some kind of 

a controlled atmosphere where you are not hearing the millions of dollars tinkling 

down stream every moment that.you delay. It is always rush rush, when you realize that 

company is expanding its equities at every.moment. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Incidentally, those millions of dollars are still going to 

tinkle under this Pgreement, right? If you get beyond what is going to happen--

MR. POTTER: Well, Senator, it is a different regulatory environment 

with this. Now, the tinkle, tinkle will not be quite as loud, because they are 

going to be trying to cap their cost. Mind you, Senator, no utility in the country, 

if this is approved, will have such penalties to face. The utilities in New York· 

State have a significantly weaker cost containment to deal with, and that took 

two years to litigate. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Incidentally, on the terms of precident, or that 

kind of thing, are you familiar with another agreement dealing with the Alaskan 

Natural Gas Transportation System? 
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MR. POTTER: No, Senator, I am not. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: It goes back a couple of years, It is a cost contain­

ment agreement. After this hearing, I would like you to take a look at it. I 

am told that it -- again, this is an opinion area-,- is a very sophisticated and 

tight cost containment agreement, far tighter and controlling than the one we 

are talking about. 

MR. POTTER: That may be, but it certainly is not an electric utility. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Let me ask you this: Were you worried about the 

impact that this sequence of events, this August 10th. signing by the Public Advocate, 

would have on the Office of the Public Advocate? 

MR. POTTER: Was I worried about it? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Yes. For instance, did you sense that it might cause 

some real distress among Rate Council? 

MR. POTTER: I was aware that there was some, shall we say, resentment 

over the fact that Trenton did this instead of Newark. There has always been. 

a certain division between Trenton and Newark. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You wrote a bit of a criticism, and I don't fault 

you for this. It was sort of. a chiding of the Rate Counsel's office as to how-­

MR. POTTER: (interrupting) May 2.Sth. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Yes. And you, as a matter of fact, on that occasion 

sort of said we have to act more as a team; we have to have strategy sessions 

and give/take memos to memorialize them and work together and be a little more 

careful about what we do, right? 

MR. POTTER: That was dealing with rate cases, by the way, and this 

was not a rate case. I totally agree that we have to work closely together. I 

think with Mr. Camacho, now, 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: 

as Director, we will do that. 

Incidentally, we have gotten a lot of heavy fire, 

Nardelli-wise. Mr. Makul was part of this mix. Mr. Makul was testifying, I think, 

candidly, about his distress. He contends that there is a serious morale problem 

in Rate Counsel and the Public Advocate now. Do you think that is accurate? 

MR. POTTER: I don't know. I haven't talked to the members of Rate 

counsel over the last several days. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: So, you are not at a position, at least, to deny 

that? 

MR. POTTER: Nor affirm it. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right. Now, this extraordinary circumstances 

or events question, was that debated prior to your going on vacation on the 29th? 

MR. POTTER: Debated with-- Did we deal with that question? 

SENATOR STOOKMAN: Yes. 

MR. POTTER: Oh, yes. Certainly. It rose very early. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And was there discussion about trying to, in some 

way, dE:!al in it, or, circumscribe what could be contended to be an extraordinary 

event? 

MR. POTTER: Well, I .don't remember where that came up, but certainly 

someone -- maybe it was Commissioner Coleman -- I think, was .concerned about it. 

I know Commissioner Rodriguez and I talked about it a good bit. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And was it your feeling that it was better to leave 

it undefined? 
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MR; POTTER: Yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Why was that? 

MR. PO'rTER: Well, be ause of the old law school rule of llexpressio 

tinius est exclusio alterius." f you run a list, that which is out .of the list 

is therefore assumed not to have been included for a reason. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: How about if you say right in it, "but, this is not 

means to be an exclusionness, but rather, a delimitingness. 

MR. POTTER: I think everyone wants to get their thing in the list. 

When you do that, you open it up to what I c::all "litigating a hypothetical." Will 

the 20% interest jump be an extraordinary event? Will a 12%, or a 15% percent, 

c;,r whatever? I did not feel that it was worth the expenditure time. And furthermore, 

as I researched the laws and the large ca$eload on stipulations, it is virtually 

black letter law, that whenever a party to a stipulation believes that there has 

been "changed circumstances," and they .. are entitled to petition the court to seek 

relief because of that change, As I interpret extraordinary events, it will take 

even more than this quiet, implicit changed circumstance clause. You have to 

show that something is extraordinary, and that means at the very least, it has 

to be outside the control of utility management, it has to be unforeseen and reasonably 

unforeseeable. I am confident that that will be a difficult burden for that company. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: That is your interpretation. 

MR. POTTER: Yes, sir. 

SENATOR. STOCKMAN: But you are not going to be the fellow who is going 

to be resolving that issue. It is the BPU that is, isn't it? 

MR. POTTER: Absolutely. That i.s one reason I am delighted, that we 

have this raise it or waive it aspect to it. But mind you, Senator, this whole 

thing is pending before the BPU right now, and the Board is going to ask briefs 

on that question, we are going to get a chance to explain it, and the Board, then, 

will get a chance to rule on it. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: What about Mr. Camacho's interposing objection to 

Ed Lloyd's trying to explore and further define that. Do you think that objection 

was well made? 

MR. POTTER: Well, my recollection. is that Mr. Lloyd got to ask a lot 

of hypotheticals, and it was only at some point that they object in saying how 

much further we are going to go. I think it was a good idea to object to that, 

and it is. for the same reason that we didn't want to go into this hypothetical 

litigation of extraordinary events in the first place. I didn't want us to do 

it. then and I didn't want us to do it on the witness stand on September 29th. 

For one reason, if Mr. Morris put in everything, then we would have to come.back 

and fight him on that, I didn't want that. We .had an agreement, and I felt there 

was room for interpretation. 

SEN.ATOR STOCKMAN: Incidentally, the agreement that you had, you worked 

cm after that, at some length, and refined, didn't you? 

MR. POTTER: Yes. Oh, yes. Before we went into this whole.business, 

! read some things by people on methods of negotiation. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But you had to do that by concurrence. That is, 

every modification you effected had to be agreed to by Public Service, didn't 

it? 
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MR. POTTER: Not necessarily. One method of negotiating difficult issues, 

especially between a bear and a tiger, like Public Service and us, is to try,to 

get agreement to the basic framework - the basic points. Once you have that and 

you go public with that, then each side has a stake in curing out the final detail 

work. 

Now, there was a considerable amount of final detail work that we carried 

out. But, Senator, not until September 29th did we really know that PSE&G and 

we would fully agree on the "joint position of the parties." We had a consultant 

sitting there in the room who was reviewing the joint position work right up until 

September 2_9th, and he was prepared to go on the witness stand to say, "Here is 

our interpretation of it," if we thouqht Mr. Morris - Edward Morris of Public Service -

would misinterpret it. We had that card there. We would have gone forward if 

we had not been able to agree on things. But, we basically did. If you will • 

look at Mr. Madden's testimony -- I think I gave that to you, Steve -- that testimony 

is almost word-for-word - the joint position, with a couple of issues left out 

that Commissioner Rodriguez specifically addressed in his testimony. 

I think we dotted as many i's and crossed as many t's as it was reasonably 

possible to do. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I appreciate your testimony. I don't want to take 

any longer. I am anxious to ask some questions of the Public Advocate. I can't 

resist asking one final question, and I will defer to anybody else, there is a 

little suggestion that may be a smell of a rat in these hearings. It is laid 

on-- I have to ask you, do you still smell that? 

MR. POTTER: Well, I had a bit of a cold, so I haven't been able to 

smell much of anything to well lately. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Okay. I have nothing further. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Have you completed your testimony? 

MR. POTTER: Senator, I think the rest of it I will just enter into 

the record. 

SENATOR CONNORS: I noticed you stopped on page 8, wasn't it? 

MR. POTTER: Yes. I don't really want to keep Commissioner Rodriguez 

off any longer. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: That was my thing. That is part of the public record, and 

youcertainly can share it with the media or put in-~ I just thought maybe we could get 

to the Advocate before this day is over. 

MR. POTTER: I am delighted you asked me the questions. 

SENATOR CONNORS: I have several questions? Why was Mr. Nardelli fired?. 

MR. POTTER: Well, he presented Commissioner Rodriguez with a memo on 

September 29th, which proported to state that he and I were hiding no-show jobs 

in the payroll. That wasn't so, Commissioner Rodriguez was extremely offended 

by that, as you or I would be, _and he fired him. He perhaps thought those were 

no-show jobs because of the quirk in which some names were on this personnel list--

SENATOR CONNORS: Do you have a copy of that? 

MR. POTTER: I don't know. I may_. 

SENATOR CONNORS: He accused you and the Commissioner? 

MR. POTTER: That's correct. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Of hiding no-show jobs on the payroll? 

MR. POTTER: Yes, sir. 
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SENATOR CONNORS: Last couple of questions--

MR. POTTER: Yes. I have it. DO you want to see it? (hands copy to 

Senator Connors.) September 24th - .it is titled, "Illegal u,se of Rate Counsel 

Funds." I think the last sentence ·is· really the operati~e one, if. I could quote 
' ' 

that. "I consider this -- that i's-these,·alleged no-show jobs -- to be illegal and 

iil)llloral, and I urge you to immediately t.erminate this practice._of hiding persons 
·on Rate Counsel Is payroll. II 

.SENATOR CONNORS: Let me ask the next logical question. Are .there any 
illegal persons on the payrol-1--

MR •. POTTER: I certainly don't think so, Senator, and we .have looked 
very closely. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Okay. Apparently, Mr. Nardelli had worked on the 

Florio campaign, and in your attachment 5, you have amezooand speech for Florio 
arid an apparent approval of Hope Creek I. 

MR. POTTER: Yes, attachment 5. Yes. 

SENATOR CONNORS: In a memo of October 2nd, .1981 with regard to Hope 

Creek, he sent the then.Public Advocate Mr. VanNess a memo from Mr. Nardelli concerning 
this speech. Were you aware of .this•? 

MR. POTTER: When we found it, yes. Was I aware that he was working 
on the Florio campaign? 

SENATOR CONNOR: Yes. 

MR. POTTER: Yes, sir, .I was. 

SENATOR CONNORS : You were . aware of that? Not in 19 81 , . were you? 

MR. POTTER: Oh; yes. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Is it common place for a .public servant to· write · a 

memo -- I don't want to put it that way, but for lack of.a better way to put it 
is it common place for public servants to work in campaigns on the public.; s time, 

here, in the ·state House? 

MR. POTTER: I dori't know, but I wou,ld certainly hope not. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Well then-- I don't think I sh.ould ask you whether 

or not any public funds were spent by· Mr.· Nardelli on Mr. Floria's campaign. Do 

you know that? 

MR. POTTER:· I do riot know. I do not know of the substance of what 

he was doing besides writing speeches for him and the position in the papers. 

SENATOR CONNORS: That's all the questions I have. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: ;Bill, I'm. sorry, as long as the Public;: Advocate is 

here, can I ask you one more question, Bil.1. It .has just been.brought to my attention. 
An article contained some reference -- this was a newsp.aper article, I think it was 

the New York Times',August 1~. "According to Mr. Potter, the agreement was signed 

with the .'ambiguous' language still in place, in spite of a last minute emergency 

meeting of the principals to w:ork outwhat conll!titutE:!d an _'extraordinary' circumstance." 

Did you tell the New York, Times representative that the "ambiguom;" language was 

there, inspite of a las.t minute emergency meeting of the 1principals to work out 

-w:hat constituted emergency circumstances? 

MR. PO'l'TER: Who is the New York Timesreprese:i:itative? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Judy Hoops, I .believe. 

MR. POTTER: .Well, I·wouldn't .count ori the ·accuracy cif any articles 

she .has written,. 
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SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right.. So,· you are telling me that you doubt 

you said that. 

MR. :raTTER: I doubt that I called it an emergency, session. I re:inember 

her.calling-- I don't want to.go into it. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right~ It goes on, and tha.t might help. It 

says, "there will be a codicil, like on a will, that will be at.tached explaining 
the language before the Board hqlds its public hearing on. the measure, Mr. Potter .· 

said." 

MR. POTTER: She got that right. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: }\.11 right. Well, really, incidentally, this isn't 

anything like a codicil, what we are talkipg about,: is it? 

MR. POTTER: I. think it is somewhat. Yes .. It is a further part of 

our Agreement that interprets the terms, and we believe should be treated with 

the same dignity as the A•;rreement. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But Bill, a codicil to a will is a refinement unilaterally·. 

A·will is written by one person, and a codicil to that will changes that one person. 

When you have an agreement, you have that totally different situation whereby 

any changes, if they are going to be written changes, have to be by concurrence, 

by agreement of both parties. So,. really, is it fair to analogize the arguably. 

ambiguous language of this Agreement of August 10th with clearing it up by a later 

codicil? 

MR. POTTER:. That wasn't my best course in law. school, in estate planning, 

so perhaps I had an improper anal.ogy. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: · .. Okay. Thank you very much.. I appreciate it. 

'Public· Advocate, my good friend,. Joe Rodriguez; fina:'lly. Let me say., 

publically, that. I have known Joe Rodriguez for ma:r:iy years. I have known him. 

in a different context, generally, than as certainly the Public ·Advocc1-te, or in 

deed, in his variety of public roles. I have known him as an attorney, a trial . . 

lawyer, whom I have tremendous respect for. .I said yesterday, and I want to repeat 

it again, Joe, that in my opinion., your longing for public service, and your corimi1 tment 

to public service, the sincerity of it, I don't question. ~is it is to be 
·admired. I think people could learn lessons about public service from you in 
that regard. 

I will tell you at the outset that I strongly suspect you made a mistake 

in this matter, and I want to get intb some questions on that, and you have full . . . . . . . . . 

time to suggest strongly to. me that I am mistaken in that •. But,. I don't want · 

anyone in.this ro~m, and I certainly don't want the public tpthink, that this 

·hearing, .these inquiries, i:ri any way are intended to reflect on your iritegri ty 

as a public official. 

Now, having said that,. I would like tQ get into·some questions. Did 

you have a meeting on August 4, 1982 with Tom Kean? 

C O M M I S S I O N E R J O S E P H R O D R I G U E. Z: I don't recall the 

exact date, but I don't dispute .that it might have been August 4th; 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: At that time, did you recomlliend to him that the Cost 

containment 141reement be filed with the Board of Public Utilities?· 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: : What I thought we had done then was to agree in concept 

that· a c;:ontainment agreement, if p:i;operly arrived at, should be filed. The concept 

.of moving in that direction was what we agreed upon. 
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SENATOR STOCKMAN: I'm confused. 

MR. RODRIGt1EZ: I think .there has been a lot of confusion, because--

What I think has been trying to take place here is to try to suggest that I, without 

consultation, moved to make a decision because the.Governor wanted it, or the 

Governor directed it. All I might suggest. is, if his letter to a certain editor 

is made available to you -- which I have a copy of ---he outlines clearly what 

his participation in it was. At no time did he know the terms of. this Containment 

Agreement until being briefed on it, shortly before it was made public. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Joe, are you -- we ought to get this 'clear ,-- suggesting 

what is trying to be attempted here, are you telling me-- Are you quarreling with 

the hearing and with the way it has been conducted? I would like to know that. 

Maybe you are. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: What I might be quarreling with is the way it was initially 

shot out of the box. Because what I think happened is--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You mean Nardelli's statement at the hearing? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Yes. I think what happened--,- To put it in proper context, 

and why, I guess, a lot of people keep telling me that at no time are they questioning 

my credibility, I think the way it was started--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: This hearing. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: The .hearing, yes. It was started like, I would suggest 

this comes from a personal friend of mine, it's not my own, a cross-eyed javelin 

thrower who is not hitting the mark but he gets everybody on the edge of their 

seats. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, as the javelin thrower, Joe, who set this hearing 

up, I will take full responsibility for it. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: .But I didn't suggest--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, I mean, let's not kid ourselves. I am here 

as chairman, and Senator Connors. certainly is playing an important and active 

role, but I made clear to you that it was on the day that Mr. Nardelli spoke that 

I talked with your Mr. Potter. As a matter of fact, for the record, I will make 

clear that Mr. Potter indicated that he tended to concur with me that under the 

circumstances, probably it was wise to hold the public hearing to get this matter 

straightened out. Now, all I want to know is, if you think I ama cross-eyed 

javelin thrower in proceeding these hearings-~ 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: No, I didn't suggest that you were, but I suggested 

the first witness was--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right, Mr. Nardelli. 

MR. RODR.IGUEZ: And therefore, we got off for several hours of hear­

ingtangents which bore no relationship to truth or fact; So, we want to get back 

to what really took place. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Now, I .said to you that I was confused with your last 

answer. Let me try to undo the confusion. I would like to ask you again, if, 

on August 4th -- the date isn't too important because you are satisfied that if 

Commissioner Coleman says it was the 4th, ·that was·the date. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: I have no reason to dispute it. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: On August 4th, in a meeting with the Governor, did 

you recommend to him that the C,ost Containment Agreement be filed with the Board 

of Public Utilities? 
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MR. RODRIGUEZ: What I re·commended was, that if, i_n fact, we were ab'ie · 

·to conclude it the way I saw it preceding, that it' should be filed. Itwas·a 

way td try to bring some semblance of order to what I viewed to be a very distu·rbing 

situation of Hope Creek I. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: So, that meeting was-- It was like a preliminary-­

There was no agreement at that point. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: At that pc;,int, what there was, was a conceptual understanding. 

Again, let me suggest one thing--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Conceptual--. Wait a minute, let me write that down. 

Conceptual understanding. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: ·Let me suggest something else to you where I heard from 

Mr. Nardelli, I guess this came like a shot out·of the blue. I am holding 

a letter addressed to me, where the consultant from Georgetown Consulting Corporation 

reviewed the concepts. that we were talking about. Understand, we wanted to be 

sure that everybody understood what we were doing~ Credibility was very much 

an issue at that time. The letter is dated September 8. The letter says, "Dear 

Mr. Rodriguez: Enclosed, please find my draft testimony in regards to the Hope 

Creek I Incentive Penalty Review Requirement 11.greement as requested by Alfred 

Nardelli and Roger Camacho." 

I would therefore suggest that the pursuit, .~-mich we had to be sure Wc;ts 

right1 was certainly taking place with the Georgetown Consulting Group sometime 

in·August, because this doesn't happen. over night, you see. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: That. was September 8th? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Yes. But if he is already. mailing it to me on September 

the 8th, I would assume that it doesn't happen over night, and that it certainly 

wasn't eight days. It's sometime in August~.:. 

SENATOR STOCKMM!: ·n{it you signed .the Agreement on August 10th. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: -We signed the Agreement on August 10th, correct, but; 

we signed it with other· understandings as to what we meant. We then wanted to 

be sure that we memorialized what we were talking about,. We didn't want 

credibili'ty to be a factor in what it was .we understood that Agreement to mean. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN:· Joe, on August 10, 1982, you signed the lgreement. 

It was an agreement that you, the Governor, and Lenny Coleman talked in terms 
of being a landmark agreement. 

MR. RODRIGUE_Z: Su;re. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN,: A historical agreement; a tremendous saving agreement,. 

etc.. We. know it is close to a $4 bi~lion deal. It was a hell of a contract, 

arguably. So, that was done by the 10:th, and this press release was prepa.red, 

and so on, right? And by that: Agreement, you gave up~ on behalf of the citizens, 

the ratepayers of the State, the right to challenge and question and dispute the 

completion of Hope Creek I. That J.greement, ·incidentally, didn't contain any 

statement, and this is a conceptual understanding and details will be worked out . . ' ; . . . 

. and spread on the record hereafter, or a joint statement will be later negotiated, 

I ·don't think, did it? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Well, if in .fac.t it did, what made it all occur? What 

made the joint statement occur? 
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SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, you know, one of the nagging questions-­

Let me answer that. One of the nagging questions that some people have is-­

It began to be realized that maybe that Agreement wasn't what it should be. 

After all, you had people in your house, who the day before -- I want to get that 

came to you and· said, "Don't sign this. It's not in the public interest. It 

is going to damage our credibility. It is based on figures that Public Servic~ 

has given and they have been shown to be irresponsible in terms of the desire 

to grow and build, etc." So, the answer to your question could well be that after 

you signed it, even though you knew what was hittinq the fan, there had to be some 

tightening up at home. I'm not saying that's true. I assume you will dispute 

that. But, from a third-party outsider's point of view, you have to, I hope, 

appreciate why, at least, people would suspect that. Do you understand what I 

am saying? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Listen, I don'.t question the credibility of your perception. 

I am just saying it is absolutely not true. In fact, because the fact that you 

sit down and discuss parameters of an agreement, knowing that you are still in 

negotiation--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: That's what I don't get, Joe. Why do you say August 

10th you were still in negotiation? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: No, wait a minute. After August 10th. You said August 

4th, the meeting with the Governor. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: No. I'm back to the 10th, once you signed it. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Because between August 4th and August 10th, the key 

element as I understood the negotiation to be going, was that it could not be 

used for ratemaking purposes. Now, certainly put the light on, and we were ready 

by August 10th. We were not that ready by August 4th. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: We weren't ready? I only mean to correct you. Incidentally, 

we weren't ready; Joe Rodriguez was ready, right? Rate Counsel certainly wasn't 

in it. The point man was off on vacation. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: But the point man wasn't out of complete contact with 

the office. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Oh, I'm sorry. You had communications over that 

span of time with--

MR. RODRIGUEZ: I didn't, but I think if you talk to Commissioner 

Coleman, I'm sure that he reached him in a public phone booth someplace while 

he was fishing, or tried to. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, Joe, let's hold that one for a minute, because 

incidentally, I'm not necessarily quarreling with your right individually to make 

this decision. That is something you may feel you have the right and may want 

to defend. But, I want the facts to be clear, because there was a nagging, gnawing 

suspicion that you, alone, during that span, made this decision--

MR. RODRIGUEZ: That's not true. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: (continuing) --without the benefit of Rate Counsel 

and without the benefit of Potter. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: That.is totally untrue. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, tell us, around that time, in this critical 

time, because Mr. Potter tells us that around the 5th of August, things still 

weren't final. As a matter of fact, he came back on the 10th, and some things 

were finalized and straightened put, and a dialogue occurred with your own staff, 
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in w_hich supposedly., you were listening.· "Tell me, colleagues, where r should 

go. .I'm close, but I'm not there. What do you think? What do you think?_ And 

then a decision will be made." The problem I .ant having with that, Joe, is Lenny 

Coleman, in his testimony to us, when he says -- I didn't r,ead it all. He not 

only says that you asked Kean - recommended that the :Cost Containment Agreerilen·t 

be filed. This is in his written testimony. He must have deliberated: over preparing 

this. He goes on to say, ''As can be seen from the chronology of events I have 

just outlined, the Agreement was not presented to the Governor until after all 

parties had accepted it." The ~reement, he is saying, had been accepted prior 

to August 5th when apparently you went in, according to him, you may take issue 

incidentally, I want to get to that, because Commissioner Coleman would not share 

with us what was said l:>y the Govel'.'.nor in that sessiop.. That even adds to unanswered 

questions. 

Can you tell us what Tom .Kean said on August 4th about thi.s issue? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: I would rather-- If you have any question with what 

the Governor said, to ask the Governor yourself. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Joe, let me ask you this. You are the Public Advocate, 

representing the c.i tizens of the State, and. you were. in a. meeting, going to this 

very important issue of Hope Creek I. In that meeting, people, including Tom 

Kean, were expressing -- presumably themselves were talking about that A3reement. 

Is it your position, as Public Advocate, that you are not free-to share what was 

said by that individual, who happens to be the Governor, in terms of what was 

s·aid and what influence.it may have .had on you,· in terms of a decision that you. 

had not yet made that involved almost $4 billion in a landmark decision? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: It may surprise you to learn that the Governor listened 

to us. We went there to try to.elicit his support for something that we felt 

was entirely diffe.rent to what was happening in rc;ttemaking with utilitiea; that 

we ti:ioughtwas good for the State and we thought was· in the public interest. He 

listened and he concurred with us, At no time did the Governor give one fact, 

one suggestion; one requirement, and, what he said was pretty much an aside which 

pretty much captured the. entire atmosphere of what: now is viewed to be the ,sinister 

hand of the Gov.ernor .. And, if I may say what _it is, it was simply. that this sounds 

good, and maybe the people will realize that I am not in bed with the utilities, 

which apparently turned out to be not a rather accurate statement from what is 

now being perceived. That is why it is so unfortunate that the Governor is drawn· 

into this, and he was the least active member in the entire situation. 
. . ( -

You talked about my credibility. Gerry, I'm teliing you this, and pardon 

me for not calling you Senator. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: ·I have been Joeing you, you ought to be able to Gerry 

me. (laughter) 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: If he gave me one direction, .one fact to be incorporated 

into that Agreement·, one suggestion beyo11d what we were saying was so critical 

at a time when rates were running away, I would.be totally lying to you. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Joe, on· August 4th, at a time when you suggest and 

you contend the dye was not cast cm this· historic and landma_rk proposal, close 

to $4 billion deal, you went to see the Governor, and he sc;tid to you, lfThis sounds 

like a pretty good deal, and maybe I'm not in bed with the utilities," or something,· 

and then you left that meeting, and then :you had to decide what to do. 
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Is it your testimony that having come to know that the man.who appointed you 

to the position of Public Advocate told you straight oh,that to him it sounded 

like a good idea, had no influence, played no part, had no bearing on what you 

did from that moment on? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Absolutely true - had no bearing. Let me put it this 

way--· 

SENATOR STOCKMAN.: Subconscious:J.y? (laughter) You can't answer that? 

You can't answer that, Joe? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: No. Subconsci-ous:J.y. You see, my subconscious works the 

other way. When I was chairman of the SCI, where I was supposed to be independent, 

I was attacked for being too independent. Now that I am a Cabinet officer with 

certain responsibility of conversation, he hasn't directed me to .do one thing, 

controlled me to do one thing, in fact, insists on our independence, because that 

is what the public interest is, and it was on that condition that I took this 

employment. Even to the extent if subconscious~y, I think and I suggest to you, 

Senator, that some of my answers to you before the Appropriations Committee would 

have been tampered. The agreement that I had with the Governor at no time has 

suggested that I do anything that I don't agree with. 

Now, let. me say what is the difficult part of proving a negative. When 

you are working and you hav.e a point man that is working it out, who you have 

great confidence in, Bill Potter, who has now been dealing with. Roger Camacho,· 

when you have consultants that are telling you it is in the public interest--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Excuse me. · He wasn '.t dealing with Roger Camacho 

on August 4th. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Let me finish for a moment. How do you unprove a negative? 

I can simply tell you this, and then ,you.weigh it for whatever purpose you want. 

If it was as fixed and concrete as you are trying to suggest it --· 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Joe, I _don't know why you say that. I am trying 

to get to the truth. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: So am I. But I am suggesting this: if I had mentally 

had it fixed as someone is suggesting so, that something happened to take me off 

that course, if it were that fixed,.would the parties involved in that Agreement 

also have known it was that fixed?. I would suggest to you that theYwotild have, 

or you could not have suggested that it was fixed. Why then,would Public Service 

later yield the most critical provision in that Agreement? And that was that 

it could not be utilized for ratemaking purposes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Later? You mean after August 4th? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: At the time they conveyed it that I understood that 

we were now ih the position to proceed. And I can't tell you the exact dates. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But Joe, I don't want to lose this point. Are you 

suggesting that on August 4th, in this meeting with the Governor, where Commissioner 

Coleman 9uggested -- both of you, he and you recommended-- Incidentally, I think 

you would agree with me that Leonard Coleman's role in this situation is very 

distinct and separate from yours. That is, he is a cabinet member. He doesn't 

have this burden of the independent issue - autonomous, and so on. But, are you 

telling me that at that time, t_here was no provision that the Agreement did not 

contain a provision that you would forego the right to challenge the need? 
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MR. RODRIGUEZ: No, that's not what I am saying. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Oh, I misunderstood you. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: · I '.m saying ·that Public Service has yielded 

) 

into the 

Agreement, the right that it not be used for ratemaking purposes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right, I misunderstood you. August 9th, you 

got the memo from your· staff, is that correct? Rate Counsel? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And your three most experienced Rate attorneys. As 

a matter of fact, the only attorneys in your operation who had any actual experience 

in personally handling rate cases as lead counsel -- this is not to detract from 

Bill Potter who has tremendous credentials of his own, but, I don't Bill - and 

correct me if I am wrong - has been ari active Rate Counsel lawyer before the Board 

of Public Utilities on this matter, has he? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Not in this matter. As I understood it, he was with 

public interest prior to this, but very heavily involved in energy. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But at least the only attorneys who have d.ealt with 

Public Service who have been before the BPU and so on, and have struggled with 

this Hope Creek issue, all three of them delivered to you a memorandum urging you 

not to sign this agreement. As a matter of fact, their testimony is --this is 

interesting, come to think of it. At that time, they didn't know, did they, that 

you were about to sign this Agreement? They testified to that. I am really asking 

you that now. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Well that's not consistent then with their memorandum. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Wait a minute. The memorandum was saying that you 

shouldn't sign a cost containment agreement-- It doesn't say the agreement that 

you are about to sign tomorrow. Their testimony, I believe-- Mr. Makul's was. 

I don't think Mr. Camacho-- In fact, I think Mr. Camacho supported this, and Mr. 

Nardelli, was that they .weren't aware that i_t was a matter of a day or a couple 

of days from your actually putting your signature on that greement. As a matter 

of fact, the prime architect of that meniorand~, Mr. Makul, said he rushed over it on 

the weekend, not because he thought that within a day or two it would have been 

signed, but it was important and he wanted to get it done. So, your Rate Counsel 

didn't know that you were on the verge of that. Isn't that'a fair statement? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: That could be their perception. I have no problem with 

that. 
. . 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And they delivered this rather strong plea to you 

not to sign any agreement. Tell me this, as of the 9th, what, if any, pressure 

was there on you to sign that document the next day? In other words; I know every 

day a million dollars, give or take, definitely lots of millions of dollars. 

I know there was basic pressure; But, was there any peculiar pressure whereby 

you felt that you had to, on the 10th, sign that Agreement? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: None. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right. So, the 9th, you get this drastic 

draft stipulation on Hope Creek from Nardelli, Camacho, andMakul with a copy 

delivered to Potter pleading with you and pointing out all of the terrible things 

about this proposed Agreement. Is that correct? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Yes. 
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SENATOR STOCKMAN: Now, you are still-- As I understand your testimony, 

you are telling us that you still were undecided on whether or not to sign it• 

rs that a fair statement? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: No. You are characterizing. What I understand is, 

from the nature of the negotiations that! Mr. Potter was conducting, that it kept 

looking good. It kept looking good, and that we were. working to the place where 

we were going to finally arrive at an agreement; It looked that way. And you 

know when you are negotiating, you kind of get a sense that something is going 

t'o happen. When the memorandum came, Bill Potter contacted Roger Camacho to allay 

the fears of what was th.ere and to explain to him what had occurred. Now, after Roger 

Camacho spoke with Bill, because if in fact there was a communication gap where 

they didn't know the full extent of where we were, that perhaps they should be 

talked to, then Roger was convinced that those fears were now allayed in that 

memorandum, because they had to be explained. The perception problem maybe, the 

timing, was wrong, but not in our minds as to where we were on Auqust the 9th. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Joe, you had a meeting with him, right? On the 9th? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Yes. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: And it was described as a meeting where you didn't 

say to them, "Hey fellows, got your memo. I'm sorry, but a deal has been struck. 

My credibility is behind it." You listened to them, and you were open-minded about 

it. You were open-minded on whether to take the extraordinary step of placing 

your signature, as the Public Advocate, to a landmark, $3.7 plus biliion agreement. 

Is that a fair statement? 

MR, RODRIGUEZ: That's true. But,, you see, you have.to understand, 

in what we already had and what was going to·be floated into the ratepayer; even 

if certain very technical provisions may not be polished up as well as we would 

have liked, we at least had accomplished something that no one wanted to listen 

to us since February when; incidentally, we reactivated Hope Creek I. You have 

to understand what is in my mind. What is in my mind is, we have now looked back 

into the record. We are having some confusion. I went up there to ask a very 

pointed question, and if you call every, single member of Rate Counsel--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You mean Steve Smith? 

MR, RODRIGUEZ: No, no. Rate Counsel. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: When are you talking-- What date? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Oh, August 9th, and before that, and before ,that, when 

we were talking about cost containment. You see, it leaked out into the papers 

seve.ral times, the fact that we were doing it. I asked, on at least two occasions, to 

everyone up there, "Can we stop this plan?11 The unanimous answer from everyone 

was, "No. ·11 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: That must have puzzled you, didn't it? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: What? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I mean because those same people tended to say to 

you, IIThis is a disaster." I mean, Bill Potter, for instance, very articulate 

and very deeply committed to the proposition that this is a disaster, and yet, 

they are telling you there is no way we can stop this with the Board of Public 

Utilities. Didn't it confuse you? MY instincts, when I hear that is, "Wait a 

minute, the Board of Public Utilities is an independent, quasi-judicial agency 

charged with the responsibility for weighing these things and making a decision 

presumably in the public interest." What about that? 
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MR. RODRIGUEZ: Well, it confused me, as a lawyer, and r will share 

with you why, and what controlled my thinking in that we should move to a cost 

con.taihment provision that for the first time took some of the responsibility 

into the shareholder and management to calculate properly. We kind of lose sight 

that that is very new. 

Why? Because, when we moved against Hope Creek I in February, I was 

with the perception that the battle was still alive. Now, as a lawyer, I look 

at it, and I see that in 1979 we couldn't .challenge the forecasts. I see that 

through nine months of hearing and some 51 days of hearing - nine months and 51 

days - the expenditure of $400,000 into that case, not a whisper against Hope 

Creek I. Then I read the stipulation, the need, then I see the upfront loading 

of the amortization where Public Service. asked for $83 million,· and we give them $93 

million for the purpose of making sure that plant is completed. 

Now, as a lawyer, it is one thing to tell us now that my strategy was to 

sucker in Public Service, but, you don't sucker in the Appellate Di vision when 

the record is barren.of proof, and you have to now challenge the discretion of 

the Board. You must start all over. That is a lawyer looking at this. 

I am saying, with the sausage that we now have, what do we do? What 

do we do? S-975. Critical for a moratorium. Critical. No. Undoable. 

Even now, this advocacy que.stion that is burning the souls of the people 

in this State,passed the Senate in June - it is now October and itis not even 

before the Assembly. 

So, I am saying, why do we have the public on the edge of their seats? 

We have them because someone wants to contaminate a legitimate process that took 

· place. Our nails were knocked down three times.before the BPU. What is available 

to us? A brand new lawsuit? We are going to study this thing to life. Usually 

you study it to death; this is being.studied to life. What do we do? The concept 

of the cost containment. And now we start moving with provisions. I have someone 

working on it, it sounds like we are moving -- I'm not sure of the dates -- it 

sounds like we are proceeding, in comes a memo. Are they aware of what we were 

doing? Explain it. The explanation, Camacho was satisfied, experts are contacted 

in late August to make sure that the definitions are clear.. You see, this is 

only a framework. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: You're post-agreement, right? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Oh, post-agreement, but. that is a motion. I will tell 

you right now, as late as. the morning of September 29, if the .definitions that 

were now in clouds didn '.t come out the way we felt they Should be, I would not 

'have participated in that motion. But we were not in that atmosphere. Now, we 

are trying to suggest that atmosphere existed, and it did not. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Joe, back in August, the Governor is putting out 

a press release, which apparently, you not only had, but you controlled, in a 

sense -- my recollection is, your testimony was, you held that press release up, 

right? For a period of time? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Yes. But for what reason? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Because-'-- My recollection is, you wanted to go up 

and meet with Smith of Public Service to somehow refine or straighten something 

out. You tell me. 
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MR. RODRIGUEZ: Yes, okay, for this reason. Conceptually, we had an 

agreement. When I say conceptually, it was all paper. It was all paper, but 

there were a lot of things that were understandings. We had the understandings. 

We wanted to be sure that those understandings were committed to writing. When 

someone raised the question of extraordinary circumstances as being .a "gaping 

loophole," what was involved there? What was involved .there now was credibility 

between us -- I am saying me and the participants in that Agreement. At no time 

iHd we waive our right to fight them to our death on definitions of extraordinary 

circumstances. At no time did we yield the fight to see whether or not the costs 

beyond the cap were reasonable. That ~verybody sugge!;lted this was a kissy-kissy 

Agreement? Absolutely not. I wanted to say to them, "We understand. that theiL_ 

places were still fighting, anq that it is not given away under these things," and 

· they agreed. Why did I have to do it? Because when you back down on stipulations, 

do you know when a lawyer backs down on stipulations what happens to his credibility? 

Do I have to suggest that you now explain to a court that you suckered somebody 

in? 

They had to hear it from me, because if those battles have to take place, 

they are going to happen. Let me ask you this: Without the cost containment, 

reasonable charges beyond what we call the "cap," would they not go into the 

ratepayer? Extraordinary circumstances, if we don't say, "And you tell us when 

you, think you have it or you waived it," wouldn't they get into the ratepayer? 

So, this hemnorrhage is going. What we have done is pulled down parts 

of that, put tourniquets on it to say, "but the reasonble ones beyond, you pay 

a penalty." That is not a light provision. Extraordinary circumstances, you tell 

us and we will fight them out. So, this Cost Containment Jlqreement was something 

very good; very exciting, you see. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Joe, you a:re telling me that this really sort of 

came into a -- just what you described -- definitive position after August 10th, 

well after, because you might have backed out of this. You just said a moment 

ago if the definitions of sorts weren't clarified, if all that extra work that Mr. 

Camacho and others did through late August and .into September didn't come to a 

proper conclusion, you were in a position to say,· "forget it," right? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: No, because we had understood this is what we meant. 

We were just committing it to writing. You see--, You are trying to sugg.est that 

everything was concrete, and then we changed it. We understood and then we purified 

it. We purified it with words cin paper because we understood now what we 

all had agreed we understood, with extraordinary circumstances. We now understand 

what we understood, and we didn't want to leave anything to credibility, so we 

wrote it all out. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Let's look at that press release!, which you were 

aware of. The press release issued from the Governor's Office on the 11th of 

August said, "This Agreement represents a major break-through in efforts to 

bring utility costs under control," Kean said, "it assures the utility's customers 

that they will.not be required to shoulder all or any financial burden due to 

construction cost overruns." That is very inaccurate, isn't it? Does this Agreement, 

or did it assure that the ratepayers wouldn't have to pay for any cost overruns? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Well, you have to now read what the provision says. 

Even if the overruns · are reasonable, .the shareholder or the utility will be penalized -

even if they aret reasonable. But, there may be that piece before you hit to the 
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penalty provision that would ·be a piece of an overnui.. ·Yes, okay. Unreasonable and 

inprudent - absolutely not. That doesn't go into rate base. Extraordinary·-

only af-ter we fight it out. I suggest this· to ¥Ou: as it stood in concept, before; 

what we all understood the words to mean we put it in writing so that we didn't .have 

a credibility problem, even at 'that point, that llgreement was more than this State 

ever had in utilities, and more than it· could_ hope to benefit for the ratepayer 

in view of the fact the way Hope Creek I. was gqing with no containment at .all. 
. . 

SEN~TOR STOCKMAN: Were you concerned at the effect that what you did 

on Ailgust 10th would cause some serious problems internally? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Are you asking me if I thought it would create the explosion 

that occurred? Absolutely not. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Did you think there was going to be a real morale 

problem in Rate Counsel by virtue of the sequence of. events of how this Agreement 

was signed on August·1oth? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: I didn't think it should, once it was properly-- Once 

Roger ~amacho was involved, I certainly didn't think it should. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: . Incidentally, M:r •. Camacho doesn't really come in 

to the picture until after the 10th, does he, for all practical purposes? 

MR~ RODRIGUEZ: I don't see-- Let's get right back to that point. You 

are the trial lawyer, you leave me with the record of $400,000 expen_diture without 

asking a single question about Hope creek I, or questioning it:. And nowt am 

containing it. Why should .I suggest that when you never raised it as an objection, 

verbally, that you should be upset?. If anything, you should_be happy I don't 

come to you and say, "Listen, in view of these statements you have made to the 

press, why don't you come back and account $400,000 worth of preparation and not 

a peep." Where am I wrong? 

The transition report - why should my mind suggest that they are going 

to be upset when they never publicly attacked it? No. I didn't think they were going 

to be that upset. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: But Joe, you took over, and you then developed-­

I know what you are saying. I understand. I think.it is a matter of record. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Okay. As long as we are clear. 
SENATOR STOCKMAN: But you took over in February, and then, through 

a series of memos and public statements--_ And what about this Mvisory Counsel? 

Incidentally, do you recall going before them? We have a flyer with ·an agenda 

for.t~~m, this group who traditionally, I'thought,-were to be a sounding bo.ard, 

a gro11p o_f deeply interested qi tizens who at least give you . Some sense. of .feeling 

of the public interest, the tough issue that you have to grapple 'with day to 

day. We all respect that. 

The agenda was May 2~, and one of you said, "The Future of Hope Creek 

I: Holding New Jersey Hostage. A brief history of Hope Creek I power plant, 

why PS says Hope Creek is· needed a'nd see why Hope Creek is _not needed. " 

So, you, whenever the history of your predecessor, you came in Febrµary, 

and from then on, through a series of developments,you seemed _to come on strong. 

I have to suspect that_Bill Potter was a major influence·in your doing _that. 

I don.'t say that critically, but you came on real. strong·, publicly, with your 

advisory committee arid through other public utterances with a po~ture of "Hope 

Creek is bad. It is -- others say financial disaster," and then, with Rate Counsel 
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.essentially out of the picture-- Incidentally, now, in those critical 

!!otter away; you reached this ~g;reE:l~ent on the 10th,. wheri on the 9th, you 
. ' .-. , ., ' . 

this memo pleading with you not to?. 

What I am trying to bring out is, that would seem to meto have made 
you uncomfortable abou.t the possible reaction of the public to ,what you were 
doing, no? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Not at all. In fact, I gue.ss one of. the miscalculations 
was, that if the public were to know the. facts as they truly existed, a!'ld what 

was going through.my mind, they should applaud this. Because, when 
in;. you see, and .we started to. tdk about Hope. Creek f, I thought I had 

' ' .·, · .. _, . 

horsE:i .to ride. It all turned out to be (uses foreign expression). Now that 

we can't ride that horse, we .go the next best way. '!'he next best way.was S-975. 
when the moratorium was killed-- .Look, I. think. ft would be. adverse to the public 
interest if I fookediike the only guy who·cares,·continues to fight something 

arid throw good money.after had -- I have a fiscal responsibility also. 
in court was dead. The moratorium was dead. I suggest now, that rather than 
studying this thing to life, th~t those· who still-"" All of the forms are close 
to us. We have exhausted them - went into the· cos.t containment. 'I'hat those 

who have the power to react in government move to do something mo.re dramatic, 

but investigating this J\greement:, you see? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I'm going .to move. I am prE:itty·convinced now, ·but 
I like yourreacHon to this: I.am going to move to try to persuade my colleagues 
in the LegiSlaturEJ and the. Governor., to d.:i,.rect that a special counsel be appointed 
to vigorously take the indE:ipendent.publ±c intE:irE:lst or a~other public interest 
that I perceivE:i to stop the completion of Hope Creek I, to di.rect that you appoint. 

outside counsel. I know how sensitiyeyou are about the question of whether 
if you did that, it would go to your credibility; I know Senator Dalton coiilmuni.catE:id 
with you on that and you re$ponded. I .can :understand that. Having reached this 

Agreement; which! know you genuinely feel is in the public interest, I can appreciate 
.why you would not entertain hereafter that suggestion. . -. . . 

But, :i: am going to suggest to you that from hearing it aU·and because· 
of thEJse issues that: have come tip now, and the questions that are produced 

as a result: of this hearing, I, at least, am going .to rnalte that effort. Not 
toeinbarra.Ss or cause you problems, not to cause anybody else problems, 

. :fac,t, it seems to me, undisputed, is, that there has never b.een a vigorous p:resenta­
•·· tion of. oppositipn to the. completion · of Hope Creek I, . with expertise . be.fore a 

charged to independently evaluate that issue. a~cause.1 your suggestion -­
think I read it 1bua and clear .;._. is that somebody else had the opportunity 
that arid they d,ropped the ball. 

I don't think the p:ubHc ought to be proh;ibited from ever having that 
kind o.f a vigorous.'pJ;esentation with expertise. It may well fall short. It 

may fall far short. But, i don't thi.nk thE:l public, in the setting 
. . 

today, ought to b.e denied, that opportunity. . . 
MR. RODR!GUEZ: Let me j:ust comment on that this way: . I do.n' t want 

to suggest to you that in saying what I said.:._ I suggested capable counsel -­
. dropped the ball. But, what I a.m saying fs --, I'm glad .y6u reitera.ted tlle way 

. . . 

ybu did, sort of like suI11I11ing it up, because look 
~ith~hat was the past, looking at it ·today as to what we heard at the first 
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day hearing. That is why I was a little disturbed. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: We have reached-- We have come together. Can I 

have your support on that bill? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: No. For this reason:· I don't suggest they dropped 

the.ball. What I suggest, from looking at all of the things they did, by looking 

at the transition report, by seeing what they told me on two occasions, that they 

couldn't stop Hope Creek I was, that their legitimate fight was on Hope Creek 

II,. and they accomplished it·. What they tried to do later was to say it was 

a vigorous attack on Hope Creek I, which it was not, because·that was y{elded, 

I think, in the stipulation. 

Why I object to the suggestion of appointing outside counsel, and 

here, I am taking the counsel of many people that we have talked to - Senator 

Dalton. If S-975 wasn't going to do the job and it was going to be moved,back 

at the time when it could go through the Legislature, what is a ·new lawyer going 

to do now without a moratorium? You see? We are going to study it to life. 

I think a new attack, a new litigation, a new pursuit with the way the money is being 

poured into that plant, is futil.e and. holding out, again, a false hope to the 

ratepayers that are certainly under heavy burden with the rates, that it is not 

going to accomplish, because time is working against it. If Senator Dalton's 

projection was right, that by June of 1983 it is moved, how quick are you going 

to get a process-to examine? So, I think the necessary ingredient would be some 

type of stoppage t6 look at. But just to send somebody to look, I think it would 

be exhausting our funds in the tight economy, chasing after something that would 

be at tacking Hope Creek I with a wooden sword. I don't _see it as an accomplishment. 

Please accept the way I am saying it. 

It is in that light. If someone else wanted to attack it, listen, 

we couldn't do it, we didn't set the record to do it. God bless them, because 

we never once were saying that we condoned everything, and Hope Creek I and everything 

else. 

What I am saying is, you have to be a little cautious when they do 

talk about capacity and they do talk about a lot of things and you don't have 

your record for the benefit of the taxpayer and the ratepayer, to try to contain 

that construction; and that is all we did. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Joe, what about the question of public confidence 

in all of the players in this drama -- ·a little overstated the public's 

perception of the Advocate and his role in this, the Board of Public Utilities, 

Tom Kean, and everyone else? Where does that fit in at this point, if at' all? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: You see, what I think is the most unfortunate thing 

in what happened is, when you look at the truthful chronology now, and you look 

at the way this was done, believe me, in entire good faith, someone -- again, 

I suggest to you that if .they were participating with a .consultant in late August-­

I know you are .going to say, "Well you already agreed." The knowledge, the. dealing 

with a consultant so that the expert can give us the words that were the words 

we wanted to be sure-- He was involved then, because the consultant says it, 

not because I say it. .There was no big hostiie, critical problem at that time. 

Why should I perceive the problem? 

What I now see. is, because of unfortunate circumstances that occurred 

between myself and f4r. Nardelli, he was more accurate perhaps than I was on that 

afternoon, because he knew how easy it would be to penetrate 12 years of public 
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service by firing one bullet fro,:n a character assassin's rifle, and he_ has 

accomplished it. How can we reestablish the confidence in the Public Advocate?' 

Certainly not because r will go back and say that I did anything that I thought·· 

was wrong. Not because I thought there was anything doable that I ::!.idn; t do 

· other than contain a hemnorrhage . You ·see, I am boggled by what the record· was· 

telling me as opposed to the outburst that is not contained in the record. 

The public may want to believe that, because they believe everyone 
in public life i·s somewhat shakened. And everyplace I have stood with the SCI, 

with the State Bar-- Take those o],d speeches. I say, the only thing I want 

to do is reestablish confidence in g.overnment. We arrive at things in go_od faith. 
Disagree with the conclusion, but not the good faith. When you hammer at the 

good faitb, people want to believe that, and that is 'the, posture we are in now •. 

How can we prove a ,negative? We .can't. But if you dc:in' t believe that 12 years 

of service, I can't be of any further help. ± am telling you, this .was arrived 

at in good faith, ho one forced me, there was ho coercion, I didn't receive a 

word from the Governor--
SENATOR STOCKMAN: Joe, how can you say you didn't receive a word from 

.the Governor when on August 4th you met with him,and your colleague Lenny Coleman 

· tells us, in writing, that you recommended that this Co.st Containment Agreement 
. be filed with the Board of Public Utilities? He said something to you at that 

. . . . 

meeting. You told us he said, "Hey that sounds like a great deal." 

MR:.· RODRIGUEZ: That is us to him; I am suggesting' that we had no 

directions from him to us. Not even by innuendo,· not even by suggestion. He was 

hearing the way wewer~ working out a very serious, complicated problem, and 
agreed with it. we then felt·that ih order to bring hew life to the rateinaking 

process, what is that.new life? Once Hope Creek I is off the table-,- which 

I suggest to you already was -- there will be a tomorrow. The to~orrow is, that 
you now start q.oing something very new, very dramatic, and very different, and 
then saying right up fron:t, · ''give us your projections, There will be penalties •. 

We want to know." why is that important? Because, now that you get the detail 

of their future projections with pena;I.ties written in, can they. be more seve:c:e. · 

in a new application? I would suggest they can because it is a new application. 

Yi:>u are in a better barga.inin_g position than when· you have lost three times. 

To have that kind of an agreement and look at it, and then say, "Here is s..:975. 
We.can now study it in light of the.absolute projected facts." You see, that 
process may not -be existing_today. That_is the process that we felt was a break­
thro-q.gh, it was new, it wa:s dramatic, because it hadn't existed. 

Let's say that on the morning of September 28th, I :tore up ali of the 

papers and went home.:.. ·reason.able·cost, ratebaSeL extra6rdinary circumstances, .. . . 
rate base-; C!HP, rate base; AFDC, rate base--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: The BPU reviews all of these in the public interest 

arid only lets happen what should happen, what.is reasonable. Don't wipe away 

the BPU. They are out there,. Joe. 
MR. _RODRIGUEZ: No, _I'm noL What's reasonable. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: All right. If it is reascinabie, then it should 

be? 
MR. RODRIGUEZ: No: But see, that is what we did. That is the beauty 

of this a_greement. Even if it is reasonable, you are going to pay a pen.alty. 
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SENATOR STOCKMAN: The BPU is there. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Well, but see-- Let's assume that the policy is. If 

it is reasonable, let it go through. We said even if it is reasonablei you are 

going to pay 30% if you exceed 10 - even if it is reasonable. You see, that 

is the beauty. That has never been done. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: No, but if the public gets what is reasonable, Joe, 

instead of 70% better than reasonable, there can't be too major a quarrel over 

it. ,, And, they would get what was reasonable with the Board of Public Utilities,, 

theoretically. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: No. If it is 70% better than reasonable, they don't 

get a penny of it. If it is not reasonable and not prudent, they don't get it, 

if.it is reasonable to get a penalty. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Joe, where does JCP&L come in to all of this? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: I don't know. I heard your comments on that. JCP&L, 

as I understand it, is having problems. The question is, what might be the future 

of JCP&L? I know that is being debated around. I have not participated in what 

the judgement should be. Although, incidentally, I was taken on -- if you remember 

for an early statement on the Thornberg proposal, and again, it was, I guess 

to curry favor with the Governor. I came out three weeks before the Governor 

even reiterated anything about Three Mile Island, and I thought I was really 

endorsing a bill from Senator _Bradley, who was actually the sponsor of the bill. 

Again, that was one of those other flashes that came out in that first hearing. 

Other than that, and knowing that Rate Counsel is involved, I have 

not been called upon for .a policy decision. They are not completely autonomous. 

If in fact judgements have to made in policy set, I think that is where the dollar 

stops with me. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Joe, I am going to take the privilege pf the chair. 

Before I turn the meeting over to Senator Connors, if he has some questions, 

I am going to say something very delicate. My instincts have taught me through 

life that the best approach is straight forward. I am going to publicly say 

to you now, as a person who I expect and anticipate to be dealing with in public 

life hereafter for a long time to come, that from my review of what we have, 

without the record to reperuse, I find myself satisfied t,hat you made an error 

of judgement in the way you handled this }IJJreement. In saying that, I am extra 

anxious to avoid your misinterpreting what I say. In saying ,that, I don't suggest 

that you were out to curry favor with the Governor. I was uncomfortable and 

unhappy with a witness who would suggest that, and I think he had lost control 

of himself and I reject that. But, I do say to you publicly, as a result of 

these hearings, that to me, .it is inescapable that on August 4th and thereabout, 

if you were not completed arid resolved in your determination to move forward 

with this, that to have such a meeting with the Governor and to proceed without 

the benefit of Rate Counsel in the mix and with indeed Mr. Potter away, and then 

the circumstances that followed that, I am not satisfied that you weren't unwittingly 

influenced by factors that should hav,e played no part in the determination. I 

know your opinion and your strong feeling is the contrary, but I tell you, I 

·can't get away from .this transcript and what I have heard and not feel .that. 

It is because of that, I think, that we ought to get independent counsel. I 

respect your view that it is wasted taxpayers'·money, and history will have to 
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re.solve that, but I think, at least,. that finding ourselves without ever having 

that kind of rigorous presentation, it'ought to be done now. After all, we are 

talking-- Let's suppose ·we are talking about a half million, -or maybe a million_ 

dollars of money -- Idon''t want to sourid cavalier. The othe:r .side of the coin 
is many, many billions of doliars. Under the circunistances as they ha.;,e been 

· testified-- I must tell you, Conunissiorier Colemanwas·probably as persuasive 

on this point and more so than Mr. N_ardelli, in terms of the_ sequence of events 

in where we fouridOurselveS,o~ wh~re we find ourselves today. 

I know I didn't have to _say ·that. Now I could have done that or said 
it .later, but I have so.much respect for you as person,· I don't want you reading 

that in the paper. I want you to_know that that is my view at this moment. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Well, let me say, Senator, that I think you are compl_etely 

wrong. I can't say that you are not free to arrive at whatever conclusions you. 

want. I never took an action that wasn't completely in consultation and in agreement· 

with where I understood we were, which I still contend is in the public interest. 

Let me suggest this, so that we don't continue to rc!,ttle the public 
unnecessarily. I think anyone·whothinks_we are wrong, ariyone who thinks.that 

·the ratepayers are going to suffer from it, and anyone who thinks it is not in 

the best of the State-who is in a position to do something about it, should do 

something more aggressive than simply .ask it to be studied back to life, l'l'hich 
ariy new counsel would have to do. We did the best we had with the record we 

ha-ve, and I think, as a lawyer, you look at it, and you tell me what an appellate 

court would do with that record when you now start saying that it al~o contained 

this vigorous, long, inariy year.battle against Hope Creek I. ·rt was just not 
there. We did the best we could. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I would happily in_clude ih this bill that I intend 

to introduce, a moratorium, a stopping, if I thought I. could get it through the_ 
Legislature. I want to say very frankly, and I have said this earlier and wiil' -

repeat it: I don It give the Legislature terribly high marks on the -history of 

this situation. I know I say that at soine risk. - The Senate moved on it, on 975; 

whether that's the answer. _ But, I think this issue is big: enough for issues. There are·_ 

several of .them, I think, in the mix of these hearings to just_ify that. I know what you 

are saying, but I don't th_ink I can __ do any more than that; 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Well then, I don't really appreciate the suggestion 

that my judgements were wrong-""'. 
SENATOR STocftMAN: I didn't think you would., Joe._ 
MR.' ·Rol)RIGUEZ :- Ill -view ·of ·the. recqrd., wlj,en You _te) .. l me that· ·the on~y. 

body that is still the court -of last resort, may still be unwillin'g' I am. kind 
of wondering who was supposed to be _the future scapegoat ih the entire matter~ 

_:I'm saying, let's recail this s_tatement that I am-making·here today. 
we did our best with the record that was in_ existence: history tells 

us that nobody is going to st6pit, we tried to contain it in the _best way we 
could, exactly what we worked out, _and if anybody could suggest it any better, 

they should have been there when we were the voice.in the. wilderness. We didn't 

have that much - support back _ in February, -March; Apr i1 , and it wouldri' t take very. 

much to introduce the bill that passed in the Senate in Jurie to the Assembly:-­

SENATOR STOCKMAN: I was on that bill, and senator Connors and I .both 

voted for it. --
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MR. RODllIGUEZ: But it ha,s. b~eri since June and it hasn'.t even been 

introduced into the Assembly yet. Look: at the millions of dollars that are still 

going by, and. we are looking back and saying, "l.et' s send another lawyer to attack 

Hope Creek I." I kind of think it is putting the emphasis in the wrong place, 

.. very frankly. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Senator Connors? 

SENATOll CONNORS: Okay·, tha.nk you; Commissioner, for the first time 

thflt,wo ht'I.V(l met, it iB 11 sh11lli<'> that we are meeting under theao circumAt.inces. 

It has been a long afternoon for you. · I know .you were her.e yesterday waiting 

to give testimony, and now today, very late in the afternoon, so I will try to 

be a1:1 brief as possible. 

I would say this at the outset. 'tthere are several disturlHng things 

that I will get into. But, I believe you;r testimony today. I think you perhaps 

have taken _the proper course of action in light of the circumstances that existed 

rrom th@ t@EIU.UiOll',' that. I hav@ h@al d §f.J far, Ofi@ of th§ qu@§ti0\1§ thal I 

ask you Commissioner is, yesterday, Commissioner Coleman testi,fied that Mr .• Nardelli 

had a c;:onversation with you regarding a show that he was going to put on. That 

disturbed me a great deal, and I have been·throughout these hearings asking various 

questions from time to time aboQt it. 

There was apparently, from the testimony,_ a threat of a blackmail. 

Do you recall that conversation? 

MR, RODRIGUEZ: Unfortunately, I •do. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Would you repeat it fo.r the Senate Committee? 
' ' . . . 

MR, UODRIGUEZi W@U, I think, fl@111i.tnr, to put H book, Jn §Onlti oout.trnt, 
· we had done a study on Rate Counsel and foimdthat adritinistra:ti~ly, certain changes 

. had to be made. I guess it was around September the 24th that I calle_d Mr. Nardelli. 

into my office. I told him at that time that we were going to remove him .as 

Director of Rate Counsel, but we were going to allow him to stay on as an .attorney, 

because we had no question with regard to his ability as a lawyer - questions 

with h:l-1:1 record, as a l&wyer, He accepted it,_ I think h!i:! even had conversation 

froin that point with Roger Camacho, who we.were elevating to Director. He tried 

to reach me on a couple of occasions to get me to reverse that judgement, and-

:r re.fused to do it. I think the Monday before the 28th.., there was a Jewish holiday, . 

and; I was unable to--. We were in N!:!wark and he was trring to1ohtact me in Trenton, 

but l;le. was not at Rate Counsel. 

The· 28th came, and what happened was, as I was going in.tO the heari~g,· 

he asked me if L would :reconsider, ahd I said. no. But then nothing had to ha~ 

here, it was simply .an administrative change that we. were making •. He said, "Don't 

bet on that," and walked in - ·something to that extent. ~ turned to Bill Potter 

and ,I said, "Something is going to happen; I don It know what. II :t turned to Lenny' 

Coleman and I said, lfSoniething is going- to happen." 

We testified and I left. Then :t heard what occurred. ·I went back 

to Rate Counsel, and I wanted to speak.witl;l him to see.whathenowthought his 

status was with me. It was at that tirtll;! that he 111ade suggestions about the way 

certain lines were handled for budget_purposes·at, Rate Counsel, and whether.I 

was aware of his memorandum of September 28, I think it was. Of .course I wasn't. 

This was September 29th •. Arid if it was in Trenton, I. had been in Newark. And, 

that he had friendi;; and I hadn't heard the .·end of this, and_ he left. I got a 
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hold of Bill Potter and I said, "Have: we done anything illegal recently?", 

and he came in with the memorandum that I have. Yes, this was received in the 

Trenton office where I am being charged with illegal, immoral, no-show jobs-­

IncidentallY:, in the Division which he directed, in the timeframe before I was even 

there, and I took this a.s a personal insult to me, because my first accountability 

is to th.e taxpayers of the State and I would not live with anyone next to me who 

thinks I would fold to such a threat. I fired him. 

SENATOR CONNORS: At that time. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: At that time, which was as a result of that memorandum. 

SENATOR CONNORS:' You have testified, Commissioner, that because of 

the tremendous amounts of money spent on this Hope Creek I over a period of several 

years, it was a course.for your action and the Cost Containment Agreement to 

get the best deal under the circumstances to stop this hemmo:rrhaae of escalation 

of the base rate. If that is true, about what time would you have been reasonably 

assured that abandonment would have been the best action and prudent action to 

take and have some chance of success? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: You see, that's the point, Senator. After going back 

through the entire history of the case , I was convinced that the Advocate' s office 

had never really made that attack, and in the memorandum to me, which I was made 

aware of, the atmosphere of Hope Creek I, that we were beyond that point, certainly 

in February, perhaps, def.ini tely in June, and then when you couldn't find the forum 

that it was a lost cause. I would say anywhere from June on, we knew that there 

had to be an alternative course that had to be agg.ressively pursued, even though 

the concept of containment was mentioned in February by Mr. Nardelli, where what 

he suggested was to penalize them at one point on rate of return. 

But, it is an evolving thing, you see. I now si't here, perhaps, being 

accused of bad judgement. You have to understand that as the Commissioner, relying 

on people who are very knowledgeable, and receiving information, at what time 

is this thought being purified? I can't tell you the exact date. Mentally, 

did we know that we were moving in the right direction? Yes. And we did that. 

When S-975 didn't put in the moratorium, even with Sentor Dalton suggesting that 

the question may be moot, it was all lc:,st. We had to real,ly move into the cost 

containment. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Well, I am actually speaking just in generalities. 

In other words, we. reached beyond, and maybe not, the 50% mark. It could have 

very well been 30% of the cost of the Hope I. But, what I was looking for .was 

a. point in time. Would it be safe to say that certainly 1981 would have been 

a better year to operate and look for abandonment of Hope Creek I? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Most certainly. 1979. 

SENATOR CONNORS: 1979 would have been better? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: 1979-1980. 

SENATOR CONNORS: 1979 would have been better and 1969 would have been 

even better than that. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Well, 1979, when that load forecast was put in by Public 

Service. You know, the battle, if you were specifically directing it to one 

could have been more accurate in 1979, 1980, certainly in 198L But, the point, 

again, is, that in 1981, December, when you read the stipulation that puts $93 

million upfront on the amortizatibn -- like I say, $10 million more than what 

the utility asks for. You are now putting grease on that sliding board. Now 
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we know that the clock is going pretty fast. So, from December on, you are losing 

time. Every day was getting worse. S-'975 was a potential answer. When that 

didn't come out right and it was slowed down, the containment was the only 

possible way to go,·and that is just what we did, 

SENATOR CONNORS: Well, being in the construction business, not in 

the field of constructing nuclear plants, but acknowledging one thing, as the 

site.becomes more developed, more people come on into .the assembly of such a 

focility1 Uwrnfnn1, th{l CJQ§tlfi @0ca.la.t@ w~ry rapidly, V€'Ar.y quickly. I can <'ipprticittte 

that, from the drawing board to the completion. 

Senator Stockman has talked about the possibility of submitting a bill, 

in which case, over lunch~ we had talked about that, Senator Stockman and I. 

He had put you to the test and asked you whether or not you would support such 

a bill out of your office. I can understand your feeling.. For you to appoint 

another public advocate to stand in opposition of what you feel is the best way 

to go,would cert11inly be contrary to your thoughts and you could only come up 

with one answer -- I'm not trying to put words in your mouth, I can appreciate 

that. On the other side of the coin, and acknowledging that perhaps it would 

be a waste of mon~y, but the.n. --,. I '.rn not being cri t~cal because I now can consider 

that, as far as I can see in the 10 months I have been in office, it has not 

been unknown for the Legislature to waste money. Perhaps you might give us an 

opinion a§ to wlwUrnr you would t)bject o:t f1ot H, we'll say, the Speaker of the 

House or the President of the Senate were to pass, the Legislature, were to pass 

a bill asking that separate counsel be appointed by them through your office. 

Would you have an objet:tfon to that? •rhat you would have nothing to do with, 

other than to overview this project an.a see if they could stop it? It's kind 

of a moot question from the standpoint that if they did do it, you wouldn't have 

anything to say about it, but I would like to get your opinion on· it. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: senator, again, I am sug.gesting that with everyone 

who gave any thought to this project back in June or July that confirmed the 

fact that it couldn't be stopped, and even the Senator's statements before the 

BPU-- I understand you say it is before Al Nardelli spoke, but that Nardelli 

speaking doesn't stop the clock, doesn't stop. the nioney from running, doesn't 

change the opinions of the BPU, and it doesn't change the.efforts we made. I 

don't see how that battle could be waged in any short period of time, so,the plant 

will be cornpleted--

8F.J\1J\TOR C-:ONNORS, Without !l mgratorium? 
MR. RODRIGUEZ: Sure. That's what I am saying. I would hate to be 

put.in a position where it looks like by acquiescing that I think I did anything 

wrong, which I don't, you see, in view of the c.ircuirti:itances that we had. 

Now, what would be my opinion, if the Legislature wants to do it? I 

would have hoped that this might have occurred back in June. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Well, I would just like to say, Commissioner, that 

I appreciate your corning here today to discuss all of this with us. At the beginning 

of this hearing -- for me, I missed the first session -- I had discussed with 

the Chairman the thought of having the individual people who are going to testify 

be placed under oath. At least from the areas of government at much lower levels 

that. I came from, this was a common place thing. I couldn·•t understand it. The 

Chafrman hiid sa.J<i that he roally didn't feel it was necessary, however, if I 
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wish to, he would acquiesce to that. He said that he had no reason to.believe 

that anyone would come here and lie. I can now see, as a .freshman legislator, 

that I believe all of the people who came here for the two days that I heard, 

testified truthfully and to the best of their knowledge. I just want to put 

that on record. I am pleased to be part of this Committee. It is a very frustrating 

thing to my people back.home, the district I represent, and to the people all 

over the State who entrust me as part of this Committee in trying to keep the 

rate down. It is very frustrating to see that barn door.has now been shut, to some 

degree, but the horses are out running full tilt, and perhaps we may better learn 

the next time around from the experiences that we have seen here today. 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: If the barn door was shut, we couldn't open it. That's 

right. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Unless you want to add anything, Joe, to the record, 

I think we have probably thrown as much light on and opened up to at least anybody's 

view who wants to review the record of the sequence of events what happened 

and,how it happened. Now I think it is for other people to deal with thereafter. 

I may say as an aside, I have also kicked this around with Senator 

Connors. We both talked about this. Do you have an opinion-- I can't resist!, 

if you don't mind telling me now -- about the wisdom of a fixed term for the 

Public Advocate by law to be set for a fixed period, independent of the Exe::utive 

Branch? 

MR. RODRIGUEZ: I will tell you this, very frankly, I think the effort 

being made by the minority speaker, I have no problem with the concept of what 

he is doing, except the whereas has disturbed me a great deal. If that is the 

reason for it, then I say there is no reason for it, certainly with this Governor. 

Senator, I am suggesting to you, and it is the last time I can say it, if you 

didn't believe me before the Appropriations Committee, you have to believe me 

that nothing happened here either. But, I can see that if there is a perception 

problem, again. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: ;rncidentally, Joe, you and I know -- we deal with 

it -- often it is a perception that can be a problem, and as lawyers and as public 

officials, often we have to deal with a perception, which, in our heart, we know 

is untrue. I think that is a goci,d way, perhaps, of dealing with this dilemma 

I find myself in with you. Maybe it is a perception that we are really struggling 

over. But, going in, as Coleman at least talks, at a time with the Governor, 

in that setting, and. then on the 10th, and what happened, at least the perception, 

I hope you can recognize reasonable men could differ on as to whether·or not 

there wasn't some participation cir some iri:i:iiience on that. I don't mean 

to reopen this and keep going with you, but--

MR. RODRIGUEZ: Of course you don't, but I am sitting here telling 

you that there wasn't any. But I think for perception purposes, if the Advocate 

were to have a term, I would have no quarrel with that. I would just hape that anv 

time we reach for a constitutional solution we do it for the right reason. I 

say that the reason being proposed for this one is the wrong reason, although 

the concept behind what is attempted, I have no quarrel with. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, thank you very much. I appreciate your cooperation 

and the Committee's cooperation. We have some documents to put in the record, 

which we will do. 
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MS. FAHEY: (member of audience) Senator Stockman? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Yes. 

MS. FAHEY: May I just ask one question? Is there not going to be 

any consumer input, especially the Advisory Committee, or Rate Counsel? 

I would think it is very important for all consumer input. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, let me-- I respect that request, I think we 

all. recognize that if we want. to get into the merits, further, of Hope Cre.ek, that there 

is ~·trong feelings and strong views in the audience about the fact that Hope 

Creek should not be built. That is from a fiscal point of view, from an environmental 

point of view, from a nuclear point. of view, and I know there are many people 

here who would probably like. to be heard on it. My problem is, this Committee--

There are limitations to the amount of time and effort that we could put into 

it. We were focusing on this question, and are, of the circumstances surrounding 

the Advocate's decision, in view of comments at the BPU, and whether or not the 

public interest is being protected hereafter. 

I am afraid that to allow public interest groups, the variety of them 

that come in, there would be a tremendous temptation -- I am speaking very frankly 

to get deeply into collateral issues that really this Committee isn't equipped 

to deal with. 

I think what I would like to do is talk to the other members of the 

Committee about that before formally closing the record, so to speak. I will 

talk further with Senator Connors and my colleagues about possibly taking other 

testimony. I can tell you, for sure, that we have had it for today. (l~ughter) 

MS. FAHEY: Senator Stockman? 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Yes. 

MS. FAHEY: Just one more thing •. That would, however, on my part, 

surround-- My statement would only be dealing with the Board of Public Utility's 

role in this matter; secondly, the Governor's role in this matter -- the State. 

of New Jersey:-- and third, why Alfred Nardelli hasn't been reinstated pending 

the,outcome of the legislative Committee. I think the fact that we have lost 

one of the best Public Advocates that this State has had,has been overlooked 

by this Committee. Personally, I think the man should be reinstated pending 

the outcome of any Coinmittee that has a right to overrule Mr. Rodriguez. 

I don't know whether that is the Governor or what, but I believe there 

is too much input into Rate Counsel ·from the Governor, from the BPU,-as the active 

intervener in Newark, and that Al Nardelli, on many occasions, has been deprived 

to be acting as an effective public advocate, from director handed down to the 

BPU,· which I can substantiate. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: Well, Ms. Fahey, I. appreciate and understand, and 

Senator Connors has indicated to me he introduced me to you -- that you have 

been a long-time advocate on behalf of the public on issues in this area, and 

that you are knowledgeable and sincere and deeply interested. I have your statement 

and Iain going to make it part of the record. That is your mail-a-gram strongly 

suggesting this, and you now are on record with the people at this hearing having 

that feeling. I am not going to respond to you now, but I do suggest to you 

in general terms, as I have tried to say, I don't see the focus of this Committee, 

nor do I see the power of this Committee, to be directed towards resolving that 

question. If Mr. Nardelli was improperly fired, Mr. Nard~lli does have avenues 
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of redress in terms of civil service appeal, legal action, if he could show that 

it was based on some conspiratory or discriminatory basis - those things. 

This Committee couldn't reinstate him.if it was decided that he was improperly 

fired, and I really don't think we want to get into that. Those other points 

you raised are a little bit different. We will take it under consideration and 

I will talk with Senator Connors. 

SENATOR CONNORS: Mr. Chairman, I would suggest that this Committee's 

record be held open for 30 days, and that any further testimony at this point 

in time be given in writing and be incorporated as part of the record. 

SENATOR STOCKMAN: That is a good suggestion; I haven't thought of 

that. I would not want to preclude your submitting information in the form of 

written material. I haven't thought--- It's a good suggestion. Yes, sir? (speaking 

to member of audience) 

MEMBER OF AUDIENCE: Senator, Senator, I would like to point out a 

discrepancy in Mr. Rodriguez's testimony. He didn't tell you that all of the 

people in defense of his--

SENATOR STOCKMAN: With all due respect, sir, I don't think this is 

the time or place to do that. If you want to submit something in writing to 

this Committee, along those lines, we will based on what we have decided 

accept it •. If you want to publicly make that cl.ear through a letter to the editor, 

through conversations with the media, or others-~ I don't want-- Particula~ly 

since Joe Rodriguez has left, I think it would unfair for us to start getting 

ihto dialogue as to whether his statements were inaccurate. So, I'm sorry I 

won't entertain. I would like toconc~ude the hearing at this point. Thank you 

very much. 

(Hearing Concluded) 
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PART I 

TESTIMONY BEFORE THE SENATE 
OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 

REGARDING THE 
HOPE CREEK INQUIRY 

Mr. Nardelli has stated that the Public Advocate agreed 

to the Hope Creek Cost Containment Stipulation because of pressure· 

from the Governor. Central to this charge is his claim that he 

has been a staunch, consistent and long-time opponent of the 

Hope Creek I nuclear project. He also has argued that his 

resolute opposition was consistent with the longstanding policy 

of Stanley Van Ness, predelessor to Joseph Rodriguez as.the 

Public Advocate. He also has told you that he repudiated the• 

cost" Containment Agreement because it departed radically from 

thj,s·prior policy of opposition to completion of Hope creek·r. 

The record, however, reveals otherwise. The first time 

that Mr. Nardelli questioned Hope Creek and, indeed, at the 

same time called for a cost containment as the 

alterna•tive -- was in a motion and testimony which he delivered 

before the Board of Pub'iic Utilities on February 19,.1982, one 

week after Joseph Rodriguez became the Public Advocate •. As a 
•· 

reading of the transcript of that proceeding demonstrates, 1;.he . . . . . . 

BPU Commissioners were surprised by the Nardelli presentation,. 

apparently because it departed so dramatically from the policy 

enunciated by him on earlier occasions. ·BPU Commissio"ner Hynes 

responded as follows: 
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HYNES: 

"Mr. Nardelli, you astound me. ·For such a 

major issue, you wquld not have brought 

that up anywhere in the [PSE&G] base rate 

case and now make a statement here before 

this Board that this Board has been negligent 

in making .•. that there is no need for 

Hope Creek I when in effect at no part 

during the entire base rate case was [Hope 

Creek I] ever contested [by the Advocate]?" 

Mr. Nardelli: "I admit Hope Creek I wasn't 

brought up." (emphasis added) 

The colloquy continued: 

HYNES: I understand that .•• nowhere in 

any of these sheets [briefs, etc.] did I 

ever see a statement [by the Advocate] about 

the need or no need for Hope Creek I and yet 

one week after that base rate decision you 

present the statement 

NARDELLI: Let me add that I have told you that 

the tactical reason [for not raising it] is 

that we were having a hard enough time [getting] 

rid of Hope Creek II and thought if we went for 

both of them, we might really be dismissed out 

of hand. 

NARDELLI: Let me admit to another reason. We 

are subject to some of the same problems 
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that the utility has had .•. [He then cited 

the difficulties in projecting load forecasts 

and energy prices.] • [W]e looked at 

these numbers corning in, yes, [and [ at some 

point maybe later than it should have occurred 

even to us, we said, 'gee, if Hope Creek II is 

such a bad deal, why are we·assurning Hope 

Creek I should then be built?' and we started 

to look at it. 

At this point, BPU Commissioner Barbour added: 

"If there was to be a consideration of the 

abandonment ofHope Creek II in the main 

rate case, then ••• [Hope Creek I] should 

have been raised [earlier] ..• The issue 

should have been raised before the initial 

decision came over here from the Adrninistra-

tive Law Judge II . . . 
Mr. Nardelli went further and explained.why he and the Advocate 

had not opposed Hope Creek I: 

"We feel we have to draw you [the Board] to the 

decision to approve the abandonment of Hope 

Creek II and we didn't think you could face 

up to the questions of Hope Creek I while 

you were being so reluctant [to face up to 

Hope Creek II] • " (See attachment I) 

Commissioner Barbour then asked a critical question, namely 

whether in the PSE&G base rate case-.. which extended over 9 

months of 1981, included 51 hearing dates and cost over $400,000 
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in Rat~.Counsel legal fees and expert witnesses -- Rate Counsel 

had recommended a level of rate relief which "had to do with 

Hope Creek I being completed". Mr. Nardelli agreed that "yes, 

because that's the situation as it exist[ed] before the Board." 

Four days later, Mr. Nardelli was again called to task for 

what the BPU perceived to be a change in Public Advocate policy 

-- from acceptance of Hope Creek I to strong opposition. In 

response to testimony by the PSE&G witness, Mr. Nardelli made 

it clear that the reason for his newly found concern for Hope 

Creek I was the change in administration in Trenton. That is, 

the newly appointed Public Advocate had ordered·a new emphasis 

on the Hope Creek question, reversing a policy of acquiescence 

and substituting one of intensive questioning. 

For example, on February 23 Mr. Nardelli cross-examined 

Everett Morris of PSE&G in an attempt to show that it was proper 

to deviate from a stipulation he had signed with the utility 

two months earlier (December 14, 1981). That agreement appeared 

to yield any potential challenge to the "timely completion of 

-;he Hope Creek I unit." (This stipulation is discussed further 

at p. 9 , infra). (See Attachment 2) 

NARDELLI: Mr. Morris, who signed that J.oint 

Position [of December 14, 1981]? 

A Mr. Codey signed it and Mr. Nardelli signed 

it, and Mr. Nardelli assured me that he had 

the concurrence Of the Public Advocate. 
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Q And who was the Public Advocate at the 

time? 

A Mr. Van Ness, but I would assume that --

Q You have answered my question, Mr. Morris. 

Who is the Public Advocate now? 

A Mr. Rodriguez. 

Q Let me ask you something else --

A 

COMMISSIONER CURRAN: Mr. Nardelli, 

are you indicating by that question that 

at Mr. Rodriguez' direction, that there 

is a change in the Public Advocate's 

position? 

Yes I am commissioner Curran (p. Tr. 

4 51-453) (See attachment 3) 

That same day Mr. Nardelli introduced the testimony of 

the Public Advocate's financial consultant who confirmed what 

Mr. Nardelli had said to·cornmissioner Barbour four days before, 

namely the Public Advocate,indeed had taken "no position" 

whether Hope Creek I .should be completed at any point in the 

Public Service rate case. (Tr. 473) In short,. when he had 

the opportunity feasibly to raise the Hope Creek I question 

-- during the preceding rate case -- Mr. Nardelli and the 

Advocate. elected to bypass the matter in favor of concen-

trating on Hope Creek II. The re·ason for this "tactical" decision, 

described al::>ove, was that the Advocateis attorneys feared that · 

such an argument would be dismissed out of hand •. Why, now that 
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Hope Creek I is over fifty per cent complete, does Mr. Nardelli 

believe that the unit can and should be stopped when it was his 

'professional judgment several months earlier that it was 

pointless to question it-~ and at that tirne the unit was less 

than 40 per cent complete? 

Turning now to many statements and memoranda written by Mr. 

Nardelli over the past year and a half, we see that he has con­

sistently argued for a hands-off approach to Hope Creek I. 

The evidence, therefore, contradicts his self~characterization 

as a dedicated crusader against Hope Creek I who was willing to 

lose his job to continue the fight. 

' * For example, OnMay8, 1981, .Mr. Nardelli sent me his 

comments on a draft pqsition paper that I was preparing for 

Tom Kean on energy and environment. He stated: 

"Turning now to the paragraph concerning 
nuclear power on page 6 [of my draft], 
I think we .should be cautious about 
suggesting that Hope Creek could perhaps 
be abandoned. In 1980, PSE&G spent $211 · 
million on the construction of Hope Creek. 
This year they will spend abbut $272 million. 
In 1982, PSE&G forecasts that it will spend $329 
million. By the time a new State administra­
tion could.stop Hope Creek, PSE&G will probably 
have invested a·billion dollars. To date, 
the largest abandonment in the history of 
the utility industry has been the JCP&L 
abandonment of Forked River (about $4i2 
million). Another point is that it is one 
thing tosay that PSE&G does not need the 
capacity at.Hope Creek. It is another thing 
to say that the State does not need it. 
JCP&L probably does need additional base• 
load capacity this decade. Hope Creek I 
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is due in service in December, 1986 and 
Hope Creek II in 1989. JCP&L cannot 
finance the capital needed to construct 
base load plants. Hope Creek ~y be the 
answer." (See attachment 4) . 

Some months later, Mr. Nardelli prepared a speech for 

Congressman Florio on utility construction plans. On October 2, 

1981, he sent a memor.13.ndum to Stanley van Ness which included a 

copy of the proposed speech •. A cover memorandum states, 

"On October 15, 1981, the Board of Public 
Utilities is holding a hearing on the 
future of the Hope Creek nuclear project. 
As of now, Congressman Florio is planning 
to make a statement in person. He has a&ked 
me to do a first draft which I mailed to him 
today (copy enclosed). With the possible 
exception of the discuss1on at the end .of the 
statement about public power, my draft is in 
full accord with the Department's position~ 
Since I may be given the opportunity to do 
a1 subsequent draft, I welcome any comments 
or suggestions. 

The draft which he prepared and which he describes as being "in 

full accord" with the Public Advocate's policy, focuses; 

entirely on Hope Creek II.· Implicit in the statement, moreover,• 

runs a consistent thread of.approval and acceptance of the 

need to complete Hope Creek I.· Specifically, 

"If the BPU does direct PSE&G to complete 
Hope Creek II so that it can sell electri­
city to JCP&L, there is no reason why Hope 
Creek I has to be the PSE&G unit.and Hope 
Creek II the JCP&L unit. It would be better 
for the customers of both utilities if the 
agreement for the sale of electricity between 
PSE&G and JCP&L entitl,ed both companies to 
a percentage of the output of either unit. 

"The advantages of my proposal are clear. 
First, the risk of nuclear accidents or 
outages would be diversified. If one new 
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unit performed significantly worse than 
the other, the economic consequences of 
poor nuclear performance would not fall 
entirely on the customers of one utility. 
Second, since Hope Creek I is scheduled 
for completion in 1986 and Hope Creek. II 
in 1989, JCP&L ~ustomers would get the 
benefit of some base load capacity earlier." 

(see Attachment 5) 

!I'he same draft Florio speech goes on to state that his Hope 

Creek sharing proposal should not be interpreted as "prejudging 

the issue of whether Hope Creek II should be continued to be 

built as a nuclear plant." There follows a discussion of 

former Governor Byrne's request to the BPU that it examine 

whether Hope Creek II should be converted to a coal plant. 

Mr. Florio is then urged to discuss whether conservation 

might also substitute for Hope Creek II. At no point in the 

nine page speech is any mention made of the possibility that. 

Hope Creek I might be cancelled. 

That support for, or at least acceptance of, the inevitability 

of Hope Creek I was official Public Advocate policy before the 

arrival of Commissioner :Rodriguez is further supported by 

the transition policy paper presented by Mr. Van Ness to the 

incoming Kean administration. This report discusses the "need 

for an early decision on the Hope Creek II nuclear plant." A~ 

for Hope Creek I, the codified policy of the Public Advocate 

in December, 1981 was as follows: 
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"There is: no objection to the need for 
the Hope Creek I plant which is due to 
become :operational in late 1986." 

' ';I ',' ', , 

This statement is buttresse~ by the pe~ceived connedtioh'between 

completipn of Hqpe c1eeJc 1 I and the I papacity deficiencies of 

JCP&t: 

"Tied in wi~h~h~ Hope Creek plans is the 
vital question of how energy neeas of 
Jersey Cent~al Power.and Light customers 
will be met \in the next decade in view 
of the comp1ny•s·financial plight and status 
of the Thr~, Mile Island nuclear facilities. 
An arrangement for the purchase of Hope · 
Creek powet might provide some of the 
solution." i- (See attachment 6) . 

! 

These memoranda, 1 speeches and reports provide a bac:k-drop 
i 

to the decision of thb Public 'Advocate in December, 1981 to 

sign a stipulation with PSE&G which the BPU clearly interpreted 

as a statement of support or: ~t least: acqu1escenc1 in the 
. ' 

inevitability of completing Hqpe Creek I. This is the stipulation 
I 

of December 14, 1981 signed bY! Mri. Nardelli on behalf of the 
I 

Public Advocate and filec;l with the ,BPU the next day. This 

s~ipulation states in relev~nt part that £he BPU should 

approve the cancellation of Hope Cr~ek II in part because 

otherwise it will be too diffictilt to finance construction of 

the Hope Creek I. 

"The undersigned parties agree that raising 
these capi~al requirements [needed for Hope 
Creek II] wiould be a financial burden on the ,, 
ratepayer and the company. Such an added .· 
financial Burden could also further jeopardize 
the timely ~1986 commercial date of Hope Creek I. 

· The undersigned parties agree that no controversy 
exists regarding Hope Creek I's two unit design 

• and the ne,ed ·. to . con·s:t,ruct the facility up to 
this time. IIJBee attachment 2) ~··. ' 

lO~ 
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The parties, PSE&G and the Public Advocate, further 

presented alternative amortization plans to the BPU (i.e., 

how to spread the costs of abandon'ing Hope Creek II). In 

the PSE&G plan, the Company would recoup $83,765,000 in the 

first four years. Under the Public Advocate,plan, the 

utility would recoup $93,073~000 during the same four year 

period. Thus, it is clear that the Advocate recommended 

substantial "front-loading" of the costs for the purpose of 

helping finance Hope Creek Unit I at a lesser level of rate 

increases. It is, therefore, difficult indeed to avoid the 

impression that .. in this December 14 l?tipulation the Public 

Advocate conceded Hope Creek I. 

The December 14 stipulation is important not because 

it was improper for the Public Advocate to have made those 

concession in return for an agreement to cancel Hope Creek II. 

Clearly, there was a rational basis for the expressed view 

that it was important to gain a quick cancellation of Hope 

Creek II before more millions were wasted on that project. 

Rather, the point is that 1:he Public Advocate then and now 

must make pragmatic decisions in light of all the·facts 

cu~rently known. Whether those decisions prove to have 

been the correct ones is always open to debate. Obviously, 

the Public Advocate in December, 1981 had a policy of at 

least tacit approval·of the need to complete Hop~ Creek I. 

Mr. Nardel~i' s memoranda,. speeches and his signing of the 

December 14 stipulation attest to this fact. What is un­

fortunate is that he now attacks.the Cost Containment Stipulation 
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in part by arguing that it marks a radical departure in Public· 

Advocate policy. Clearly, this is nqt the case. 

-11-
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Other instances where Mr. Nardelli counselled that the 

Public Advocate should not oppose the completion of Hope Creek 

include the following: 

1. On February 28, 1979 the BPU entered an order closing 

one phase ~fan investigation of electric utilities. The order 

codified an agreement between Mr. Nardelli and the four electric 

utilities. It states that "the parties to the proceeding have 

agreed that no controversy cur+ently exists regarding the elec­

tric utilities current forecasts and forecast methodologies .•. " 

At the time, PSE&G was forecast.:Pg the need to complete both 

Hope Creek 1 and Hope Creek 2. The order also states: 

" .•. the Public Advocate agrees that the most. recent 
long term energy consumption and peak demand projec­
tions of each individual electric utility appear to 
be reasonable~ .. [and] that the e~ectric utilities in 
New Jersey are currently conducting their reliability 
planning appropriately and at this time there is no 
criticism of the manner in which this reliability 
planning is done." (See attachment 7) 

The teliability planning referred to expressly provided 

for construction of Hope Creek 1 and 2. The order concludes 

that all challenges to specific power plants would be· confined 

to "the rate proceedings of ·each company." The Public Advocate 

did not use the opportunity provided by this order to challenge 

Hope Creek 1 in the next PSE&G rate case, or at any other point 

during the years 1979 to 1981 when Hope Creek-1 was-still at an. 

early stage of construction. 

2. On September 24, 1981, the Public Advocate filed com­

ments on the Department of Energy's draft State Energy Master_ 
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Plan. Those comments incorporate with apparent approval a quote 

from Merrill-Lynch that, "Over the long term, we believe the· 

Unit 1 of Hope Creek will be completed with some slippage in 

* schedule. We are not optimistic [about] Hope Creek 2." 

3. An October 15, 1981 Public Advocate statement before 

the BPU regarding utilit,y construction plans, also prepared 

and presented by Mr. Nar:delli, shows, again, that the Advocate 
t 
'i!.\: 

had no serious objectiof to Hope Creek 1. The statement repeats 
l 

the same Merrill-Lynchcomment, and adds the following ob-

servation: 

"The decision to abandon a nuclear 
facility under construction depends upon 
the specific circumstances and economics 
of the particular plant under review. 
Everyone agrees that the percentage of 
completion of a facility is a major 
factor. Tha.t is why this proceeding is 
so important. The longer the period of 
inaction and indecision, the more dominant 
the factors favoring completion become. 
Silence, delay and inaction is tantamount 
to a decision to complete construction. II 

If Mr. Nardelli's statement is applied to Hope Creek I today, 

doubtlessly the conclusion would be that the ·opportunity for 

challenge has long since passed. (See Attachment a ) 
4. on December 14, 1981, Mr. Nardelli agreed to a plan 

to cancel Hope Creek II and charge the costs of construction 

to date, about $300 million, to ratepayers over a 12 to 15 

year period. The stipulation provided: 

*See Attachment 9 
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"The undersigned parties agree that raising 

the capital requirements [necessary to finish Hope 

Creek II] would be a financial burden on the rate­

payer and the Company. Such an added financial 

burden would also further jeopardize the timely 

1986comrnercial date of Hope Creek I, which is 

40% complete and is required for capacity and 

energy savings. The undersigned parties agree 

that no controversy exists regarding Hope Creek I's 

two-unit design and the need to construct the 

facility up to this time." (Emphasis added) 

5. On February 19, 1982, Mr. Nardelli filed a motion with 

the Board to reexamine Hope Creek I, hold a needs asses·sment 

hearing on whether the facility should be completed, and impose 

a moratorium on construction until it is completed. As 

discussed earlier, he attributed this new policy to the new 

Public Advocate, Joseph Rodriguez. The motion further-recom­

mended a cost-containment package for Hope Creek I if- the 

Board were to decline the motion for a stay, as it did. 

"If the BPU ultimately decides to let PSE&G 

complete Hope Creek I, it should develop a system 

of incentives and penalties that would require the 

shareholders of PSE&G to share the risk of cost 

overruns ... The BPU should set a reasonable 
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target figure for the total cost of Hope Creek I. 

If PSE&G completes the plan for less than that 

figure, it would be allowed an additional 1% on 

. its rate of return on equity. If Hope Creek I 

costs more than the target set, PSE&G would be 

penalized 1% on its return on equity. A similar 

plan is being impl,imented by the New York State 

Public Service Commission for the . . . Nine Mile 

Point'2 [facility]." (Emphasis aoded) 

In short, as early as February, the Public Advocate publicly 

favored a cost containment, incentive-penalty clause should 

the Board of Public Utilities continue to issue rulings 

fostering the completion of Hope Creek I. The record further 

reveals that the Board has subsequently responded by denying 

,the motion and reaffirming its support of Hope Creek I in 

at least three actions. (In April, for example, the Board 

explicitly directed Public.Service to "expeditiously complete" 

Hope Creek I.) Thus, active pursuit by the Public Advocate 

of the cost-containment strategy appeared prudent and urgent. 
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6. On April 2, 1982, Mr. Nardelli wrote a memorandum 

to Commissioner Roc;iriguez discussing the recent BPU order 

approving the Hope Creek II cancellation. He states1 

"Not only does the BPU commit itself to Hope Creek I,· but 

it practically invites PSE&G to seek additional rate relief 

... in order to complete the plant by 1986 ... There is little 

doubt tbat in order to complete Hope Creek I by 1986 PSE&G 

will have to file for a substantial increase in base rates 

before July 1, 1983." (The Board had ordered the company 

not to seek higher rates again at least until that date.) 

(The same memo also contradicts the testimony he gave 

before the BPU in February. For example, he quotes from 

the BPU's statement that the Public Advocate had.based its 

revenue projections on the assumption "that Hope Creek I 

was needed and should be built.' This is.not true. 11 But 

cf. the February 19r 1982 hearing in his response to a question 

from Commissioner Barbour on this specific point.) (See Attachment 9) 

7. On April 22r 1982, Mr. N~rdelli in a short note 

states his support for a cost containment plan for Hope· 

Creek I: 

"As you can see from the attached material, on April 16, 

1982 the New York Public Service Commission issued an· incentive. 

rate of return plan for Nine Mile Point 2. Have someone 

obtain that PSC order. We probably should be proposing 

something for New Jersey." (emphasis added) (See Attachment 10) 
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8. On August 20, 1982, Mr. Nardelli co-authored a lengthy 

memorandum on whether the Public Advocate should appeal the 

BPU's decision to grant PSE&G $390 million in higher revenues. 

He emphatically counselled against it. Specifically, he 

argued that it was pointl·ess to seek a reversal of the BPU' s 

decision that Hope Creek I should be completed: 

"Irrespectiv:~ of how much evidence we 
could place befor.the Board on alternatives 
to Hope Creek I, ;j;.t would come down to a dis­
cretionary determination by the Board. The 
Board will decide to complete the construction 
because it believes that even if PSE&G has 
adequate reserve capacity, Hope Creek I can help· 
satisfy the statewide energy needs, given the 
JCP&L situation. The Board will not direct the 
abandonment of a more thari half completed generating 
unit for PSE&G.when it perceives that. JCP&L is 
in des~rate straits with regard to generating 
capacity. We simply cannot win this discretionary 
issue at the Board. The fact is that if we wished 
to pursue the need for Hope Creek I, we should 
never have signed the stipulation .•. 

1 

"[Wle cannot prevail [before the BPU] on 
the substantive issue of whether Hope Creek I 
will be completed 11 (See Attachment 11 at p. 8) 

Note that much of the· above is almost i<:ientical to 

Mr. Nardelli's memorandum of May 8, 1981 (Attachment 4). This 

shows that for almost a year-and-a-half -- up until his testimony 

· be.fore this Committee 

Hope Creek I alone. 

he has consistently recommended leaving 
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SUMMARY 

The purpose of this summary is not to show that Mr. Nardelli 

was wrong in counselling the Public Advocate to concentrate 

resources on Hope Creek II -- although it is now clear that 

it meant foregoing the last real chance effectively to challenge 

Hope Creek I(i.e., during the 1981 PSE&G rate case.) However, 

it does strain credulity to suggest, as Mr. Nardelli did 

on February 19, 1982 under questioning by the BPU, that 

this decision represented a deliberate policy to challenge 

the units one at a time, the most distant first. Clearly, 

the BPU commissioners knew that Hope Creek I was advancing 

toward completion at the rate of over $1 million each day. 

Thus, it is not easy to accept Mr. Nardelli's claim that 

he or the Advocate ever intended to challenge Hope Creek I -­

at least not until Joseph Rodriguez and I took office ori 

February 12, 1982. 

The more logical inference is that Mr. Nardelli counseled 

the Public Advocate to focus on Hope Creek II since a challenge 

to Hope Creek I had little chance,of success. If that logical 

conclusion was viewed by Mr. Nardelli to be in the public 

interest when Hope Creek I was in its early stages of construct,i.op, 

it is not credible for Mr. Nardelli to argue ndw that it 

is not in the public interest for the Public Advocate to 

negotiate a cost containment agreement when construction 

of Hope Creek I is even further advanced. 

The reality is that Hope Creek I is 50 to 55 percent 

complete; S-975's study commission for reviewing Hope Creek I 

cannot possibly be completed before next summer at the earliest, 
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at which point the unit could be 70 to 75 pe~cent complete; the 

BPU has ruled repeatedly that Hope Creek I should be completed 

llas expeditiously as possible; 11 ·and neither the BPU nor 

the legislature will consider a moratorium on further construction 

pending a belated reassessment of the f~cility. It is hard 

to see what other choices were available.to the Public Advocate 

other thari to negotiate a cost containment that would provide 

incentives and penaltie~ for more efficient utility management. 
j . 

It should be noted}rf1at this point that the cost containment 

agreement does not guarantee the completion of Hope Creek I. 
. . 

The Public Advocate has merely agreed not to challenge_ its 

need further -- an option that, for all practical purposes 

was eliminated at the conclusion of the 1981 PSE&G rate 

case. In return, the utility has agreed to face the unprecedented 

risk of forcing shareholders to absorb 20 to 30 percent penalties 

on the level of "reasonable" costs in excess of the 

target figure. Moreover, the utility cannot use the agreement 

to argue for a higher rate of return -- ~n the theory that 

the return should reflect this increased risk -- a Catch-22 

that transpired in New York. The utilities must raise any 

argument of an "extraordinary event" at or near the time 

it allegedly occurs, or else the opportunity is lost. Nor 

may the utility construct a. ''bare bones" unit in hopes of 

moving the real costs into rate base after meeting the 

target level. Finally, as few critics have noticed, the 

stipulation does not bind the BPU, the Association of Counties, 

Ocean County, New Jersey PIRG, the Port Authority or other 

frequent iritervenors from arguing anything they wish. 
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Any one or all of them may still raise the question of the 

need to complete Hope Creek I.in subsequent rate cases, 

even though the entire public of the State will get the 

full benefits of the cost containment. 

In short, the decision to negotiate a cost containment 

rather than wait hopefully for the passage of S-975 was clearly 

in the public interest. Whether the specifics of the agreement 

are suitable is always open to question, a process now being 

chaired by the BPU. In this regard, while it is always 

possible to conceive of.tougher, better cost containments; 

it is quite another to convince a utility to agree to it- or 

· the BPU to impose it. 
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PART II 

Factual Errors in Mr. Nardelli's Testimony 

before the.senate Oversight Committee on 

October 12, 1982 

The following analysis represents a point-by-point 

rebuttal to the many factual misstatements in Mr. Nardelli' s 

testimony. They respond in the same order as his statement. 

Page 1. - NARDELLI: 

"The Public Advocate abandoned its long established 

opposition to the Hope Creek Nuclear Project by agreeing 

with PSE&G, ACE ano the State DOE for all time 'not to challenge 

· the need for Hope Creek I before any federal or state agencies 

which may have jurisdiction.'" 

CORRECTION: 

This claim of reversing "long established opposition" 

is fully rebutted in Part I. If the Public Advocate had 

a "long-established policy" regarding the Hope Creek Nuclear 

.Project it was one of opposition only to Unit II and not Unit I. 

· See, e.g., the Public Advocate'S transition report of December, 

1961 (attachment 6): "There is no objection to·the need 

for the Hope Creek I plant which is due to become operational 

in late 1986." (emphasis added) 

NARDELLI: 

"In 1975 the Public Advocate appealed the coastal permit 

granted to PSE&G for Hope Creek 1 an<;'i II ... 011, th~ grounds 

that 6onservation alternatives had not been considered." 
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CORRECTION: 

The New Jersey Public Interest Research Group (PIRG) 

"appealed" that. decision (i.e. took it to court). The Public 

Advocate entered the case as an arnicus curiae ("friend qf the 

court") only after another party had .taken the appeal. See, 

e.g., New Jersey PIRG v. Bardin, 152 N.J.Super. 191_ (App.Div. 

1977). Edward Lloyd, Esq., attorney for PIRG had requested 

that the Public Advocate appeal the case, but Mr. Van Ness 

denied his request. The amicus brief, however, strongly 

supported PIRG_with respect.to the argument on the need to 

consider alternatives. 

NARDELLI: 

"In 1976 the Public Advocate filed comprehensive 

· testimony with the BPU .•. which ... challenged the need for 

the two Hope Creek plants ... " 

CORRECTION: 

Such testimony was duly filed, but Mr. Nard.el1i quietly 

repudiated it when he agreed with the utilities that their 

load forecasts and reliability planning were accurate and 

"not in bontroversy." As stated, Hope Creek was then in 

the planning stages. (See Attachment 7, Part I) 

Page 2 -- NARDELLI: 

"In February of 1981, PSE&G filed an application •.. for 

the largest rate increase in the history of New Jersey.~.The 

driving force behind this request was ... the two Hope Creek 

units. In that rate proceeding, the Public Advocate filed 

testimony to demonstrate that an aggressive and innovative. 

program of energy conservation could substitute for.~.the 

two Hope Cieek units."· 23x 
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' . I 

, CORRECTION: 

This statement distorts the record. Throughout the 

•ntire case and after spending $400,000 to defend the public 

Mr. Nardelli admitted to the BPU on February 19, 1982 that 

not challenge Hope Creek I. 

6 -- NARDELLI: 

[Between pages 2 and 6, Mr. Nardelli discussed the 

Public Advocate's suppo~t for Senate Bill 975,- which provides 
:":; 

for a certif.icate of netd for new power plants and establishes 

a temporary review commission.to examine Hope Creek and 
I 

recommend to the BPU whether it should be cancelled or continued.] 

IIEarly this past summer S-975 past (sic) the State Senate 

by the resounding vote of 35-2. It appeared then tha,t the 

Public Advocate was on the verge of obtaining something 

for which it had long struggled - a meaningful review of 

the need for Hope.Creek I." 

CORRECTION: 

There is no question that the Public Advocate supported 

. S-975 in the form which passed the Senate. This bill was 

introduced in the Senate on February 8, 1982 and, after 

a series of publichea.rings and amendments, waS reported 

out of committee on June 3. The full Senate passed it on 

June 28, 1982. 

If the bill was passed by the. Assembly and then promptly 

·.· .. signed into law, it was indeed possible that a review of 

Hope Creek I was in the offing. However, whether at that 

late date the review would be "mean,ingful" wa.s hi9hly doubtful 
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' and 'growing more doubtful each day. (Senator Dalton recognized 

this weakness in a press statement on August 12 -- see the 

text, page 5, intra). Regrettably, the bill did not provide 

for a moratorium on construction during the review by the 

special commission. If the Assembly had taken only half 

as long as the Senate and if no amendments (requiring Senate 

concurrence) were added, Senator Dalton and I calculated 

that there would be no needs assessment before next May 

or June, 1983 at the earliest. With construction moving 

ahead, it is almost certain that Hope Creek I -- then over 

40 percent complete and now about 55 percent complete 

would be about 70 percent complete. In recent years no 

power plant has ever been cancelled which was that far along. 

Accordingly, it was incumbent upon the Public Advocate 

to do more than simply await the action of the Legisla.ture. 

This is why we entered into negotiations with the DOE and 

Public Service even as we continued to support S-975. It 

would have been irresponsible for the Advocate not to take 

alternative, protective steps given these circumstance~ 

which were plain to all. (Indeed, Mr. Nardelli, speaking 

for the Public Advocate, had recommended the alternative 

of the cost containment on February 19, 1982 when he called 

upon the BPU to consider a cost-containment for Hope Creek 

I similar to the "cap" applied in New York State for the 

Nine Mile Point Unit 2 reactor. The Cost Containment Agreement 

negotiated and signed by the Public Advocate borrows heavily 

from the New York precedent, as Mr. Nardelli had recommended. 
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But, as any comparison will show, it is far stronger than 

.the New York version. (Please see Commissioner Rodriguez' 

testimony of September 29, 1982 before the BPU for a full 

comparison.) (Attachment 3 of Part II) 

This brings us to the central point which Mr. Nardelli 

misses throughout his testimony: the cost containment and 

the special commission review in S-975 are not in conflict. 

Senator Dalton, in fact, has publicly stated his view that 

the two are compatible;C'he also recognizes that the passage 

of time has rendered this se9tion of S-975 "moot": 

"Although [the Hope Creek study commission 
clause in S-975] was overwhelmingly approved 
by the Senate ... the Governor would not receive 
any study results for Hope Creek I until the 
spring of 19 8 3, due to the amount of t.ime 
involved with the legislative process. As a 
.result, even though the need for this prO]eCt 
has never been established, it would be too 
late to investigate the need for the Hope 
Creek I project. 

"While I support, in principle, the cost 
containment concept, I see it as a supplement, 
not a substitute for a need assessment of Hqpe 
Creek. We should, ideally, both establish the 
capacity needs of our consumersand meet_ that 
demand as economically as we can-.-: . 

"I am, however, a realist. My bill mandating 
the study and recommendations cannot reasonably 
move through the Assembly; be signed by the . · 
Governor, and be implemented until next spring 
at the earliest, by which time the investment in 
the Hope Creek project, now_ approximately a 
million dollars per day, would be so great, that 
the question would be moot. To be credible, to 
be useful -- that study must begin as soon as 
possible ... 

"In the meantime, I shall continue my efforts 
to move the major provisions of Senate Bill 975 
providing for a thorough and continuing need 
assessment of all future projects -- through the 
legislative process so that nev·er again are we in 
the position of having to de9ide if and when we are 
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throwing good money after bad."* (emphasis aq.ded) 

Accordingly, it would appear that even the.· sponsor 

of S-975 was willing by mid-summer, to concede that the time 

had passed for a "meaningful review" of Hope Creek I. . (Senator 

Dalton did request that the Governor appoint a commission 

of his own to advise him on Hope Creek's future.) Moreover, 

the last paragraph, abov~, even suggests that he will not 

insist upon inclusion of a study commission in the amended· 

bill. 

* Senator Dal ton's press relea.se and printed. statement of 
August 12, 1982. 
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At bottom, what M:t·. · Naro.e1li has igno.red is· the simple fact 

that last spring and summer, the Public. Advocate approached.··· 

<,~f.he Hope Creek problem along two tracks at the same time. 

·· The first was our unwavering support of S-975. The second 

·.· .. ·was our efforts to negotiate a meaningful cost containment ... 

The latter acts both as a~ .. "failsafe"; if S-975 fails to become 

law soon enough, and as a device design.ed to prod more ef f icien.cy · 
.. .· . . 

from utility management regardless of the fate· of s-975. 

Since Senator Da:l ton ha/' himself conceded that his review 

of Hope Creek is now "moot", the Public Advocate's two­

t;.rack strategy app.ears to have been appropriate • 

. · . NARDELLI: . 

i, [The] cost containment agreement •.• ensures that Hope 

preeK I ·will be completed no matter .what the cost~'"· 

····t:OR~CTION: 
: .,· 

.. . .... 

The cost containment ensures only that the Public Advocate 

··will not challenge further the need for H:ope Creek I -- · 

an argument that has a zero·chance of prevailing before 
,·, . . ~ 

.. ; . . 

the BPU .. ·. ·In exchange·. fbt' that· single concession·. the, companies, 

· ... h~ve agreed to absorb unprecedented penalti.e.s, if "reasonabl~-'1 _··: 

costs exceed the target figure. 
'' ' 

(They will absorb 100 percent. ,· 

· of "unreasonable II costs.) Moreover,. they cannot arguE: that· 

the agreement raises the. riskiness• of their· stock -- aLthough·. · · 
I • • • : 

it. obviously. does -- thereby foregoing the chance to seek·· 
' ' 

higher rates of return to make·t:hem whole. 
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The more reasonable interpretation of this cos·t containment 

is that it introduces a significant element of doubt as 

to the future of Hope Creek I. If costs spiral out of control 

as they have in the recent past they jumped $700 million 

in 6 months of 1981 utility management will be forc;:ed 

to consider cancelling the project; regardless of its advanced 

stage of construction, rather than see their shareholders 

flee the penalties found in the containment. PSE&G and 

Atlantic Electric are now the only utilities in the country 

where shareholders face the .risk of losing 20 to 30 percent 

of their investment income. The investment COrnlt!,Unity will 

not stand still. Investors will demand clear evidence that 

the unit will be completed at or below the target costs, 

rather than absorb avoidable losses. · Investment, it should 

be noted, is highly mobile; the.re are hundreds of other. 

securities on the open market which do not carry ·these unprece~ 

dented risks. Accordingly: u_tility management will have 

to exercise careful judgment as to whether it is profitable 

to try. to complete the project with these new condition·s. 

The. outcome is far from certain for Hope Creek l. Without 

the cost containment there would be no stopping the project 

or holding down the costs before.they are incurred. 
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Pages 6-7 -- NARDELLI: 

He cites a· "dramatic example, of the' Advocate Is flip 

:flop on this·· issue" a letter sent by the Public Advoca,te 

• to Assemblyman Pankok expressing strong $Upport for S..-975. 

This letter was sent.on July.29; the cost containment was 
' ' 

signed on August 10. Mr.'Nardelli then states as follows: 

''Less than two weeks later, the same man who wrote 

this ringing endorsemen#, of 5,;.975, signed the cost containment 

.··agreement which tries.an end run around Senator Dalton ... If· 

the Committee asks Joe Rodr.iguez one question today it . should . 

. b~ this: what specifically happened between July 29t,h a.nd 

AugUst 10th, that caused Mr. Rodriguez to t:urn his back op 

5..;975 and reject seven years of effort by the Public Advocate 

to have ·a mean~ngful review of ~e; nee!1 for the -Hope Creek · 
' ' ' 

.~ti6lear Pioject?" 

CORRECTION: 

This statement is the crux of Mr. Nardelli 1· s accusation 

_that the Public Advocate crumbled beneath gubernatorial ,·· 

p:ressure during that two we·ek .period~ '!'his is the most · 

demog~gic part of his testimony, and therefore ·1t ·must be 

e.)(amined·care:fully. 

The letter to Assemblyman Pankok 

A reading of this letter;. attached to Mr. Na,rdelli Is 

· ·· ·. testlmony; re-stat~s the Advocate' s well_;known position 

· ·•·· .in support cif S-9 7 5. · As stated previously and as Sena tor 

. Dalton_recognized, support for a needs·assessment is perfectly 
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compatible with a cost-containment. Therefore, there is 

no basis for Mr. Nardelli's sinister implication. 

There is also another aspect of this which may be of 

some interest to the Committee. Mr. Nardelli wrote the 

Pankok letter. On July 14, he sent Mr. Rodriguez his prepared 

response; it was not mailed out for another two weeks.* 

During that time and throughout the month of July I was 

in almost constant contact with Commissioner Coleman of 

the Department of Energy. We met frequently to review offers 

and counter-offers in our effort to see if we could agree 

on a suitable cost containment formula. No doubt our efforts 

were aided by the favorable Senate action of June 28. 

What happened between July 29 and August 10? 

As stated above the Pankok letter was drafted on July 14. 

Thus, if there was a "flip flop" it began on that date, 

and the question should be re-phrased to what happened between 

July 14 and August 10. In brief, we were negotiating at 

a brisk and smooth pace. While we did not know until the 

evening of August 9 whether we would agree to the same language 

and, in fact, continued to tinker with it until the morning 

. of September 29 (when the BPU c;,pened hearings) -- we were 

growing increasingly optimistic that agreement was possible. 

* See attachment 1, Mr. Nardelli's cover memorandum of 
July 14 and the Pankok letter which bears the same date. 
Other than a change in dates -- from July 14 to July 29 -­
it is identical to the letter Mr. Rodriguez signed. 
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At .the s~me time, we were becoming increasingly pessimistic 

that Senator Dal.ton's pill would pass in time to rriatter. 

This lent urgency to the task. Moreover, with each passirig 

day another $1 million was invested in Hope C~eek. 

On July 21 I sent a letter to President ·Robert Patrick 

of the Greater Salem Chamber of Commerce. This letter reflects 

our evolving response to :Hope Creek. (See attachment 2 

to Part ,II) The ~etter to ~atri~k recite~ in detail the 

many reasons for challehging Hope Creek I but .cohcluti.es 

this way: 

In t.he ~nd the problem [o:f Hope Cr-eek IJ.· is 
complicated by the Company•' s ~huge inves't.ment 
to\cJate -,- over $1 bil1fon _;.. which makes, can.,. 
ce1tafipn even lllore diffic::q;t.,t;.· .. ·. p·erhaps_ .the on:iy 

'· solt1t-idn at this stage - is to impqse a 'stringent:, 
cost-containment system,· one, t.hat correctly· · . . 
ifuposes_ the burden of cost--,overruns on ·shareholders . 

. And.· then_' let management decide whether arid if' so 
_how to press .ahead. with ,construction. 

· .. : 

As fbr" the future, we must leairn never agaih tobe 
_, -so /naive as ·t.o,',trust. -:in•~n~rgy sources ·dubbed/' too. _ 
,, cheap to mE?t~r• ~ .• Laws; mt15t be. enact.¢d, and,-.~.nforc._ern:, 
· to: subject ele9tric' compa.nie,s,'t_p the .t:igo:rs:. o(·the ,· 
·marketplace .• ~A11:< in all_i wh.eii:J;fer _Hope creek_:,.I <is: • :., 

completed or someday ·a,bandon~d'::J,,,ike ,its· twin, ·UIJ.it :2, 
may· be _of- less. importanc~·than·.wliether '.the citJz~ns.: ·: . 

·, of Ne'W Jeisey .Will learfr frpm tti~·se 'rnisac:hien,ttir~.s ,:· ., ,:. '· 
and take ch;13rg'e. of the:ir· J\lture./ I· hope· th~::r7-':~.o .: ·,\, :-/··.: 

·.·. and I'm sure that you agree, with me.· lerilpl:a$i_s, a:.d4e,al:, 
' . •. ' •' .. ,.· . .- . '· . 

The remainder of the Niirrd:~lli te'stimoriy is. a .~pnfus,~d-
-, ~ ' . 

and cdnfusing combination qf basiless accusat:Lons' ~)1d,wi1{i.'spe6u·1at: 

They do not deS,ef\le··the :dign.ity of .::a, respon.se .. s-d}t,i'.cei . 

itto :!5•ay ·tha,t at n6·point_ iri- qur decision:"",mak:ing ptoc~ss_,_. 
,· _\'" .- . 

did' anyonE:_ associated with t.he. governor's- office p:re·ssuie, 
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the Public Advocate to sign or not to sign the agreement 

that we eventually hammered out. 

As to the merits of the cost containment, the Public 

Advocate's testimony and statement of September 29, 1982 

before the BPU should answer any reasonable questions·. 

(A copy is attached at attachment .3 of Part II) 

Date: October 22, 1982 

Respectfully submitted, 

. e~~• -' -----= 7~ 
R. WILLIAM POTTER 
Assistant Commissioner 
for the Department of 
the Public Advocate 
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